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V. :
Inspired by the finest cultural,
corporate and crealive values to

present content which entertains
and enriches audiences.

To enable the organization of
outstanding content on subjects
of interest and relevance o a range
of audiences while using the best
professional practices and ensuring
long term continuity.
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Values
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Integrity & Honesty
Respect for All
Commitment / Dedication / Ownership
Accountability & Objectivity

Team Work

Discipline

Salety / Health & Hygiene




CEO’s
Message

Dear Shareholders,

The financial year 2025 has een & test of endurance
adaptability, and strategic perseverance for HUM Network
Limited (HMNL). At g tima when macroeconomic pressures
remained Irfense and the media landscape continues 1o
eviolhve at breakneck pace, | am both humbled and resolule
in reparting on our pericrmance, challenges, and pathway
forward

Ouring 2025, HNL reporied revenuas of Rs. B.071 bililan
against Rs. 8.31 bilkan last year, while posting Rs. 2,10
EBillan in profits. Despite facing challenges driven by higher
cosis, cadtious advertiser spending, and intense
competition, the Company remained salidly profitable. with
ovar Bs. 2 bilhon in eamings, reflecting the reslience of
our diversified portfolio and the continued trust of our
wiewers and partners

During the year, the media and enterlainment industry
continued o evoive rapidly. with digital plationms reshaping
viewser hiabits and blumng the boundanas betwaen raditonal
broadcasting and on-demand content. HMNL remained at
the foretront of this ranstormation as /s digital presence
particularly through HUM TV's YouTube operations
continued to grow into'a major revenue stream and brand
amplifiar. The Company has also integrated advanced Al
tools across its reporting, content creation, and
programming workilows, rellecting its commitmant to
infovation, efficlency, and forward-looking storyielling in
an ingreasingly digital media landscape

HMNL remains committed 1o long-term growth and
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sustainable profitability by pursuing new ventures and
business opportunities that not anfy complement our core
strengths but also open new avenues of growth. Beyond
tracitional broadcasiing, we continug 1o expand Iinto digital,
technology-dmven, and allied sectors, building a diversifisd
portfolio deslgned o ensure reslience, innovation, and
erciuring value for our slakeholders

We, at HNL remam deeply committed (o our social
responsibility, with & special focus on education and
cornmunity upliftmeant. Through the restoration and adoption
of government schoals in Karachi under a public-private
partnership, we have ransformmed neglacted insttubons
into safe and insplring leaming spacas. This ongoing
nifiatve reflects our balief that lasting natonal progress
bagins with empowenng future genarations throwgh guality
education

In closing, this pasl year tested us more starnly than
perhaps any in recent mamaory. But it also clarified what
rnatters; content, people, adaptability, and integnty. | am
deaply grateful to our employees, creative partnars
advertisers, and you, our sharehaldars, for your steadfast

beliet,
Sinceraly,
Duraid Qureshi

Chief Executive Officer
HLU Mebwvork Limited
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Notice of The 21st Annual General Meeting

Motice is hereby given that the 21st Annual General Meeting of HUM Metwaork Limited will be held on Maonday, October
27, 2025 at 3:.00 p.m. at Ground Floor, BAR Tower, Hassan All Strest, Off. ||, Chundrigar Road, Karachl as well as
through video conferance faciity to transact the following businasses: -

Ordinary Business:
1= To confirm the minutes of the 20th Annual General Mesting held on October 28, 2024

2- Taoreceive, consider and adopl Annual Audited Financial Statements af the Company together with the Directars'
and Auditors' Reporis thereon and Chairman's Review Feport for the yeear ended June 30, 2025 together with the
Audited Consclidated Financial Statements of the Company and the Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended
Jure 30,2025

Tha Annual Report of the Company for the yvear ended June 30, 2025 has been placed on the Company’s wabsita,
which can be assessed from the below link and GF code:
http: e humnetwark. vidnnual Sinancial Reports htm

i
[&]%%

3- To appoint Auditors of the Company for the finencial year ending June 30, 2026 and o fix their remuneration. The
Board of Directors, on the recommendation of Audit Committee of the Cormpany, has proposed the name of retiring
auditors Mis EY Ford Bhodes, Chanered Accountants, for thelr appointrmeant as extemal auditars for the year ending

June 30, 2026
Any Other Business:
4- To transact any other busingss with the permissicn of the chair
By Order of the Board
Sd."—
Dated. October 08, 2025 Mohsin Naeem
Place: Karach Compary Secretary

Notes:
1. Notice of Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 20, 2025 to October 27, 2025 (both days
inclusive), Transfer received in order by our Share Registrar, M/s. FD. Registrar Services (SMC-Put) Lid. 17th Floor,
Saima Trade Tower-A, |1 Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000 at the close of business on Qctober 17, 2025 will be
considered in time for any entiternant, as recommended by the Board of Directors and for the purpese of attending
the AGHK

2. Participation in AGM Through Electronic Means

[} To ensure maximum participation In AGM, the Company has made arrangements for videa-link faclity 1o members
who wish to attend the AGM through electranic means.

1l Toatend the AGM through wideo-link, Members ara requested to register tharr following particulars by sending an

email at mohsin.nasem@hum. tv with subject Video-Link Registration for HUM AGM scheduled on October 27,
2025 along with valid copy of CMIC (both sides) or passport as may be apolicable,



t ANNUAL REPORT 2028
\w ol T T LIMTTE D

MNarme of Folig / CDC Murmber of CMICY CeliMobile Email ID
Mermber (s Account Sharaes Held Passport Mumber
Mumber/ Number
[ b o
Participant 1D

iy The Video link and login credentials will be shared with the Members whose emaill, containing all the required

particulars as mentioned above, are recelved at the given emall address before the close of business hours 2.,
05:00 p.m. on Octlober 25, 2025,

w) For amy guanes, the Members may please contact at the aforesaid email.

3. Appointment of Proxies and Attending AGM:

1)

i)

A member eligible to-attend, speak and vote at the Meeting may 2ppoint another member as hishar proxy o
attend, and vole instead of himher.

A blark mstrument of proxy applicable for the meeting s being provided with the notice sent to members, Furthar
copies of the Instrurment of proxy may be obiaingd frorm e regisierad office of the Company during normal office
hours or can be downloaded Iram the Compary's websils.

iy A duly completed instrument of proxy and the power of ettormey or other authartty (if any), under which it is signed

or a notarized certiied copy of such power or authority must, to be valid, be deposited at the registered office not
less than 48 warking day hours before the time of the meeting. Attestad coples of valid CNIC or the passport of
the member and the Proxy shall be furnished wilh the Prasy Form,

n) In case of comporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution / Power of Attormey with specimen signature shall be

submitted with proxy form,

vl The owners of the physical shares and the shares registerad in the narme of Ceniral Depository Comgpany of Pakistan

Ltd. {COC) and ( or thelr proxies are required to produce thelr ongina! Computerized MNational Identity Card [CNIC)
or Passport (in case of foraign nationals) for identiication purpose at the time of attending the meaating

v} COC ascount holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down n Crroular No. 1, dated

January 26, 2000 Issued by the Securities & Exchange Cormmission of Pakistan

A. For Attending the Meeting:
{i Incase of indwiduals, the account holder or ]

B. For Appointing Proxies:
In case of individuals, the account holder or

{1}

aub-account bolder and; or the person whose
securifies are in greup account and their
registration detalls are uploaded as per tha
Regutations, shall autnentlcate his identity by
showing hls ariginal Computerized Mational
ldentity Card (CNIC), ar origlnal passpart at
the time of attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Direcltors resalution/ powear of attormey with
specimen signature of the nominee shall be
produced (Unless it has been prowded earfier)
the time of the meeting

{if)

{iil)

sub-acooun holder and / &r the person whose
securiies are in group account, and their
registration details are uploaded as per the
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as
per the above requiremeants.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two
persons whose narmes, addresses and CNIC
numbers shall be mentonad an the form.

Aftested copies of CNIC or the passport of
the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form,

(v} The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or

)

original passport at the time of meseting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Dirsctors' resolution/ power of attorney with
specimen signature shall be subrmitted {Unless
it has bean provided earher) along wath proxy
form to the Company.

O
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vil, Incase of altending mesting by proxy through electronic means |.e., video-link faciity, Call Number and Email |d
of proxy, shall be provided on the duly signad proxy fomm.

4. Video-Conferencing Facility for attending AGM

If memkbers nolding ten percent of the 1otal paid up capital, are resident in any other city, the company shall provide
the faclity of video-conferencing lo such members for attending annual general meeting of the company, if 5o, reguired
by such members in writing 1o the company at |least seven days (7) before the date of the mesting:

The Company will inimate mambers regarding venue of conference facility at least 5 days before the date of general
measaiing along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

Consant for Video-Conferencing Facilty

IWa, of . being a mamber of Hum Natwori
Limited, holder of ordinary share {5} as per Reglster Folio/CDC Account Mo
hereby opt for video conferenca facilty at  for participation at the Annual General

Meeting to be held on Cclober 27, 20256 or any adjournment thereof

Date.

Signature of mamber(s)

5. Change in Members Addresses:

Members are requested to nalify any changes in their addresses mmediately o the Share Registrar M/s. FD. Registrar
Sarvices (SMC-Pwi) Lid. 17th Floor, Saima Trade Towar-A, L1, Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000

6. Annual Report 2025 and Notice of AGM

The Annual Report 2025 along with notice of AGM is being sent to the mambers who have provided their email
addresses as per 5RO 452{)/2025 issued Dy the SECE Sharsholdsrs are encouraged to sendiupdate thair email
address with the Company's Share Registrar, M/s F.D. Reqistrar Services (SMC-Pvt.) Lid

The Company will provide a hard copy of the Annual Report o arny member, within 7 days after the receipt of reguest
by Company undar Section 235 of the Companies Act, 2017

7. E-Dividend Mandate (Mandatory)

Under sechion 242 of Companias Act, 2017 ("Act”), every Isted company is required o pay dividend, I any, 10 their
membars compuisonty through electronic mode by directly graditing the same in their bank account provided by them

In terms of SRO No, 1145(1)/2017 dated 06 November 2017, It is mandatory for the shareholders lo provide their bank
account details to receve their cash dividend directly Into thigir bank accounts, falling which the compary shall be bound
lo withhold dividend of those mambers who do nal provide their bark detalls.

All members are required to prowds to the Company's Share Registrar, particulars relating to name, folio numbar, bank
account number [24-digit [BAN), title of account, complete mailling addrass of the bank: CDC account holders should
submit their reques! directly 1o their broker (participanty/CDC. & Form is avallable at the Begistered Cffice of the Company
and lhe sarme are also placed on the Company's webisile

8. Unclaimed Dividend / Shares

Pursuant to Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any shares issued or dividend declared by the company, which
remain unclaimed or unpaid for a perod of three vears from the date |t becamie due and payable shall vest with the
Federal Government after compliance ol procedures prascribed under the Companies Act, 2017.

(2
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All valued members of the Company, who by any reason, could not claim their dvidend/shares, If any, are requested
to comtact Company's Share Registrar, to file their claims with Company's Share Registrar for any unclaimead dividend
or shares outstanding in their name

In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, aftar having complatad the stipulated procadure, all such
dividend outstanding for a penod of 3 years o more from the date due and payable shall be deposited 1o the Fedaral
Government in case of unclaimed dividend and in case of shares, shall be dalivered to the SECP

9. Conversion of physical shares into book-entry form

Pursuant to Sechon 72 of the Companias Act, 2077 svery existing company shall be required to replace its physical
shares with book-entry form In @ manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the Commission
The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to conver! thelr phwsical shares into book-entry forrm by
depasiting sharaes into Central Depesitory Comparny Pakistan Limited by opening CDC sub-acoount with any broker
or iIrvestor accounts directly with CDC.

10. Deduction of Income Tax Under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

For cash dividend. the rales of deduction of income tax, under section 150 af the Income Tax Ordinance, 2007 are
as follows!

a. Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax returns 15%

b. Rale of tax deduction for non-filer of income lax relums 30%

In case of jpint accounl. each holder is 1o be treated Individually as eillher & liler or non-fler and lax will be deducted
on the basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be nofified by the sharehclder, in writing to the Company |
Share Begistrar. If no notification 1s received, sach jont holder shall be assumed to have an equal numbsr of shares,
The GNIC number [ NTH detail is now mandatory and ks required for checking fne tax status as per the Active Taxpayers
Ligt (ATL) izsued by the Federal Board of Revenus (FBR) from time to time.

11. Exemption From Deduction of Income Tax /Zakat

Members sesking exempbon from deducton of income tax or are eligible for deducton at a reduced rate are reguestad
10 subrmit a valid tax withholding exemption cerfificate or necessany documentany avidence for this purpose. Members
desring non-deduction of zakat are also requestad to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat CDC
account holders are requasled 1o submil their declaralion for non-deduction of zakal o lhe relevant member stock
exchange or to COC If maimtaning COC investor accourt.

12. Prohibition on Grant of Gifts to Shareholders

In compliance with section 185 of the Companigs Act, 2017 and SRO 452(1)/2025 dated March 17, 2025 issued by
SECP, it is heraby natified that no gifis In any farm or manner, shail be distributed to shareholders at the Annual General
Mesting.
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Pattern Of Share Holding
As At June 30, 2025

Shareholding Slab

Number Of Shareholders Total Shares Hald
a11 1 : 100 29 BB6
g63 101 - 500 207,039
529 501 . 1000 414112
1146 1001 - 5000 2,904 085
355 | 5001 - 10000 2.724.527
233 10001 - 15000 2,900,374
117 ' 15001 : 20000 2,134,001

97 20001 . 25000 2,260,810
52 25001 - 30000 1,493,056
34 | 30001 - 35000 1,133,573
28 35001 . 40000 1,004,200
32 40001 . 45000 1,388,124
46 45001 . 50000 2,261,172
10 | 50001 = 55000 525,720
20 | 55001 - 60000 1,182,067
11 | 60001 - 65000 702,100
15 65001 . 70000 1,025,801
B 70001 - 75000 585,667
13 75001 - 80000 1,020,218
4 BOOO1 - 85000 338,500
& 85001 - 90000 533,507
5 90001 = 95000 464,300
25 95001 - 160000 2,487 837
4 100001 - 106000 406,286
2 105001 - 110000 218,562
& 110001 - 115000 677,700
g 115001 = 120000 1,075,600
. 120001 - 125000 248,200
5 125001 - 130000 639,000
2 130001 = 135000 270.000
4 135001 = 140000 552 531
1 140001 - 145000 143.000
5 145001 = 150000 1,194 978
3 150001 . 155000 458,000
1 155001 = 1680000 180,000
2 160001 - 165000 327,749
3 165001 . 170000 504 442
2 170001 . 175000 346,500
2 175001 . 180000 360,000
2 185001 - 180000 376,009
3 180001 . 185000 576.800
17 195001 . 200000 3,306,611
1 200001 : 205000 205,000
\. 1 | 205001 - 210000 210,000
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Mumbear Of Shareholdars

From

Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

1 215001 = 220,000
3 22500 230000 579 528
| 235001 240000 240,000
| 240001 : 245000 241,000
5 245001 = 250000 1,248,100
2 250001 - 255000 504 491
2 265001 270000 536,300
1 2850M 290000 286,023
2 280001 - 2895000 582100

18 285001 - 300000 3,599,000
3 300001 305000 008,700
1 305001 310000 309,312
2 310001 = 315000 624,400
3 315001 S 320000 057,225
1 320001 . 325000 325,000
1 325001 : 330000 330,000
3 330001 - 335000 1,000,600
1 335001 e 340000 340,000
1 340001 - 345000 340,200
2 345001 5 350000 700,000
1 250001 355000 350,024
2 355001 < 360000 720,000
1 370001 - 375000 475,000
1 375001 - 380000 380,000
3 S80001 - 385000 1,147,230
2 385001 . 390000 780,000
4 395001 2 400000 1,600,000
3 415001 = 420000 1,253,779
1 420001 - 425000 422,197
2 435001 ; 440000 877,851
1 455001 = 460000 460,000
1 470001 - 475000 470,500
5 495001 = 500000 2,500,000
| 500001 505000 503,500
1 520001 = 525000 525,000
1 545001 - 550000 547 520
| 590001 535000 501,987
4 595001 GOG000 2,400,000
| 625001 630000 629,880
1 63500 640000 636,500
1 645001 650000 650,000
i G50001 655000 655,000
2 655001 660000 1,317,000

N | 670001 675000 672,600
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Shareholding Slab

Mumiber Of Shareholders Total Shares Hald
1 E80001 - E856000 683,081
2 695001 - 700000 1,398,500
1 715001 - 720000 717,800
1 745001 - 750000 746,000
1 795001 - BODOOO 800,000
2 825001 - B20000 1,656,000
1 830001 . 8356000 831,364
1 8235001 - 840000 840,000
1 855001 - 860000 856,000
1 | 900001 - 205000 805,000
1 850401 - 855000 954,000
3 995001 . 1000000 3,000,000
1 1035007 - 1040000 1,040,000
1 1086007 - 1100000 1,100,000
1 | 1180001 - 1185000 1,182,400
1 | 1185001 - 1180000 1,186.050
1 1220001 - 1225000 1,220472
1 1280007 = 1265000 1,263,271
1 1445001 - 1450000 1,450,000
1 1496007 < 1500000 1,500,000
1 1255001 - 1560000 1,559,395
1 1610007 - 1615060 1,613,217
2 1745007 - 1750000 3,500,000
1 1915001 - 1920000 1,820,000
1 1980007 - 1985000 1,984 500
1 2005001 > 2010000 2,008 843
1 2010001 - 2015000 2,02 B00
1 2040001 - 2045000 2,042 255
1 2426001 : 2430000 2,425,938
1 2515001 = 2520000 2,520,000
1 2585001 - 2580000 2585121
1 2695001 = 2700000 2,700,000
1 2??13{',1{31 - 2775000 2,770,098
1 3185001 - 3190000 3,186,003
1 4285001 - 3290000 3,290,000
1 3336001 - 3340000 3,336,000
1 3500001 . 3508000 3,500,100
1 3600001 - 3605000 3,801,800
1 4395001 - 4400000 4,398,800
1 8365001 - 5370000 6,367,200
1 8485001 - 6470000 6,465,353
1 65485001 - 8430000 B 486,252
1 7830001 . 78356000 7,830,400
\ 1 8685001 : 8690000 5688289  J

A
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Mumbear Of Shareholdars

Shareholding Slab

Total Shares Held

From C
1 9450001 - 9455000 9,454 144
! 12825001 - 12830000 12 826,000
1 12095001 : 13000000 13,000,000
1 14785001 . 14790000 14,789,715
1 20575001 . 20580000 20,575,820
1 28440001 . 28445000 28.442 944
1 42095001 50000000 50,000,000
1 58515001 - 58520000 58,518,744
1 88940001 : 8RA45000 B8.042 867
1 112695001 = 113000000 113,000,000
1 537640001 . 537545000 537,642,388
\ 4591 1,134,000,000 J




(o sponrcas
Additional Information =%/
as of June 30, 2025

' Shareholders' Category Shareholders | Shares held | Percentage.

rnimmrs, heir Spouse(s) and Minor Children
Durald Gureshi 2 537,642 400 47.41
Sultara Siddigul 2 20,675,832 1.81
Mazhar Ul Hag Siddiqui 1 12 0.00
Mehtab Akbar Raskdi 1 12 0.00
Mrs. Khush Bakht Shujaat 1 12 0.00
Sohail Ansar 1 1,200 0.00
Shunaid Qureshi 2 651,038,744 5.38
Muharmimad Ayub 1 12,000 0.00

Associated Companies, Undertakings and related parties - = -

Execulives . - ;

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 5 = .

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking
Finance Companies. Insurance, Takaful,

Modaraba and Pension Funds 5 167,073,171 14.73
Mutual Funds B 30,660,914 270
General Public

a Local 4504 163,668,542 14 42

b. Foreign = 18 B34 0.00
Foreign Companies 2 1,188.400 0.10
Others 58 152,228,815 13.42
Total 4591 1,134,000,000 100.00
Shareholders holding 10% or more voling interast Share Held Percentage |
hir. Duraid Qureshi 537,642,400 47.41

&

)
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Corporate Calendar

Human Rascurce and Remuneration Committes Mesting to consider and discuss Oct 04 2024
employees and rermuneration ' matters for the financial year 2024-25 *
Audit Committee Meeling to consider and approve the annual audited accounts Ot 04 2004
of HLUM Metwork Limited {'the Company”) for the vear ended June 30, 2024 = =
Baoard of Directors Meating 1o consider the annual audited accounts of the Cormpany Oct 04, 2024
for the yvear ended June 30, 2024
20th Annual General Meating 1o consldar accounts of the Comparniy for the year Oct 28 2024
ended June 30, 2024
Corporate Bnefing sassion lor tha vear 2024 Ot 282024
Audit Cormmmitiae Mealing to consider accounts of the Campany for the Quarter
anded Seplamber 30, 2024 Ogt 29, 2024
Board of Directors Meesting lo consider accounts of the Company for the Quarter
gnded Septamber 30, 2024 Cot 29, 2024
Audit Commitiee Mestng 0 consider accounts of the Company for the half year
ended December 31, 2024 Feb 27, 2025
Board of Dirgoters Mesting 1o consider accounts of the Cormpany for the hall year &
ended Dacembar 31, 2024 Feb 27, 2025
Audit Committiae Mesting 1o consider accounts of the Company for the Quarter Aodl 28 2025
anded March 31, 2025 Pl 28, el
Board of Directors Meeting to consider accounts of the Company for the Quarter April 282025
 ended March 81, 2025 il eshis

Gender Pay Gap Statement Under
Circular 10 of 2024

Following Is gender pay gap calculated for the yvear endead June 30, 2025
I, Mean Gender Pay Gap =528%

i, Median Gender Pay Gap = 0.42%

-~

Durald Qureshli
CEQ

9

S
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Six Years At A Glance
Key Financial Data

OPERATING DATA

Revenue-Nat 3679468088 4327326066 6.015968.888 68250586346 B.307.665130 8012805226
Costal production {2.756,142547) (2,706997,558) (3.454.551.887) (3.540,102,628) 4.004,008.656) (4,180,199,143)
Transrmaigsion Cost (138,068,102) (90,436.188) (100,165,940 (126,696.002) (121164 .257) {132140,717)
Gross profit TE4 256,439 1 469892319 2464251967 3158787716 4,182.403.217  3.6088.465.364
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

(LossyProfit before taxation  (136,120.065) 1,107,143.402  1.514,830878 2430816835 2027.073.108  2,201,012.470
Taxation 92 881 574 (92,746.807) (150834865 (290,57B261)  (316481,351) (98,025 832)
Srofil after axation (113238.491) 1014306885 1,963905013 27149238574 2810531757 2102086638

Financial Ratios

Current Ratos 285 340 an 843 877 851
Quick =t 283 3.38 310 8.41 875 8350
Deby Equity Halio 044 0.18 Q.02 0.02 0.0z 0
Cash Available per sharne- Rs. 012 031 074 0.39 0.6 0.42
Retum on gty - % 3.7 24,95 2676 29.88 2649 17.58
Shere Pnce per share -As 12.65 B.02 Tz 5.84 10.28 12.47
Brear-up valus per share - e 269 3.58 4.8 .39 B.EG 10.65
Gross Profit f (Loss) to Sales - % 213 3397 4084 45,28 5034 4517
Ciost of Producton To Sates- % 7481 53.94 7.3 51.87 48.20 5217
Admristrative Expensss o Saes - 1281 11.80 870 1297 11.92 1464
Mat profit [ (Loss} 1o Sales - % {3.08) 23.44 2268 31.498 31.42 26.25
interssl Cover - number of limes 043 1214 21.65 Baay 83.13 86,33
Disbiors Turnowes (rurmber of deyva) 173 155 127 132 126 1189
Price eaming ratio {125.68) B.ay 592 .08 4.48 8.72
Tuen Owver 1o Total Asset Ratio 07 D.82 ael .84 0.77 081
Earningafloss) per share Rs. 00 DEa 1.20 1.80 230 1.85
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Graphical Presentation
Analysis of Statement of Financial Position and Profit or Loss Account
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Break-up of revenue streams

8%

B Advertisement revenue - net 8 Advertisement revenue - net
B Production revenue - net n Production revenue - net

m Digital revenue - net ® Digital rewenue - net

# Subscription income - net » Subscription income - net

& Film Distribution ® Film Distribution

B Other Income ® Other Income

Cost and expense breakup

1% qeg

A
la’

11% /
2%

G63%

= Cost of production

B Cost of production
B Transmilssion cost

B Transmlsslon cost
= Distribution costs

B Distribution costs
# Administrative expenses

B Administrative expenses
= Other expenses

B Other expenses
# Finance costs

B Fimance costs
®m Taxation

B Taxation

(3))
\"Y
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Net Revenue
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&,000
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6,000
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Rs. In million

Current Ratio

10.00
8.00

6.00
4.00

2,00

Profit After

2,750
2,500
2,250
2,000
1,750
1,500
1,250
1,000

750

500

250

Rs. In million

(2 5-01

6,826

2023

8,308

2024

6,019
4,327
3,679
2020 2021 2022
2020 2021 2022
Tax

2020 2021 2022

2023

2023

2024

2024

8,013

2025
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Building a better
working world

Independent Auditors' Review Report
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Govemance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of HUM Network Limited
{the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2025 in accordance with the requiremeants of Regulation 36 of
the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is thal of the Beard of Directors of the Company. Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to Inquines of the Company's personnsl
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations,

As a part of our audit of the financial staterments we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal conlrol systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are
not required to consider whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal control covers all risks and
controls or ta form an opinion on the effectivenass of such internal controls, the Company's corporate
governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon, recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors, for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement (o the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upen recommendation of the Audit
Committee,

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all matenal respects, with the
Requlations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025.

f:?[u l L—

Chartered Accountants

Place:; Karachi

Date: 08 Ociober 2025

UDIN: CR202510076bkTIjDi5g

C
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNENCE)
REGULATIONS, 2019 ("the Regulations”)

HUM Network Limited ("the Company")
for the year ended June 30, 2025
The Company has complied with 1he requirements of the Regulations in the following manner

1. Thea total of number of directors are 08 as per tha following:

Male Five (5)

Female Three (3)

2. The composition of the board s as follows (also refar note 19)

Category Mame

Independent directors Mr. Sohail Ansar
M huhammead Ayvub Younus Adhi

hr. Mazhar ul Heq Siddigul
hr. Shunaid Qureshl

Ms. Mahtab Aklbar Rashdi
Lt Gan (H) Asif Yasin hMalik”
Ms. Khush Bakht Shujat

Non-executive directors

Executive directors Ms. Sultana Siddiqu
hr. Duraid Qureshi

Female directors Ws. Sultana Siddigu
Ms. Mahiab Akbar Rasndi
Ns. Khissh Bakht Shujat
h

\ o

YLt Gen (R) Asif Yasin Malik resigned from the Board with effect from October 21, 2024

3. Tha direciors have confirmead that nane of them s serving as a directar on more than saven listed companies
including ths Company;

4, The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that approprniate steps have been taken o
disseminale il througheut the Cempany along with its supporting policies and procedures

5. The Board has developed a wsion/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of pariculars of the significant policies along with their date
of approval or updating Is maintained by the Company,

o

All the powers of the Board have been duly exarcised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisiona of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and thase
Requlations:
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7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chainmman, The Board has complied with the requirements
of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and arculating minutes of meeting of Board,

8. The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of dirsciors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations,

8. The Gompany is compliant with the requirerments of Directors' Training Program provided in these Regulations. All
ihe Directors except one have either attended the reguired training in prior years or stand exempted, as per critana
mentignad in the Code;

10. The Boerd has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Cormpany Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneralion and terms and conditions of employment and complied with requirements of the
Regulations and there has been no new appaintment during the year;

11. Chist Financial Officer and Chisf Exacutive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements bafore approval of the
Board,

12. The Board has formed committees compnsing of members aiven below:

a Audil Commities k. Human Resource and Remuneration Committes
Mr. Sohail Ansar - Chairman (Independent Mr. Sohall Ansar - Chalrman (Independent)
Wr. Shunaid Qureshi (Non-Executive) Ms, Sultana Siddigui (Executive)
Mrs. Mahiab Akbar Rashdi (Non-Exacutiva) hirs. Mahtab Akbar Hashdi (Mon-Executiva)

13. The terms of relerence of the aloresaid committeas have besan formed, documented and advised to the commities
for compliance;

14. The freguency of the meetings of the committees were as follows:

a, Audit Committes - four [4] meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2028,
. Human Resource and Remuneration Committee - one [1] meesting dunng the financial year ended June 30,
2025,

15 The Board has putsourced intemal audit function to Mis, KPMG Taseer Hadl & Co. Chartered Accourtants who ara
considerad suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of lhe Company;

16. The statutory auditors of fhe company have confirmed that they have bzen given a satisfactory rating under the
Cuality Control Review program of the Instidule of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Cversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all thair partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code af ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partrers of the firm invelved in the audit are not a close refative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependant children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of Internal audit, company
secretary or directar of the company:

17 The statutory audilors or the persens assecialed with them have not been appoinied to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard, and

18. We confirm that all reguirements of regulabons including 3, 6, 7. 8, 27. 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with

18 The term of Board expired on August 22, 2020, and fresh election was scheduled Tor August 2020. Since the
numper of eligible candidates were equal to the number of directors fixed for elaction, the Company made the
announcement on August 13, 2020, under section 158(4) of the Companies Act, 2017. The aloresaid election of
directors was questioned by the Inefigible candidates. Conseguently, the elected dirsctors also led a counter suit
The Honorable Sindh High Court through Order dated: August 21, 2020 has direcled the Company that the elections
schedulad to be held on August 22, 2020, would be postpened and rescheduled subject to the final decision by
the Ipamed single Judpe of CAMA Mo, 6787 of 2020 in Suit No, 863/2020, which is still pending adjudication. Hence,

the same Board confinues fo operate till date.
‘ 3N
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20 Al present, the Board provides governance and aversight In refation to the Company's initigtives on Environment,
Social and Governance (ESGQ) matters. In addition, the regquirements introduced by SECP through rotfication dated
June 12, 2024, will be comiplied with in due course.

- il
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Chiel Executive Chairmian & Director

Date: October 02, 2025
Place: Karachi

(=



Chairman’s
Review Report

I am honored o presant the annual review as Chairman
of the Board of Directors (BOD) of UM MNetwork Limited
for the vear ended June 30, 2025,

Curing the year under revieny, Pakisian’s econorny showed
clearer signs of slabllization, led by a marked decling in
inflation, reductions i interest rates, and improving macro-
financial conditions. Neveriheless, the pace of recovery
remains cautious, as glabal economic headwinds and
siructural challenges continue to temper the momerturm.
in his environmeant, HUM Network has remainad aglle,
deploying cost optimization strategies and despening its
digital madia foolprnt 1o sustain growth and forify its market
position,

The Boerd of Directors is composed of memibers whose
axparbsa spans entertainment, finance, and regulatony
compliance. Each director s acutely aware of their
stewardship role and committed to ensuring that the
Campany's policies and aperations align with lis strategic
vision and long-term goals.

Furthermore, the BOD has ensured that the flnancial
disclosures are accurate and truly represent the afiairs of
the company. This accountability |s enforced by the
inlerpational Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS),
Companies Act, 2017, Listing Hegulations and olhers
relevant laws and regulations. We hava designed our
qorporate governance structura to ensura maximum
comphance with legal and regulatory framework and
meeting the information needs of our stakeholders. The

Board has fulfilled all of their mandalory responsibilities
including providing strafegic direction o the management
and snsunng compliance with all legal and regulatory
requiraments by the management of the Company

The Board is constituted ol Audil Commitiee and Humian
Resource and Remuneration Commitles, Thesa
commitiees provided valuable input and assistance to the
Board. The Audit Commities pariicularty focused on detailed
reviaw of inancial statements and effectveness of intemal
controis. Further, an annual evaluation of the Board of
Cirectors overall performance is conducied o ensure
cormphance with the requirameant of the Code of Comparate
Govemance and the Companies Act, 2017. On the basis
of the feedback received through this mechanism overall
role of the Board has been found to be eftective

| would like to eppreciate and thank my fellow board
members, shareholders, all our employeses, lendars and
layal viewers for their continusd efforts and suppart

)
N
Mr. Mazhar-ul-Haq Siddiqui

Chairran of the Board
October 02, 2025
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Hurm Metwark Limited (HNL) are pleased to presant the Annual Report together with the Company's
audited financial staterment for the year ended 30 June 2025

Financial Performance

The financial performeance of your Sompany for the year ended June 30, 2025 is summarized below:

HUM NETWORK LIMITED
Particulars Unconsolidated Financial Statements Consolidated Financial Statements
2025 2024 2025 2024

Revenue from

| oparalions 8,012,805,226 8,307,666,130 11,478,854 122 12,283,007 683
Other incomse 608,647,399 410,619,108 702,058,368 370,185 066
Total Incorne 8,711,452,625 9.718,285.235 12.180,912,450 12672194865
Total expenses (6,510,440,155) {5,791 212127) (10,835,297,589) {9,358,886,823)
'Profit before tax 2201,012470 | 2027073108 | 1345614801 | 3313306842
| Taxation (98,025,832) {318,481,351) (109,947,534) (388,436,138)
| Profit after tax 2,102,986,638 2.610,591.757 1,235,667,367 2924 870,704
EPS 1.85 2.30 1.09 2.58

HUM Network Limited has reported the revenue from operations Rs. 8.01 billion for FY2025, cormpared to Rs. 8.31
blllion in (ke previcus year. This stability In topline performance, despits a challenglng macrosconomic backdrop and
bighter advertising spend, reflects the resilience of sur core broadeasting and antartainmant busnesses. Our abiity to
sustain nearly the same revenue base in a contracting markeat underscares the endunng strength of HUM's flagship
channeals and conent portfolio. Complamenting operating revenues, the Company benefitted from a notable uplitt in
ancillary streamns, with othar income nging to Bs, 625.8 milion from Bs. 410.6 million last yvear

Despite elevaled expanses, the Company maintained profitability, posting profit after lax of B, 2 10 billion rellecting
disciplined performance in a challenging environmen. The foundation remains strond, and HUM is well-positionad 1o
capture future growth opportunities across entertainment, news, sporls, and digital segments.

Principal Activities

In 2025, HUl Network Limited celebrated 20 years of being at the heart of Pakistan's media evolution, shaping stanes
gnd experances that resonate with millions at home and abroad. Qur flagship brands, HUM TV and HUM News, have
become frusted household names, while Taen Sports, HUM Sitaray, and HUM Masala extend our reach across
entartalinmeant, sports, ifestyle, and culinary domalns. Together with our international channals, this pertfolio reflects
our vision of offering 8 complete spectrum of enlerainment under ona umbrella

Beyond television, HUM has embraced the future with a dynamic presence in Films and Digital Media, ensuring our
audiences enjoy seamless access to cantent across platforms and formats. Whether on screen, on stage, or enline,
our commitment rernains conatant: to creale powerul stones, showease diverse volees, and deliver a comprehansive
media experience that connects, insoires, and endures,

Operational Performance

Guided by strategic decigions of the Board, we have maimained growth across mulliple dimenaions, marked by a
constancy in operational revenues, viewership, and Television Rating Points (TRMs).

Hum TV

Dunng FY2025, HUM TV strengthened Its prime-lime slate with a senas of high-performing dramas that resonatad with
audiences nationwide. Titles such as 'Qissa-a-Dil," "Be Rung,” ‘Mann Jogi," *Zard Patton Ka Bunn,’ ‘Nadaan,” "Meem
se Mchabbat," "Judwaa," and "Tan Man MNeal @ Mee!" brought compelling narratives and stellar performances fo the
screen, reflecting our commitment to both guality and varigly, Adding 1o the fesiive season's charm, HUM's Ramzan
specials "Oil Wall Gall Main" and "My Dear Cinderella’ captured househaold atiention with light-hearted storytelling and
strong ratings, underscoring the channel's ability 1o balance serious thames with family-iriendly entertainment.
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Together, this programming mix reinforced HUM TV's reputation as Ihe nation's prernier enterlainment channel, delivering
stories that explore the struggles and aepirations of ordinary people while addressing broader social themeas. Tha
consstent success of these litles not only solidified HUN's leadsrship in the domestic market but also expanded its
reach among the wider Sauth Asian diaspora, strengthening HUM Network's overall brand equity.

Hum News

At a fime when misinformation spreads faster than facts, the need for reliable and impartial news has naver been
greater. HUM News has astablished itlself among the country's leading news channels by remaining steadiast in its
rmission to deliver accurale, evidence-basad jpumaksm, Every story we share is anchored in dala and verified informalion,
ensunng that our viswers stay Informed with clanty and confidence.

Bullding on this foundation of trust, HUM News offers a dynamic Iineup of news programs anchored by some of
Pakistan's mosi respected and experienced journalists. These distinguished joumalists bring decades of experilse and
credibility to the screen, providing audiences not just with the |atest updates but also with sharp, thoughtful analysis of
e issues shaping our limes.

Hum Sitaray

The channel s positioned as a hviond chanrel offering both narrative as well as format-based entertainmeant shows.
The gontent mix consists of Dramas, Soap operas, fashion litestyle shows, Celebrity talk shows and international
cantents

Hum Masala

HUM WMasala, Pakistan's ploneering 24,7 culinary channgal, proudly celebrated its 18th anniversary in Ociober 2024,
marking nearty iwo decades of bringing dverse cuisines, renowned chefs, and health experis info the homes of millione,
Owver the years, the channel has nat only dominated the domestic food and lifestyle space but has also extended its
popularity ‘across Eurape and the USA, ranforcing is posibon as the region's most influential culinary brand,

The years celgbratons were amplified through the Masala Family Festrvals. which draw masswe audiences in both
Lahore and Karachi in December 2024 and January 2025 respectively. Each two-day festval offered a vibrant mix of
I cooking demaonstrationg, talent hunts, mest-and-greets with celebrity chefe and ariists, and concerts featunng
celebrated singers. These evenis brought HUM Masala's on-screen magic to life, crealing interactive experiences thal
deepened audience engagement and strengthened the channsls unique bond with food enthusiasts across Pakistan,

Ten Sports

During FY 2025, Ten Sports further elevated its standing in sports broadcastng by securing and executing multiple
cncketing nghts. The channel successiully aired Pakistans bilateral series versus Bangladesh and Australia, both at
home and abroad, as well as the ICC Champions Trophy 2025 hosted acress Pakistan and the UAE. Ten Spors also
negotiated pivotal media rights deals - including ICC events, the Champions Troghy, Pakistan Cricket Board home
series, Cricket Australia’s lelevisian rights, and Cricket Ireland's television rights - contracts that the management
enticipates will contribute significantly to the Network's bottom line.

Looking ahead, Ten Spors is actvely expionng expansion into adjacent sporis-business ventures, aiming 10 broaden
ts infiuenca beyand cnckat into diversified sports media ecosystems

Digital Media Division

The HUM Networlk's Digital Media division has diligently ugheld cur formidable presence across all key social media
platfarms including Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, and Youtube, a testament lo the company's highly targeted and
effective Social Media Strategy.

To further expand our digital reach In MENA reglon, we have re-launched the hil Urdu drama 'Parizaad in Arablc dub
on HUM Arabia for our Arabic-speaking audience. This Initiative aims to bridge cullura! gaps and strengthen our
connection with viewers in the region.

Direct zales (local web advertizers) nave been another business avenue thal has continesd (o grow significantly this
year as we have open opportunities for digital sponsorship.

0%
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Hum Films

HUM Films strengthened ts cinematic presence dunng the year with two diverse releases thal were warmiy recelved
by audiences. The Urdu-dubbed Malaysian homror film "Gunnah’, released in Novermber 2024, miade history as the first
Malaysian horror preduction screened in Pakistanl cinemias, This was followed by "The Martial Artist” released in Pakistan
in-Jaruary 2025, an intermational production featurmg celebrated Pakistan talenl, which captivated audiences with its
compating narrative and strong performances. Both s eamed appreciation for their originality, quality and enteriainment.

Bridal Couture Week (BCW)

22nd HUM Bridal Couture Week was held in Lahaore during December 2024 showoasing 29 designers over three days,
blending bridal couture with entertainment. Featuring celebnty showstoppars, and musical performances the event
Righlighted bath established and emerging talent in Paklstani fashion

9th Hum Awards

The 3th HUM Awards lit up London's iconic Wembley Arena, celebrating Pakistani entertainment on a global stage.
The avening blended glamour, powariul performances, and heartfelt tibutes, beginning with a8 moving rendition of
Pakistan's natonal anthem and culminaling in the recognition of outstanding achievernants in acting, music, and
direction. Mr. Duraid Gureshl captured the spint of the night with reflections on the vision that first brought the HUM
Awards 1o life, reaffirming HUM Metwork's commitment 2 alevating Pakistan's crealive industry intarnationally.

20 Years of Magic

HUM TV marked its 20th anmversary in grand style with a slar-sludded gala al Governor Houge, Karachi, on January
18, 2025 The higloric venue was transformed into a dazzling showecase of lights and arislry, whera on-soreen loons,
industry lzaders, dignitanes, and long-time partners gathered to honor two decades of HUM's unrivalled contribution
to entertainment. The evening blended glamour with heartfalt moments, réflecting the Networkds joumey from a pioneering
channel to & household name across Pakistan and the global South Asian diaspora.

To commemaorate this milesione, HUM MNetwork also celebrated its most loyal and dedicated employees, presanting
commemorative shields to those who have been part of the organization since its inception.

Human Resource Management

The Networl views its human resource 8s the most valuable asset and pays spacial attention lowards developing an
atmosphere which fosters growth, high perfformance, adherence to orgenizational values and business ethics.

Core Values

HUM Netwark Limited [s continuously siriving to provide an enabling corporate and social work environment to its
employess as this helps them to work in complete harmony in & healthy and professions! way,

For this vary purpose the HUM Network Family has developed the following core valuss.,

Integrity & Honesty

Respact for Al
CommitmentDedication/ Ownership
Accountablity & Objectivity

Team Work

Disciplina

Safety/Haalth & Hyglena

NP O AEWN

We adhars to the above core valuas in all the inibatives that wa underlake as this helps in promoting s cutture of fairness,
objectvity and teamwork

The External Environment

DOur company thrives within a dynamic and fiercaly compelitive landscape, where innovation, congtant change, and
the allocation of rescurces vary significantly among players in each business segment.

@
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The landscape of the advertising mdustry is constantly evolving, presenting graater challenges as advertisers seek aver
mora innovative means o enhance thelr relurn on investment. Under current arvirorment of financial pinch, the majornty
of multinational companies have diigently streamlined their advertising budgets, However, our netwark is uniquely
poised to not only navigate this intenadying competitive arena but also sustain our market share, a testament to our
slrategic prowess and adaptatility

Risk Management

Dur company boasts a reliable Rigk Management framewark designed not anly to identily and assess potential risks
but also to recognize advancement apportuniies. This cormprehensive sysiam s meticulously crafied to enkance
transparency, safeguard our business objectives, and fortfy our compatitve edge.

In the ever-avolving landscape of our industry, we recognize the significance of addressing not only internal but also
erternal and regulatory risks. Our risk framework plays a pivotal role in quanlifying our expasure and polential Impact
al a company-wide level. This approach) ensures that we are well-prepared 1o navigate the chalienges and capilalize
on the opporiuniies that come our way.

Industry Risk
Emtertainment indusiry Is Righly competitive with ever changing audience demands and rends crealing an emdronment
ol stiff competition with domestic as well as international players all competing for the audience time.

With increasing availabilty of afford abla internet plans, smart ohoenes and laptops, digilal media sector has ballooned
te new heights piquing the interest of many new entrants in the industry along with ever increasing migration of
media sponsars to digital media from television. In response o rapid growth 0 digital sphere, the Company has
daveloped a digltal madia sirategy to makes most of this opportunity,

External Risk

The advertisement revenues of the meadia industry are inextricably linked 1o the economic growth of the country,
Poor macro-economic environmenl can adversely impact the advertising revenues of the Company, which is the
largest component of our revenues.

Thie country's recurring Current Account Defict (CAD) continues to exart prassure on the PKR-USD exchangs rate,
lgaving the sconamy vulnerable o sudden fluctuations,

Regulatory Risk
Any changes in law and regulations could have a matenal impact on the revenues and cost of doing business for
the Company.

Cash Flow And Liquidity

The Company is constantly monitaring the cash flows te ensure overall iguidity. The Company was able to manage
its operating cash flows by ensuring tight credit controls and reduced indirect costs over the course of the year, The
Company also menaged to reap interest and foreign exchange rates gains taking edvantage of hedging opportunities,

ESG Standards And Corporate Social Responsibility

The board is committed to cur Corporate Social Responsibiliies (CSR) and Integration of sound ESG practices in
Companys day-to-day business activities. The Company has spent about PKR 85.4 M an donallons in cash dunng
the financial year

We believe that sustainable business practices are essential for creating long-term value for our stakeholders: Our
environmental efiorts focus on optimizing resource usage, tracking of energy consumption and managing wasla
responsibly. Soclally, we priontize employes welfare, diversity, and community engagemens. Our govemance framework
Is designed o ensure transparency, accountability, and ethical business conduct,

Asg part of our Corporate Social Responsibility (C5R) eflorts, HUM Network has commitied a generous portion of each
years annual net profits for the education of underprivileged children. The donations made are being utilized to support
vanous schools in Karachi, adopted by Momina & Duraid Foundations to provide quality education to underprivileged
children

This ig a long-term praject. with renovations and academic improvements being implemented In phases. During the
first phase of this project, the government schools under DOMC Central have been adopted through a public-private

%
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parinership inhative. These schools, previously in g state of severe disrepair due o a lack of funding and attention, ware
missing assential faciities such as toilets, had damaged sewer systerms, leaking roofs, no drainage, pesling paint,
inadequate furniture, and outdated teaching mathods

Comprahensive renovalions have baen initiated to address thesa lssues Including upgrading the infrastruciure, providing
basic faciiities, and Introducing & madern academic sysiam. To ensure guality education, gualified private teachers
have baan amployed along with offering training In moadem teaching methods to existing staf, bringing them lo same
competitive level as private schools,

So far, we have successiully renovated multple schools, with the new academic system fully operational. Several more
schools ara slated for complebon by the start of the next academic session, with work already undarway,

Curing Decermpber 2024, HML, In parinership with police depariments across all four provinces and Shell Pakistan,
launched a road safety campaign emphasizing driver licensing and the use of helmets and saat belts, The campalgn
airmed to improve road safety by raising public awareness and promoling adherance to traffic regulations.

As part of our ongoing CSA intiatves, HMNL partnered with indus Hosprtal and the Pakistan Red Crescant to organize
bBlood danation drives in September 2024 and Fakruary 2025, Thase drives form a caniral elemenl of CEO's Vision
2025, which seeks to scale up contributions by targeting the collection of 8,000 pints of blood in 2025
in April 2025, HUM Network Limited strengthened its social impact agenda by signing a Memorandum of Understanding
with Sahil Wellare. Tha colleboration aims to raise awaraness and extend outreach lor community sarvice projects
through mediz support and strategic parmnerships.

Gender Diversity And Equality

HUM Metwork Limited is commitied to fostering a culiure of gender diversity and equality. We believe that a diverse
workforce s essantial for driving Innovation, creatvity, and overall success. By praviding equal opportunities and creating
an inchusive erviranment, we alm to empower all employees and pasillon our company for long-term growth in loday's
competiive global marketplace. The current board, which includes three fermale members, exempliies our company's
commitmeant 1o gender diversity and inclusiity,

Employee Training & Development

As part of our annual appraisal exercise, each employee is assessed and counseled on Individual basis. Training
sessions are aranged on the basis of needs identified which creates growth opporiunities for employees and provide
us with highly maotivated and trained resource

Corporate Briefing Session

HUM Network Limited successfully held its Corporate Briefing Session (CBS) for the fiscal year 2024 on Cctober 28,
2024 The session aimed 1o provide stakeholders with detaiied insights into our company's performance and stralegic
direction. The Compamy's CEQ together with CFD led the prasentation, offering deeper insight to our financial results,
key accomplishrments, and future objectives. This event provided an imperiant platform for two-way dialague fostering
strong nwvestor ralatians.

STATUS OF THE BOARD DURING THE YEAR

The term of Board expired on August 22, 2020 and fresh election was scheduled for August 2020, Since the number
of eliglole candidates were equal to the number of directors fixed for election, the Company made the announcement
on August 13, 2020 under saction 159(4) of the Companies Act, 20717, The aforesaid election of directors was guestionad
by the ingligible candidates. Consaguantly, the elected directors also filed & Suit, The Honarable Sindh High Court
through Order dated: 21.08.2020 has directed the Company that the electons scheduled to be held on August 22,
2020 would be postponed and rescheduled subject to tha final decision by the leamead single Judge of CMA No. 6787
of 2020 fn Suit No. 268/2020. The final decisian of the court is stll awaited.

Future Prospects & Challenges

Pakistar's economy is showing clearer signs of recovery and renawed stabllization. Inflation has sased, financial
condilicrs have Improved, and growth orospects are strengthening, supported by govermment efforts o secure extemal
financing and restore stability. Nevertheless, despite these positive indicatars, economic activity remaing slaw to gain
mamentuim, with lingering risks lied to debt obligations, exchange-rate pressures, and global uncertainty.

(=
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As part of HUM Network Limited's strategic vision to diversify its porifolic and create meaningful opporunities for
Pakistan's vouth, the upsoming launch of the Centre of Excellence in Gaming and Anirmation (CEGA) In Karachi and
Lahore marks a landmari initiative in our pipelines This initiative, awarded by lgnite Mational Technology Fund, is a
reflection of our commitrment to hamessing Palkistan's vast digital potential. CEGA will empower young people with
worid-class skliis in game development, animation, and emerging digital technologies. while providing startups with
the space and support lo innovate

Maanwhile, the entertamment industry is undergoing a fundamental shift toward digital platfiorms and OTT streaming.
HUM Network recognizes that embracing these emerging technologies is vital for long-term success. Our strategic
focus on digital expansion ensures alignment with changing audience preferences and global industry trends.
HLIM Metwork shall continue to uphold its commitment lowards Corporate Social Responsioility (CSR), with a strong
foous on education for underprivileged children. Through the Momina & Duraid Foundation, we have adopted and
renovated govemment schools in Karachl, upgrading Infrastructure and Introducing modem academic systems. This
long-term initiative s helping restore dignity fo public education and provide quality leaming opportunities for future
generatons,

With a legacy bullt on creativity, excellence. and inngvation, HUM Metwork remains commitied 10 delivenng prermium
content that exceads audience expectations while creating lasting value for stakeholders. Our strong brand portfolio,

coupled with continuous Investrnent In fresh conlent, positions us lor sustainable growth and rising profitability In the
years ahead.

Credit Rating
Following consistent improvernant in businese nsk profile of the Company. the Pakistan Cradil Rating Agency Limited

(PACRA) upgraded the long-term entity ratings of the Company 1o "AA-" fram “A+" while maintaining short-term entity
rating at ‘A1*. These ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk and the network's established market position.

Board Composition & Remuneration

Cormpesition of the Board and the names of membars of Board Commitiess may be referred o Statement of Compliance
with CCG,

Furthermare, the Board of Directors has a formal polisy and transparent procedures for remunaration of its directors

in accordance with Companies Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Hegulations
2018, Raeter note 32 o the unconsolidated tinancial statemants for remuneration detals.

Pattern of Shareholding
Fattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2025 is annexed with the annual report.
Meeting of The Directors

During the year, four [4] Board of Diregiors, tour [4] Audit Committes and ong [1] Human Resource & Remuneration
(HR & B) Cammittee rmeastings were held,

Altendance by each Director was as follows:

Hempof Dipscior O andanes | Mitedance | M Ramenen

Mr. Mazhar-ul-Hag Siddigqui 4

Ms. Sultana Siddigui 4 - 9
Mr. Sohail Ansar -4 4 1
Mrs. Mahtab Akbar Fashdi 1 1 £
Mr. Shunald Qurashi 2 2 -
Ms. Khush Bakht Shujat 2 -
Lt Gen. (F) Asit Yasin Malik" 1 1 -
Mr. Duraid Qurashi - 5
Muharmmad Ayub Younus Adhi .

* Lt Gen () Asil Yasin Malik resigned from the Board with effect from Cotober 21, 2024
{H) Asi i | i W m /;:%



ANNUAL REPORT 2025

Auditors

The present auditors Messer EY Ford Bhodes Chartered Acoountants shall retire and may be considered for re-
appointment for the year 2025-26.

Corporate Governance And Financial Reporting Framework

The tinancial staterments, preparad by the managament of the company, present fairly Its state of affairs, the result
of its operalions, cash flows snd changes in aguity.

Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

All frransactions with related parties ansing in the normal course of business are carried oul with normal commercial
terms and condition, as per HNL's refated party policy. The Company has not made related party transaction other
than those disclosed in the financial stalements,

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financlal statements and accountng
gstimates are basad on reascnable and prudent judgments.

Imernational Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable In Pakistan, have been followed In preparation of financial
statemeanis,

Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.

The value of mvestments of Pravident Fund operated by the Company as at June 30, 2025 (Unaudited) Is Rs. 568
milian [June 30, 2024 — Rs. 481 milllan].

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effactively implermented and monitored.
There are no significant doubts upon the Company's bility to continue as a going concern.

There has baen no meteral departure from the best practices of corporate governance, 85 detalled in the listing
regulations.

There has been no departure from the best practices of transfer prcing.
Cutstanding taxes and levies are givan in the MNotes 10 the Fnancial Statement,

Trading of shares by the Chiel Executive Officer, Olrectors, Chie! Financial Officer and Company Secretary, thelr
spouse and mingr children:

Acquisition Transfer

| Number of shares
CEQ - Mr Durald Qureshi - .
Director |
CFQ & Company Secretary | i _
Spouses & Minor Children | - :

Dividend And Appropriations
During thea fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, the Company has not declared any cash dividend.

The Board is not proposing a final payout to the sharehoidars with a resolve 1o utilize this growth In revenue and
operalions by directing the funds available with the Company to matenalize Boards plans of growih along with achigving
our vision of pecoming the largest madia network of Pakistan,

Ocliober 02, 2025
Karachi
- = =
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQUI
Ohief Executive Chairman & Director

@



'\

e
MNUAL REPORT 2028

\-—j Ll T T i LIMTTED

£/

Y S b
.:.u{'.u v 71

SRS B St ST F sy A I QUL sl nFhorersnre AL (e ENid e

55076
B BE SRS F T LIl reragnr

-Hf_ﬂ-!‘.'-:r‘:

M ANEA AT~ = e
I PAr ee s, 188 i L AADT IPF AdFeL 1110 e AcoIf AedrEY dﬁ:.j"?{"
P28, IAL,911 Lar DA LTA e 418,10 LI LM T J,;.n' £,
IFALE 8P, 118 IF A= SIF, " qe NLINFAS IS ALl M OF L}.#TLPJ
(3.FOAANLAFE) (1o AFOF92.0A8) (dccalrirdre) | (1ele,mve185) ,;,Lfl_.ir,j
Ll [ 2 P L& M A FAFL s 2P A Firelelf e (',::l;-ﬂ,; :}-.-f
(FAAMTYAFA) (1+8.47 2.8 ™) (i1, Al ea1) (A, +ra,AFT) = U
FAPT ALe Lol LPFO11L. ML Fotle 081 204 FAer AT A c‘jl:-ﬁf:w
FLAA I+ rre I,AS QLT 40
Gaded)

Moo o (0A 2h L AN 2 e 8a TSy bt Ui 2 s
= :.".ﬁdr.ul,"_.\: JJJQIJFJLLHUW_JL-HV h#FIJEJUhNJjIMQJJU}L*hJL- L?,I:F&-}FJLLHUWIJAF
Lﬁ':fthL 19A ‘T.J;u":._-.....u_)"L e "'Lh ILH' Iatpa Lq‘f;_.h!_, u*.u' '-ulliz.q,.u

rfL,rE-,_meﬁ”f_,r:JﬂJ'Jf LJJ"I.»-C,L-JC JA#’F..-U,_LJF ol j.fﬁLf;.,_;-uf VL bt AL s 22y (e
e L u’f P Y b;fw., Jol S ot o o [ AT AN b= e

e

el s ﬂiuﬂ:.-'_un‘u#uf..nw;..ﬁL,r:_uh:ﬁ..f_n.J_.Jbtg._,Lfﬂrd.iu_.:.J_,j..c-rf;_,,...-r«m e
*'Tn\_fji;‘lﬁﬁ J._.._,.»'ui'ﬂ,l'ﬁ';.,if,nmﬁm ‘sdrr-a.a-lzgxf_.Jb'_LLffﬁ..ng,”; Lore 2 L Lindl
SAAL L Fe nasf  JIAL AR e s (Bt U2l o $ass 2o e ;_,,f’.;l.-l‘r"AL.rL-*
et gl t:)?‘!;i,ﬁ_,“' L

A9

Sl S n J_.s,;-,f,# Bl Lo tpblenl Adn ol unr® ke L Lraiifenzy
.'"'r'

= $FTsbidie | L-KL-U‘GJ.LL'{QJTJ}._,r""rg._ﬁf-,.,uj;,&ﬂhTJ;g;&g;J‘"—’ﬁJL—

/@%

S



f N
|C..wun| REPORT 2025
// il i =]

G
CURB L AL g L F L L.'.r:..-ybd'::'U&r“"f..ﬁi.r‘u["br"l;;.l.é. S s r_-_rg;,,'vg
.uu.@m:l;uw-uw:_,iu_._,m-ﬁ_ A NG, P A ) 7 PR gl 7
L,'L-‘HLI:J’AFM&JJUJ"T:_ Uu)r"'UL/'* "l u-;}:j'idj }"/l’fd"!"jz: LJWJ'-L,;;-"_- u!ff-ul"fig,.r.fﬂ;hﬂ'._fh‘f
|_,l"JL-f,_J_.-lfa’bip/”gk/’ppfukr‘ﬂfd!dr" 'y"ﬂb..u:.p fg-&wg#fudf‘ﬂs! fl.r.?iui{_)t_.ﬂl.b
.,LE’-‘:.:.:‘LPJJ_ 4_,,1"‘_'13

_;fgbbfguxfhslﬁgm,ghfruf e bby 2 bl SRS P e L A2 J(‘L,r".ﬁ-r,w,
Snsiesddegnte i 7 _,:L-*L,:Juu-u{_ﬂdvs’u hfurizsgl-.;rﬂ LIS e S in
...::_u.)t'..-r.“'f JLFA 'JJrfi;-J:_fr" .«!'u:‘_Jl?.r:.'( f:

J,:'f

.s:....?y“ﬁ._&d_z.s:*".Ln:L;f:.éi...ur’J r?ﬂkl.-r/-‘;shlcﬂ EGe Jg:..,;:.dlﬁ?wh["‘hk_?yﬁ_ﬂc"_l
J:’u{l.gm'l..-L'l’f 4‘_..; r“fduf_a.r"wurfr_.fn.g.'r[f'*’_.-*i::"gff,u!r.ul_-r.u..#fadhr.__JB"'quufsj’l
N2 N st 3dter Fre st b

UG IO - S B Fn e L L S e eI NI g 3 P 3 Frep i N1
-GBS ey Sl S sa kg LI Ao ikl FrAeL s §

:A-JI.P{‘T
o+ o A I - s 3~ ol ot -
JereZ o mal e Uit e bAUBU IR Py e i B QR VY B ol SR A LU

S SE SR TR At

Al

S r‘..r*._LJJ:qu" fh#'f,_,,f}mlc J‘-':LLJ*J’B’S;FLJJJ MU*IUL'.' U;,I__ -.L.w". n-r_,;_gtu rFaL.;L_".J_,,_,'L-fL
Sl Sess pni b S punl ud- i.m".f._,u,nf._,lﬁufu aLZ._.ﬁ;rﬁ.m S
“dbA PGl ;L;L.-_.bg WS L Bt S B G IS L

._.-)’._ZLJL, Byl e B G st LA L i U s o2l s N L B
-&yl'b*u/'rﬁ.._.fufrgr"?#h(:‘ré--E'U-I.L.MEJJ:I Er";r",_,'j’...'.-‘-_ ._.rlb"z.:’..ﬁa.hn.ww_.lr""uw*f U::-r‘
CSFAL Pl L S LI L et FASFE o }tiLde:JJ‘)f}bp )-'ua.f_'.éwfa_w{r Pl

-Jkr"’ffﬁ‘”

S

L SEL B Quk L S o P S Sus s p P GIR 2\ BEUML Sl .'.L-,,u.m;.mwa
/-543?"_5'”* JTHIJ:.-'-,I"J;"LE-‘U'&-'!‘JJFLJWL_-C’-J:-K *l;-'f{.gufn..ﬁu:ﬁul..ﬁ}ff Uﬁ'r_-lul Tl s rL,_,ll.‘-’fL
"ﬂ.,}u:’..f:"uﬁ'L L}L"r#“ J‘!Fuupfuﬁfd-a—mﬂb‘r‘:‘&uﬁmp' ui};’luﬁuﬂia—uﬂ LF'__,--"'L L}L-’E’;j"___l'_@d’}
_.._._,:/E\L-',_,ri.bLﬂLSJ- u._.u!._g;;_.fb-':.l.__(:': J:th,r_;_,;r._?L«wudjd J-*'_-"'l-._.-'fj.l'bj'f"'._.. .-’u -

7



VC
. cepoRT 2028
‘j/ i

Worr EL L S U S e LA S vl SR SR el T Somrofit w2 LT

-
-l

o il s oS
J{'_/’u':__m,’zssrdjﬁr‘br::"dih{;;li L LHJ’*’('*L‘H-"_rfJ-Ff:’:rl J’er"s_ffz_ufni.#v - ;.ﬂ_,,g_..,a"
_L--J"' J‘r FLMVIW!".—-L’KAU"};)’DPH{QT.«-LJJ

L:u g I 1:* ffﬁ_bbr/!’tLr!—-!de-r‘-rLf—-LLﬁfﬁ I ELG o B PRI s!ﬁdffuwuwu{.*
-f_mﬂh’_/ﬁ.r :rfa_.m,—._._, Feed i S u:J’rarruL, e Sk g A
lfgiﬂf#blp}ﬁ:dha.#ﬁh{c.lh Sty f,,_....,_,""',:-..L;;I;uJLuKAI..f(.{,r"-.-gth‘J-...-H/’#.-f'nl,:
-t
Qlad st Zh e retr s !.l.-"._..-f' FIN0 4 i'tu"’" Jp- Jfﬁ:uﬁb@r‘.ﬁf;’du Fbtfj,f.&lu*gz'.ﬂ__/‘h JL-._,"‘
BRI BBl L St wJquf 4@*11.4_;%& _,Jr(;u..ﬁiml) ot " P L
L8, L»LmIJL{'._.J i Azt L—.ﬁbi:ut,fL ~,;";,,_L,frulf.,,r";u 8o Ll ALY ...-J.AJ"La_;,-
-ué'ggx;ﬂ‘;-’-fr’ E Fep Hosihomzie S UsP U dos A D ioe Sy e s

(MY I
Ur&jjjyuklxhﬁ_,ﬂb J_.;.;_,r:-»- .;_I.J_.;»-r;,ril,_;lmfuwu.wf le E24_f !E!J#U*"’ul!rry—ﬂ U fasTe s
ahrwb e m o i Ay -uruln_«-’;';..fblﬂuh Sumtyd i ;J_...__ﬁ";rur"’ WL w2 sed L
_E‘rfl}" Crul L-:.rr!.: Iy 1 :f.d_.ffh."...*y“d': Gkl A f._,iL-f' s lé

LA

Jf!ir’?fdmfﬁw,ﬂuL-r-,_,_.',t"':,fi"lr..-_b' |.:r1..f U'H..r’“-!uL’rluL-h_.rﬁ?*‘L,CL;.ﬂ#yr”?_L,JMJ:.:IJ“*’._JF:’
;LJ’J;JJKULL:,_,CU"*IJI sl 5 u.es’l:irw.«,-ur..ﬂ_ure'dm._.._+ PSPl .,_,IL-JLJI:.I Kos 7. Ls"]_,u-—u"r._,rj--;
A Ll BeTEs 8 rf_,;"u:L;.ﬂ.ﬂr_r.a..fbﬁis'.,ubr_rztr*,rr di,;m_.u Iyr g s S 38
- llrah Yk 7L UJJHJJ;F.&'J% o= LfLJ.e" b'ﬁ)u‘f._..-':j.:.;-f

'.ulw!Ulrf*

e UK A unta bl LGV .,,-*!h...mLL«.,,r:;uu.»Layaﬂw;r-ng S

ALl A ST R IR G e Uit g P SR = L2 A Pl s

NS P e By ;r‘,-‘-_.;:sk“ ~L.;.».J.Ld’{,f :..:ﬁ.rp.,.ﬁbl.fﬁ._,r'; AN S f sChty
SRELRendA L ue bttt S SR L1l ST e

e NN S sl 'J’J‘fl_:h#"u;ml.!(l/'uw‘b ﬁfa-'.iuﬁ;aﬂ}ﬂﬁ:bbﬁ::-q—f%-li.u;:q:f:{ﬁjf;b{f}p”

=

o}

S



NE
‘) @'z.[ﬁfﬂ‘ﬂ?ﬁﬁg
-'*"9:5.}} 7 L‘f‘:j

- B - 0 - S ® e e i al -~ r Y= =
|_5.r|;u g1l |..dfuf.kr: d:ﬁ;fflfdzﬁﬁ; L";J,g:’fr‘:'_!-‘,*uf:'_:' f‘FLﬁ-’u.iaJFc:.Li J;;;:"»"_..“‘EHJE;..._;;U'L-*:L}LJF%.F._JJ:.::"
-yrlfgd{;:._ﬁlﬁl

DI SslE
SFTa e 3 b Uste mama e SN e JEL A S Al fe b G S o bt e

- i :;JL)F‘E‘
*. :&CF Fjljrj:k':u‘_'iﬁ-,u .;...,:lg..r:-s 2 2_'.:" oy

Sl g |

-

b }‘L,r..,.f .
.:,..:_E,."lufﬁ}# -

P
Pslels
-..-':af:‘ -
—adt -1

b

4_'--",#[:..‘ i el = b 5?.-"1;_"-#“ =

_.:"_L'-‘);.a;,-’: E;__:{i . ,r‘r;{ti ....'j:;f:ﬂ..':-_-?r el St Lrﬁ'}%ﬁmﬁkdk ARG UJ,MJC'-L.-’: = vt

Jrlla
u:!‘:pd,ul'l'h!'fifﬁ:«edkaf- WLy l‘;gi-;:idxl_.sxi'gu@f.:_ LF;EZ‘I.‘J"{, 90 g} db-‘l’ﬁ‘ﬁ;ﬁluff.{ip%;h
- bl J/ul

%—_fl%#..g ,?;’_E.Ll;x ', o L'V‘LLEJF;-L fff_*-iu_': ,;'F:‘ .J-ff"..ri.,-"_-' ?J@‘E'—ﬁﬁ:lﬁﬁ u"?r..a-{;g, LE.FJL:&F)‘" 5 ._i}‘hj 5 basal
S FenSne it Ve SGVe sl EFta i JIE o B Ur Lib iy e s S P
S Fwnziwlablinn L L) ST b TP Qe it ld g nzey 1l

~e e B2l

e IE;‘!J =
Sl 3k SWhpsd L2 stobunas Sl Bl one 3/ 2 Inf fosd Lni e 13 il
Wd L2 b2 6P e santes S S b sl P B by e VL L8 S 5aE
- Uuigie
it g LS e §E e e R s B i Stz w2 u L

- PP h,,lé_.,,f._*..._._f_i J".;J:"Ez[“:.'r%... l-'LcJ.%'f..:-L,,ﬂ/h".'-ﬁlf — AL rr 174 = i Senle |;|;EJJ';?LEE;L}H&E=I&J{H
e :;)ufféi sl Elrd 19T



HUM REPORT 20235

/ WA MET o O LISITEDR

el
.-L_L;‘thr_.uﬁ.?gls’lflu'ﬂlfau .*;.J‘LL#JLrLfLr._‘_,tFujf_..LJlbf:_ch_.ﬁaﬂ g e .,._,,..
gl Aed Lol ine trig ol

£-J_:I L}!’:L??ufj__.’} 'l::&_-’_rfl'q_;l.u- VMJ:'_ ._,.J.f.!Lk ﬂrL’_-dL""JJf JL,..VL'-- ..r:'.-‘:l’—-.-ri"i ’l};-ﬂff'ﬂ"
id}JE‘-qu‘:uer‘ = _r_a.m*’._fu;‘)gfwﬂjuﬁuz_ . _JJ,...L,;*!.J._fﬁLyJ*’:mvﬁv
...LUJL-L}.‘._J{;LML,- :ud.*.-'_._gl.nﬂubunLuLm:. ﬁ_ﬂf_.ﬁ{ .

) | 20y
Lo (L 51830 SF Ur 2 e Bz G2 S8 ToEI G o e

> L B
—e e B

.r'f._:ll.--' I....r’_ [y ..fl..-’nL,f...-fﬁLr..; J I.‘.'fnl ffd;”n'ubﬂ' L Fa‘_fdrr_fu hibdasi6iasSpny ¥ le i
S 4"_-.!"',-"'::'1—-'1.?" :D!Jd.dn rJ’U L; k'u_)burrfd- |:II"'.-'.-"{:| T A ijhffhfzr'uﬁifdﬂbﬁuf)i{fF

Y ALY
- L,If:.rlu:Lf...rr;.lg.J_J.rlyF}-ldﬂ'{I__,_, iy uﬂ’;_,':bir"n'ur'u

t{ﬁ}ganff

L‘|£jr1:_-b'.7',’.:.'l’b”|.L,'LFLJU!LJ'Jt:u‘..l |»-"...+.-ﬁ.z-'n...-‘v"1jf :.*_Uu L"'&J"r:,{-:ﬁ' rf.-”_'l._r__;..L-Lf';rrL[uaJJ; “J

f 'JLFunl...-rflr'_.ﬁ:_.uﬂu.a b;dl ..'ﬁial)‘é:rﬁ'!hfwLJ,&'JU‘J,»__QIJJ_VFQ,_I’)"?’-G r""r,__,L.,-,-r
-l .rLE bd"/f

Wl s E et s GRS
rFhe Ll YR A( FEule S QWP L,ﬂu_frﬁ“ fqﬂ-‘}ﬁ;Lu €2 insnl( S TR g s Ji_ilrg'jj’r‘a.fhbi
_,_,;“.f"._,,r:.—u!.ﬁ’."‘ .'I'"J.-Wufi.-uu- A Q.FE;’-E-L L;’-"L'_JUHLJL-'L;L—'.L-

JL!..I-‘;‘KL:.-|.*ﬂijy?h’_ﬁlb‘-uﬁdﬂﬁhLLIFJ-Q,JJJ.U}lbdl.-i..:jz_;.'!'....ﬁ-"f_..lI.r"é’_)d)h;gﬂ.ﬁ‘i. S Bt
OS2 s G A = AL S Fonsns LB, u..m[f it r_c..LJ**Lb ru’&’:_.d..h_.-mrm/:JLwL

L e

y?;fif.L,JL Z f._,.l{.z.l.u-‘.-ﬂ?l.r‘..f FRL oL s i i FE tWBE TAN ) s Gl
Ly r“i}ﬁg;h&{u_{p*ﬁ_ Fhbg i e e i 1A S s L I_,Lr’:—l-bﬂ.-.'{u-

——

..f.;ufg?r‘l AL, Ll P S il ALucuﬁ;_#fugﬂ'u‘J’iﬂ = '»uﬂ/'u -:...-r“‘d.*._,"#’_f.
e SISl b u::uﬂ.JLauum&iJ#r._;. iz il Sl S PGS T
_-i--.lf‘lrl"?-,}&-'#._-‘{.ﬂh, ;H"L‘Fi JDJJJS"L&!KJE?;L; JU.!L,E:,LJ!JI }:'_’L,,J!"”ub u\,"'Lf:’..' *HLJ:""UJLJ'



|hHU|ﬂ-| -.,JJJQRT»J:ES
J’ R

b1/ B S e Ll S i B MG S P e YA TN £l L LS Sl
fufft‘-_.ddr"lr’w'fl_{u:“ )&JJJ#E;'?FJJIJJJJJE_I-.urLJa.w Laff‘ﬁ._,tl d.;.hbu_;fhd;hﬂ_::- Ju
£ L»J.u;f,' Flagr s

Alr_u.al.fb/.q_, -z.-y“"i' du:':ﬁldg-,}'.r_ Jul/;rb_}‘?kﬁiu‘iyL-JLth ujﬁm’L-ﬁ.uLfb’ (LtFid #‘u..f...
L l.p-!".J'{.L".f'E Ia..r’JJ'"E.J

e USRS J{,s}f&j'“iu..fl;.un;iLJI;'-J"LJ'E..,IJ:‘LL;J#AZJ:ffus;bf_vf‘l_grﬁhuc Qe
-WLL;J:"’;JLJ’I’ s .-.fr.g..t._,. ,r’}'_.i. I;ﬁfg’r;_..pﬂﬂ:fﬂjﬂ fh’:&-““ﬁ’fui -lf"l. Juj.._,lbl"‘l .__;Lﬁ..,...#'..ul

,_,r:‘r-m;-L,-,im,r-rf"f-f';_::.LJ’[_L::_-II};&L:.;-_J/@@HLAI Jesiai g ji,_}.:.-’iﬂuuld’ s
SN O A KL RS 2 Vel (OO T L 7 - YO P “g,"'.rrh:...g,-l"Ll?_.-s.l"ALu..Lk*L u#

-

s - o - - - e £a oo b -
sl L s s S ae LI F L P Pl #I SN E rdi pro s e et
-3 b/ Eﬂ:ﬁ b .,_i*fu,!b:ff e sd T r_.,rLr':- Uy :.«-‘A&{,{k*é_:-.xid: Tif:'&

g-l‘yl.-wlf,ﬁjk
4_'1. "l_‘; d:“';:l-...-’llr' -_‘.-ML,JJJU:"'.J:'—.P"J"-& r,;d._..s.s._,sﬁfffz._humw., _J:J-;*['“
oS PE L H u:uamhwu{,.urb LIFE )DL ,u..f('l/ur-*un..-,&._.jﬂf
BNV o AT :’._J" Saet SEAUE ErpL s St 2 b e d 570

(At oSt
;r:.:uﬁq_rg",;ﬂ_.&u Las s B’;—rﬁj:; LUI:J&;JL-—*”I:;E. UG P s b 2L Pk dile
_{__t’,_{#*fful'b:,.’ia..-_::f)jl;|,}Llifj_wru:r)!|.l__t'..ﬂ.)_¢d|fi—d!¢._—--.‘r:

'J’-E‘I‘-z_uj,rﬁ'

_wwﬂ,rﬁ,rl Wi (A0 )™ s g K EIAL Qb Zoraro i gliirere, :‘l me.mf_m_..p
Sl i m...-.i_.s'rwr-ru-J.;’ifmffr;_,w’&‘”'u'a_m__rJu J.e:luu’.els,_}uru.rk'!.u.dr
Lr"_ur’w_r)(l-*r-.«h,.Lfn..;,LJ_.JSLE-J)f-..Ar.-Jg{l,ﬁu;-J,f',-,»-awi P o
. ntd s B~

SEW s

J'J.;df';j’rju”):;;'dl_i...-LF-‘TJU;‘JL,.'!J'}HFJLE%--&J—!nu':rr‘r"" S i.l':.'a'id_mujr"()fﬂ:,:/ﬁ Pr st 3
=Sl J-Jll.w'JJL' LJL,ILUE’;_FJ._.«LE-'LF‘_LE:,:H”F;JF ._.:'Lmq(r)u _.wnfﬂ_w r,,,,u,;ui
ﬁufm u...rf__r;,s:\fﬂ.sm,-,Ig...,fnpﬂﬁ.w:,wﬁ_wxl,-..,-f'.fb LUy - B a 5505
. luﬂd;f.eng;’-..,LB-r.Lux_n.wrr._.f.ﬁ.&u‘?_, 1AL r’r*ry-*;nr‘us_,ﬁuffvr:qmar-rgﬂ».wfl
s ;Lh-'ﬁ’-&fff..;)u

/C;%.

7



)CIN‘,U;L MLPOR'!; "132'5
-—/ ] BT

?:%JJJ’GJJW

_#fﬁ;;:f J...-"'F:.-ubj-lrijfhﬁiw A LIbJL-LJHJ:CJEJ_ L] I/b_.—leL,. I *E’; IJHJI:EL,C...--"’J;_,JL-JFL
..J':JJL/*,'.— QUL PUIWETE L_,'*"',-‘.rsfféw.au.rad :,,,,'L-‘,fv b*:F:LZ.LJ{.xLH...HLﬂ - _Jhl-r‘"‘r_,_.l,-*,fl.-ﬁ'b-l
-7 .:J,r".*:-'-',ﬁ-—-”:;..,lk'ﬂ‘ifu Gaalals

mﬂ.ui.j;fJJ.—.WJ‘-.LEI.&;(?ir‘c_nJ.__r'_._,'J}ii'!uLJ L.lstL-.ur"'r._J #i'ﬁ"&'ﬁbdﬁ ‘s...u*‘...f;:...-r,r"-
VU s P il 56 D sy e S UL BE {u'LﬁJlu)ﬂyi-bﬂi'lJ"'rf'_:Lw‘ -
deu,_,,.. PGS J‘ér _.,f*;i,f ):,u”:’n.:_F;_j.gi,,_,-F-r_hbh’..:_uﬂ_,lr*?fJ.-'r o iJ;_,LJI;M"‘E'JmI{_
P f.-_/rl-r_-'!."fu '..Jfé L.u.g/uf-:'._‘ui.‘-lul B r" I Az ¥

I.c'r,g"s’l.J- .jf:..t‘/ﬁ.ﬂ‘lﬂ.ﬂ;_{-rﬁ;uﬁmul"_iﬁdw ;rudsmff_rh L}:’:;. (3 F ey ,ﬂ:" OO
b TARL b8 S s 0 B s St b iblp s % lL,P’:;_ufU.«e-.J_JLL;J b Z e dalih s

gr"&,.ubufﬁﬂ.'ﬁuyl,,ﬂf_dfi deu_{h£ "'5,”,/.'}*“’?[;;:_. fﬁl, .,fs"_f.i( ,_,Hlbrjd.'f:,_ﬁ}ii"_;h_f;
M, lﬁr'r.eFf.L.be.rff.r" ..J_':*':f-k'r‘f% -'rdr'ur.r .ap;!'dﬂd/ﬁfﬁuﬂ/ h_.”u'i.L;':f:CiLS.rb'f L& f;
_Lﬁjgff'fﬁwhw;ufdlu_l

..Lv'L!fiﬁ..";?:_...ul:Tj'{,,r.,J'_?ﬁ’_JI:‘, f*f:f:r"Ej J‘UL _,J;LM..ILt‘{,*::lf‘/pr'-.-cj.z.-r‘-tf:b*J....-m.rleLv-._.-ﬂ-"llﬂgf‘a.
H-L..-.--’ilKLLFIQ-VL#!'J.{:'#iL_L;JJﬁ

BrafetS

Lﬂ-‘:;.- 4,_, e !.L-ug.&u}:"d’f.{.{lfﬂwﬁ_ﬁx_e;)ubfLr #ﬁlﬂ "b,;_;whr";,ﬁf
L,....r:...-» ulf._«rl._:rfcj:'r‘w_/h’_u*)hI..r,.rv..f..r_fﬂf,,. uie."'-h;d.uf.ﬁ‘r_h. ur.lrl’-l 3
=0, d.f,-;'lhr:_. =g

) fﬁ.jbﬂ_uld:.ﬂ L.( i

Bl L AL GG E AL i JE

L L& 1Ly -,«J"uh{g"}f.:.;Jg;b’_&?;f);rj“wnr.f_lﬁ,ﬁ. R L AT e e
_é.ﬁ?u-ﬁ?;:‘bi( Financial Statements 2:{ = T2 slae ~ 8y K )..ilir‘-ulu"-J!\..wE‘i,

HOT Ii’..fﬂ:rf-‘-'i

e AL g 12 K et LB e R

B G

...f.!r' -M-"‘LJ.*"'{F}...U f.f{, -'fr"_.aJ'fL,J JJ"-J!I(F}JbJU‘Jl—-’JJ (W}JEQJ,‘LJ'JJUJJ" |||..-|,;,'|13.!

¢

~



-

ChHUJ“ -..F‘QRT i-:.EE
2 \‘(ﬂ/ UMNET

e St P A Ay

ity | SBEELT | STy AL
Nt =S |
" Bt |

[ r szl

: " ~ _;Alu‘:-’l_l;

‘ ' Gt 1o

r r :r_’ )',._,h_,_,u;

r e a7 |

| ' L TGN 2 e

" J:},EJJ._..LJ-:

” STt |

EnF e undrr N Lo ae TG );_Jﬂ..!r*-)

:__FJ,.‘;-JT

S PN L L erera e S S e SR T 3323081 T

J}[‘ 7 (\.ﬁ#{id”‘iﬁ“’f

__J’Jip_.smu;,{,vutuimsﬂﬁumiffrLL,ﬂ-...uuziJf.-_ﬁJ "~LJLJJ,JJLF__:LrL, 1 E
-
IS 2 S APy W Y alt

L Wiy il 2 UJL-.-.#L J{hfﬁ.JJLJ;’MJJlJiélJJu-[‘L-J'u_rJH:JF’)JE‘fJL,f/ Gohabrl
-r_.;_fucv:fd,}.:wd@f o o st bR b e o dedzurdec il ndidl
o LBy ot e UL B U A e s JQLIJ'DL;_,';:*%..@WI__;E#
e JIGsa St FIBE LT SRl By SIS S S i

ce SN B TAL L g 2

g -3 LVt J&*ﬁfrru:lﬂ]ff SR Ju;f,-i_,fjﬂ_uunj_bf_hé—cﬂr_h.rbdd"rr
Ui.uuﬁ""mgﬁf(ur_d‘ J:___"fuf""ff

ixl-_,:ii.f SOE T 2 5§ vy el o F

R TN g NI AT BB

e VUAAN o u,s.,_-_wuw‘ .r._ﬁ-']ff ity P e K btnl FiP
e VAN = Ky g AL i 12

S ILIL =t Qg Lt



2 @Uﬂl EPORT 2025
1l T LIMTTE

e Jibas ARSI Juj el ol -f G Al A g TSy, A A e W
JA; J=

o AT n
Jl"ﬁ"'..-i.hlﬂ'.#//'[!r:
S A Fins
3

o
fm e sl o3

_tJ’L,r::i;wﬁig;.-_,r*'-’B'-'u”l e Jididini xf’lffwai-mr-

-".-/'J.f Usld,&fﬂr.lﬁwir“}fc_t'fﬁ‘va -"...E‘ J-’ll_,l"if IJLJ-"-;-:‘.-L—,MKL.;‘( JJE&J@V«J‘#I_.{Q_L.JJ.JKﬂ:’_. (T
_uf..Ll-.;_f;..—r L,;.alﬁ-a.-_..,xsuufl.f_é,-..fH u WUJ;J*J;@.&G’% LU G kel L)
LU

JJJHLPJJLLLYIE:J_W;&J‘KJ;'!"‘:_J:“JJJEL—_IL-'L JPe, ,E!Ll__j;uﬂu_y’}u;,_fug
..é.lﬂr‘.fdl.'-"lu’:/ﬁ.r' Ua'ird .,ﬂfnr (W fffdhtiﬂf_ﬂﬂr’f“; i /E.Hr

—— J,rfrf.r..:f.wf

.r-m,:?ﬁ T fu’;rf

a1
s




-
(( ni};jl REPORT 2025
‘ ‘/ L " LisiEg

Report Of The Directors On Consolidated
Financial Statements

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are pleasad to submit the Annual Consclidated Financial Statemants along
with the Auditors Report therecn for the year ended June 30, 2025.

The consolidated financial slatements comprise of group companies consisting of;

Cﬁl’l‘lpﬂﬂ? ﬂﬂﬂiﬂl‘l Hﬂlﬂﬁﬂl‘lﬂhip Sharahuldlng %
Skyline Publications (Privata) Limited Pakistan | Subsidiary 100%
| HUM TV Inc. Usa ' Subsidiary 100%
HUM Network FZ LLC Dubai . Subsidiary 100%
HUM Natwork UK Limited United Kingdom | Subsidiary 100%
HUM Co. (Private) Lirmited Pakistan Subsidiary 100%
HUM Mart (Private] Limited Pakistan | Subsidiary 70%
Tower Sporis (Private) Limited Pakistan : Subsidiary 100%
| Sphere Ventures (Private) Limiled Pakistan | Subsidiary 100%
TS3FZLLC Dubsai | Indirect Subsidiary 100%

For the financial year ended Junea 30, 2025 the group recorded revenue of Rs, 11,479 million (June 30, 2024: Rs,
12,282 million) and profit after tax of Rs. 1,236 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 2 925 milion), The results transiate into
gamings per share of As. 1.09 (FY 2024: As. 2 58).

The Diractors’ Report on HUM Netwaork Limited for the year ended June 30, 2025 has been separately presentad in
the annual report

October 2, 2025
Karachi
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIGQUI
Chial Exacutive Chairman & Dirsclor
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Code of ethics & business practices
1. Introduction

1.1 The provisions of this Code as sel forth are mandatory, and full compliance is expected under all circumstances.
The Code affirms the Company's commitment to uphald high moral and ethical standards and specifies the basic
narns of behavior for those who are invalved In representing the Company |L.&. every director or every employes
or other person(s) associated or working with the Company (hereinafter collectively referred o as "Members or We
or Us or Our').

1.2 Failure to comply with the Code can resuit in conseguences for both the individual and the Company. The Company
can impose appropriate discipling which may [nclude discharge for vinlations of the Code Furthermaore, conduct
that violates the Code may also violate federal or provingial law and could subisct both the Company and the
individual 1o prosecutions and legal sanclions.

1.3 All members are respeonsitle for complying with the Code. Any director or employes who becomes aware of 2
viglation or possible viclation of the Code must report that information immediately o hisher superior or a senior
afficer of the Company ar the audit committee of the Board of Directers. |t is a viclation of the Code to discnminate
or retaliate sgainst any parson for reporting such information

2. Build Trust and Credibility

2.1 The success of our business i dependant on the nist and confidence wa earm from our employees, directors and
shareholders. We gain credibility Iy adhenng to our commitments, displaying honesty and integrity and reaching
Company goals solely through honorable conduct It is easy to say what we must do, but the proof Is m our actions
Liltimately, we will be [udged on what we do.

3. Compliance with the Law

3.1 Company’'s commitment to infegrity beging with complying with laws, rules and regulations where we do business
Further, each of us must have an understanding of the company policies, laws, rules and regulations that apply to
our specific roles 1If we are unsure of whether a contemplated action Is permitted by law or Company policy of In
case of any other ambiguity, we should seek the advice from the HR DepanmentHR & R Committes/ Company's
Legal Counsel! Audit Commitlee as the case may be. We are responsible for preventing violations of law and for
reporing to the appropriate personis; if we see possible viclations,

3.2 Many of the Company's acthvities are subject to complex and changing faws. Ignorance of the law is not a defense
Accordinaly. Members must diligently ensura that thay are aware of, and that thair conduct cannot be interpreted
as bedng in contravention of laws governing the affairs of the Company

4. Confidential and Proprietary Information

4 1 Intagral to the Company’'s business success s our protection of confidential company nformation, as weil as
nonpublic Information entrusted o us by employees, customers and other business partners. Confidential and
proprietary information includes such things as pricing and financial data, cuslomer names/addresses or nonpublic
Imformation about other companies, Inciuding current or potential supplier and vendors, We will not disclose
canfidential and nonpublic Inforrmation without a valld business purpose and praper authorization.

4.2 Certain records, reports, papers, processes, plans and methoas of the Company or to which the Company has
been permitied access are considerad to be secret and confidential by the GCompany or the party who has pemmitted
access thereto, and employess and Directars are prohibited from revealing information conceming such matters
without proper authorization

4 3 Directors, Individuals; clients, egencies, investors and the public should have information about the Comparny
Bs 1% necessary for them adeguatsly 1o judge the Company and is activties. The Company believes that full and
complets reparting to governmantal agancies and (ke provision of information to the public as required canstitutes
a responsible and workable approach to disclosure. However, the Company except as required by law, will nat
disclose information important o its competitive effectreness or which might viclate the private nghts of imdnaduals,
enterprises or ingtitutions. Employes and Directors are theredore prohibited from discussing or disclosing any secrel
or confidential Informalion about the Company or in the possassion of the Company uniess such disclosure has
bean authonzed by the Board of Directors and /for as required by the law

(=
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4.4 Al member shall comply with Company's policies and procedures relating to the retention and ordarly
dastruction of the Campany's documents.

4.5 Itis important that we respect the proprietary pghts of others. We will not acquire or seek [0 acquire imMproper means
of & competitor's trade secrefs or olher propristary or confidential information. We will not engage in unauthorized
use, copyving, distibution or alleralion of software or other intelleciusl properly

5. Use of Company Resources/Property

51 The empioyees and directors will always rmaintain in good condition Campany property/résources, which may be
ertrusted 1o them for official use during the course of employmant and shall retum all such propeny 1o the Company
prior fo relinguishment of herdis chargs, failing which the cost of the same will be recovered by the Company.

5.2 Company resources; including but not limited to the matenals, assets (moveable or immoveable), intellectual
property. equipment, electronic devices, telephones, Tax machings, emails, WhatsApp, mabileicel phongs, mobile
sims, camputers, laptops, Internet connecticnadevicas, social media accounts, digital platiorms, data and imformation
glc. ("Company Properly”) are provided for company buginess use only and no parsonal uae is panmiesible,

5.3 All employees and those who represent the Company are trusted o behave responsibly and use good judgment
to consenve company resources and properties, Head of the departments (HOD) are responslble for the resources
assigned to their departments and are empowerad (o resoive Issues concerming their proper use.

5.4 Mo employes shall be allowed or permitted to use Company Property in the conduct of an outside business orin
support of any rehgious, political or athar outside daly activity, except for company-requested suppor to nonprofit
organizations. Company will not solicit contributions nor distnbute non-work-related materials,

£.5 In order 1o protec! the interesis of the Company and/or other employees or associated persen or undsriakings,
the Compary reserves the right to monilor or review all data and information contalned on an employes’s company-
issued computir or electronic device, the use of the Intemet or Company's intranet. Company will not tolerate the
use of Company Property or other resources to create, access, store, print, solicit or send any maternials that are
harassing, threataning, abusve, sexually axplicit or othenvise offansive or inappropriata in any manner whatsoever,

6. Create a Culture of Open and Honest Communication

8.1 At the Company everyone should feel comfortable io-speak his or her mind, particularly with respect o athics
concems. Head of depariments have a responsibifity to create an cpen and supporiive envircniment whare employees
feel comfortiable raising such questions. We all banefit tfremeandously whean employess exarciae their power o
prevent mistakes or wrongdoing by asking the right duestions at the night times,

6.2 Employees are encouraged, in the first instance, 10 address such issues with their managersisuperior, as most

problems can be resolved swillly al (his stagse. I for any reason thal Is nol possible or if an employee is nol
cemiortable raising the issue with his or her manager/HOD, HR does operate with an opan-door palicy.

7. Gifts and Entertainment

7.1 Members shall not on behalf of the Company, furnish directly or indirectly, expensive gifis or provide excessive
entertainment or benalits (o other persons

7.2 Memibers whose duties permit thermn 1o do 5o, may furmish modest gifts, favors and entertainment to persons other
than pubilc officials, provided all of the following critena are met:

(a) The gifts are not In form of cash, bonds or other negoliable securllies and are of limited value so as nol lo be
capable of being interpreted as a bribe, payoft or other improper payment;

(b} they are made as a matier of general and accepted business practice and does not constitute unfair business
inducements thal would violate law, regulation or policies of the Company;

{c) they do not contravens any laws and are made in accordance with generally accepled ethical practices, and

{d) if subsegueantly disclosad to the public, thair provision would not in-any way embarrass the Company or the recipients
or reflect negatively on Company’s repulation;
o
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For example, reasonable expensss of the entertainment of current or prospective business associates or customers
are permissibis by employess whose duties embrace the providing of such entertainmeant, provided prior approval
from the CEO are obtained and proper accounting is made.

7.3 Members who award contracts of who can influence the allocation of business who create specifications that
result in the placament of business or who parlicipate in negotiation of contracls must be particularly carsful to
avoid actions that create the appearance of favoritism or that may adversely atfect the Company's reputation for
Impartality and fair dealing. The prudent coursa is 1o refuse & courtesy from a vendor when Company is nvolved
In choosing or reconfirming a suppller or under circumstances that would creale an imprassion that offering
courtesies is the way to obtain Company business

8. Public Officials

8.1 Al dealings between employees or directors of the Company and public officials should be transparent.

8.2 Even the appearance of impropriely in dealing with public officials is improper and unacceptable. Any parbcipation
directly or indirectly, in-any brbas, Kickbacks, ilegal gratuties indirect contributions or similar paymanis is axprassly
forpididen, whether or not they might further the business irerest of the Company. Maintenance of a high standard
of Integrty s of the uimost imporiance to the Company.

8.3 Since the fumishing, on behalf of the Compary. of even an inexpensive gift or a modest entertainment or benefit
io a public official may be apen to the interpretation that it was fumished llegally to secure the use of hisher
influsnce as pubhc official, no such gift. entertainment or benatit may be fJumished by an employes or director,

9. Political Contributions

9.1 The use of the Company's funds, goods or senvices as confributions o poliical parties, candidates or campalans
is speaifically forbiddean,

9.2 Contributions inciude maney or anything having value, such as loans, sernices, entertainment, trips and the use
of the Company's faciliies or assets.

10. Personal Gain

10.1 Directars or employees shall not use thair status 1o obiain personal gain from those doing or seeking o do business
with 1he Company

10.2 Excapt a5 heranafter provided, employees and directors should neither sesk ror accept gifts, payments, senvices,
foes, special valuable privilegas, pleasurs ar vacalion irips or accormmodations or lgans from any persons (axcep!,
In the case of loans, from persans In the business of lending and Ihen only on comventional lerms) or from any
organization or group that does or is seeking 1o do business with the Company or any of its affiliates, or from a
competitor of the Company or any of fts affiiates, Howewver, employees and direciors may eccept modast gifis,
favors or entertainment up to the maxmum limits prescribed by the Board of Directors of the Company from tme
to lime provided that doing so is consistant with the legts relafing to the fumishing of pifts set forth In section-7

11. Conflicts of Interest

11.1 Members should aveid siuaiions in which thelr personal interests conflict or mighl confilct with ihelr responsiblliies
towards the Company. All such conflicts must be fully disclosed to the employae's superior or in the case of
directors, o the audit commillae of the Board of direciors

112 Members should seek to avold acqulring any Interesl or participation In any activities that would tend lo
a2, Deprve the Company of the time or attention required o periorm thefr duties property, or

b,  Creata an obligation or distraction which would affect thair judgrment or abilily 1o act solely in ihe Company's bes!
Irterast.

11.3 All members dgre reguired to disclose in writing o thesr supervisors or 1o the Audit Cammittes of the Board of
Rirectors all business, commercial or financial interasts or activiies where such interests or activilies might
reasohably be regarded as creating an actual or potential conflict wath their dubes to the Company. Every emplayes
of the Company who is charged with executive, managerial ar supenvisory responsibility and every Direclor Is
requirac 10 see that aclions taken and decision made within higfer junsdiclion are free frorm the inflluence ol any
Interasls that rmight reasonably be regarded as conflicting with those of the Company.

(=
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11.4If personal financial benehl is improperly gained by an ermployee or director, direclly or indirectly, or through a
spouse or child or a relative sharing the same residence as tha employea or director, 83 a result of his / her
employmeant or position with the Gormpany or by the use or misuse of the Company's property or of information
that is confidential to the Company’s business, then the employes or director must account to the Company for
arny benelit recelived, Mamber must do maote than imarely act within the law. They must act in such a manner that
their conduct will bear the closest scrutiny should circumstance demand that it be examined. Mot only actual
confiicts of interest but the very appesarance of confiict should be avoidad,

11.5 Deterrmining wheather a conflict of interest ewsts 15 not always easy to do. Member with a confict-of-interest quesbon
should sesk advice fram management. Before engaging in any actwty, transaction or refationship that might give
rize 1o a conflict of intarest, employees must saek review from their managers or the HR department’ Company's
Legal Counsel/Audit Commities.

12.Inside Information

12,7 Membears shall not usa for ther own financial gain or disciose for the use of others, inside informaton ootamed
as & result of thelr paaition within the Cormpany,

122 Members may find themselves in violatlon of the applicable securities laws If they misuse information not generally
known to the public and either rade or induce others to trade in the stock of the Company or in the stock of anather
Company. Spocilic confidential information would include but nat imited to financial information, information
concerning acguisitions or dispositians of properies and proposed acguisition or mergers with other companies,

12.3 Confidential, price-sensitive infarmation may only be acted on or passed on if the transfer of information is necessary
for legitimale business reasons ("Need to Know-Principal”) or unless il s reauired by the law. Anyons who has
such information may not recommend or initiate transactions with respect to any securities or other financial
instrurmiants the price of which may be affected by such informabon, The Company must be informed immedistety
if & member has reason o believe information is being or has been shared that violates insider trading regulations,

13. Client Information and Advice

131 Members must not seek to mislead the market or clients in any manner, When working with a client, appropriate
care shall be taken that the client receves information which is necessary for & reascnable decision by the client.
This includes information and advice given. Membaers shall not provide sdvice and/or recommaondations rogearding
any senice in which they are not appropriately autnonzed.

14. Authorization and Recording of Transactions and safekeeping of Assets

14.1 The Company's books and records must reflect, in an accurate, fair and bmely manner, the fransachons and
dieposition of assets of tha Cormpany. Membaear rasponsible for the Company's books and racords rmust ensure
that this oocours.

14.2 All transactions must be authorized and exécuted in accordance with the Instructions of management and the
Board of Direclors. They must be recorded so as to permil the accurate preparation of financial staterments in
conformity with generally accepled accounting principles and other generally accepted |aws applicable to such
statements and to maintain accountability for assets.

14.3 Access to assels Is permitted only in accordance with the authanization of management.

14.4 The use of Company funds or agsets for any unlawiul or irmproper purposa iz stictly prohibited and those responsible
for the acocounting and record keeping functions are expecled 1o be vigilant in ensuring enforcement of this
prohitition. The recorded accountabiiity for assets will be compared with the exsting assets at reascnable intervalks
and appropnate achon will be taken with respect to any diferences.

14.5We must not improperly influence, manipulate or misiead any authonized audit, nor interfere with any auditor
engaged to pedorm an Internal independent audit of Company books, records, processas or internal controls,

14 .6 Safeguarding the company's assets is the responsibility of all members Theft, carelessness, and wasle have a
direct impadct on the company’'s profitability. Assets should be used efficiently and mantain such assets with care
and respect, while guarding against waste and abuse, Look for opportunities to improve performance while
reducing costs. The use of company time, materials, assets, or facilities for purposes unrelated to the company's
business, or the removal or borowing of company property, is prohibited

O
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15. Discrimination-Free Work Environment

15.1 The policy of the Company is 10 provide & working emaronment free of discrimination and harassmeant in which
indwiduals are accorded sguality of employment opportunity based upon merit and ability.

15,2 Discriminatory practices based on race, sex, color, national or ethric origin, relioion, martal status, farmily status,
age or cisabilty will not be tolerated. Members are entifled to freedom from sexual and all other forme of personal
rarassment in tha work place

1531t is not a discniminatory practice to make a distinchion between persons based on bona fide ocoupational
requirements. Since bona fide occupabonal requirementis are nammowly defined, such distinctions should not be
undartaken without first obtaining express authorization

16 Competition and Trade Practice Standards

18.1 The Company shall compete vigorously and creatively in its business activities, but ts efforts in the marketplace
shall be conductad in a fair and ethical manner in sinct compliance with applicable compeattion and trade practice
laws and regulations

16.2 Under no circumstances shall any employee or Direcior of the Company be a party to any collusion or concered
effort of any type Involving any competitor vender, supplier, customer or ather party, which Is In restraint of trade
or viclation of laws and regulations designed to foster compelition. Becausa |laws relating to compatition are
complex, employees and Directors should refer matters about what they are in doubt to their superior or shouid
seek the advice of the HR Departmeant! Comipany's Legal Counsel! Audt Commitiee) HR&R Commitiee as the
case may be

17 Accountability

17 1 Each of ua |3 responaible for knowing and adhering o the values and standards sat forth in the Code and for
ralsing guestons i we are uncenan about Company policy. It we are congemed whether the slandards are being
mel or are aware of violations of the Code, we must contact the HR deparmentLegal Counselidudit CommitteeHRE&R
Committes.

17.2 Company takes serously the standards set forth in the Code, and violations are cause for disciplinary action up
o and including ermination of employiment.

18. Standards of Conduct

18.1 Although the varous matiets deall with in this Code do not cover the ull spectrum of emploves or Director activities,
they are indicative of the Company's commitrment to the behavior expected from emplovess end Directors in all
clrcumsiances,

@
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Whistle-Blowing Policy

1. Purpose

To encourage employees lo disclose any malpraclice or misconduct of which hey become aware and lo provide
protection for emplovees who repoart allegations of such malpractice or misconduct, The main purpose of this whistie
blowing policy is 1o give all employees an opportunity 1o disclose matters they feal need |o be reported in the inferest
of fair-play and larger benefit of the organization; high standard of corporate governance; compliance with legal
requirements and protechon of the Company's inmarest

2. Policy

The whistle blowing policy is designed © encourage emplovees to report alleged malpractice or misconduct, to ensure
that all allegations are fhoroughly Investigated and suitable action taken where necessary Any whistie-blowing employes
is protected against adverse employrment actions (discharge, demotion, suspension, harassment, or ather forms of
digerimination) Tor raising afliegations of busingss misconduet. An emplovea is profected even i1 the allegations prove
10 be incorrect or unsubstaniaied as long as there is no evidence of willful misreporting. Employees who paricipate
or assist in an investigation will also be protected

3. Requirement of policy

This documert thus sels out a formal whistie-blowing policy, consisting of safe and effective procedures for misconduct
disclosure or reporting so that appropriate remeadial action can be taken. & written, formal policy 5 also a means of
preventing and deterring misconduct that might be conlemplated but has not yet laken place. It is also a transparent
method of addressing issues relating to whistle blowing, such as answering standard guestions, giving assurances,
providing infornmation and offering explanations,

On what should one blow the whistle

What is reportable misconduct?

Ary S8MOUS concarns you may have about any aspect of the operations of the Hurm Netwark Uimited {ihe Compary)
and those who work in the Company can be reported under thiz policy. This may be a conduct that:

* Is-against the governing rules, procedures, and policies, or esiablished standards of practice of the Company
amounts to impraper, unethical, or unlawiul conduct;

*  Amounts to waste of company’s resocurces; makes you feel uncomfortable in terms of your expernience with e
standards you believe; or

«  Amounts to an attempt to cover Up any of these types of actons. Conduct becomes reporiable when it happens
or when it i3 reascnably likely 1 occur Harm to the Comipany or Lo its Integrity may occur when any of this conduct
is unchecked or unaddrassed, Importanily, In detarmining whether 1o report conduct, harm s not only measured
in lerms of manitory 19ss 1o the organization, or damage to a particular program or initiative, but the harmm may
also be done to the integrity and reputation of the Company tself, or its survival and/or growth,

Reporigble conduct falls inic the following categaories:
4.11llegal or unlawful conduct

Conduct may be illegal or untawdul in terms of the Rules and Aegulations of the Company and other applicable laws.
We all have legal responsibilities, obligations or duties, Criminal affences - auch as theft, fraud, cormuption (or example,
bribery), or monay laundering - are: in breach of legal duties and therefore constitute reporiable misconduct.

4.2 Un-procedural conduct

Conduct may be un-procedural since |t viclates cleary communicated procsdures {In the form of policies, reguiations,
or rules) governing the operations of the Specific rules and processes, logether with other best praclice procedures,
Quide accounting practices and controls, financial reporting, auditing matflars, the ransier of funds to recipents. approved
recipient accounts, and the like. Such procedures are impartant for good governance and breaching them may expose
the application of tunds to nsk of loss or real loss.
o
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4.3 Unethical conduct

Conduct may be unethical since it undermines universal, core ethical values, such as Inlegrity, respact, honesty,
responsibllity, accountability, fairmess. For example one could exert undue pressure on a person N pasition of power
in order to gain an advantage. That would be urfair to others and as such unethical, although neithar unlawful nor un-
procadural. But not all unethical conduct is repartable. For exarmple, some kinds of conduct may be disrespectiul and
theratore undesirable, without harming any serious inferests cther than personal feelings. This would nol be reportable
misconduet.

4.4 Wasteful conduct

Conduct constituting a gross waste of resources is a reportable category in its own right since responsitle stewardship
of resources is as crucial to the succass of the Company as all employees have an obligation to ensure that all rasources
are Lsed prudently and efliclently T resources are spent in a wastelul manner, and in breach of the public trust under
which they are providad, and an employse knows about this then this would be reportable under the whistie-blowing
mechanism,

5. Whistle-blower protection

HRAL shall take all necessary actions 10 safequard the Iimterests of the whistie-blower. Where an Individual makess a
reporl under this policy in good faith, reasonably believed o be true, lhere will be no retgliglion (please read delall
below) against the reporter should the disclosure turn cut to be misguided. Retaliation means any direct or indirect
detrimental action recommendad, threatened or taken because an indnwvidual reported conduct descnbed in Section
4 of this polcy. When established, retaliation is by Hself misconduct which may be pursued under the appropriate
mechanisms - for example, through disciplinary action infiated trough mechanisms of HR Policy or more broadly and
as appropriate, through other mechanisms of the company's rules Reporting under this policy, howeaver, in no way
immunizes or shiskds a whistle-blowsr against action following from his or hier own misconduct, which includes willfully
rmaking allegations through the whistie-blowing rmechanism that the indvidual knows 1o be false or makes with an intent
to misinform.

6. Whistle-blowing procedures

HML encourages all ts emplovees to act responsibly at sll imes and protect themselves and the company against
any lilegal or immoral acts {see section 4) by immediately reporling &ny such aclions lo the Designated Person.
Designated Persons (OPs)

=  Company secrataty, and
= Head of Imtamal Audit

Shall be the 'Designated Persons' (DPs), and all information shall be directly conveyed to the DPs by the whistie-blower.

Access to the Designated Person

The whistie-Howsr shall have direct access 10 the Designated Persons at all times. This right of the whistle-blowear shall
be upheld under all circumstances and respected by the management of the Company:

Medium of Reporting

Reports to the Designated Persons can be made by: Cfficial emall address of the Designaled Persons.

Follow up Procedure

The DPs will Inlbate an investigalion and lake any conseguent action as desmed appropriate and will record he same
for information of the Board of Directors, keeping at all times, the confidentiality of the Whistle Blowers Identity.

(=)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of HUM Network Limited (the Company). which comprise the
unconsolidated statemant of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the unconsolidatsd statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated
statement of comprehensive income. the unconsolidated statement of changes In squity, the unconsolidated statemeant of cash fiows
tor the year then ended and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, Including matertal accounting policy information and
othar expl:anatnr],r intormation, and we state that wa have abtained all the information and explanations which, to-the best of our
knowledge and beliet, were necessary for the purposes of the audit

In aur apinion and to the best of our infarmation and according lo the sxplanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement of financial
position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsalidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement
of changes in aquity and the uncensolidated siatemant of cash flows togather with the notas forming part thereo! conform with the
accounting and reporing standards as applicable In Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of
2017, In tha manner 5o required and respechively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2025
and of the prolit, the other comprehensive Income, the changes in equity and its cash flows lor the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conductad our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as applicable In Pakistan, Cur responsibilities
under thoses standards are further descnbed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
repart. Wa are indepsndent of the Company in accordance with the Intamational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of
Ethigs for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Charered Accountanis of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfiled
gur other ethical responsibilities in- accordance with the Code. We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basls far our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Kay audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were ol most significance in our audit of tha unconsolidated
financial statements of the curren! year. These maliers were addrassed in the contes! ol our audit of the unconsolidated financial
statements as a whole, and In forming our opinion therecn, and we do not provide & separate opinlen on these matters,
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Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Television program costs

As disciosed in notes 3.4 and 9 to the unconsolidated financial
statements, television program costs amounting to As.
091,268.844 are carrled at lower of remalning cost and nat
realizable value determinad based on revenus which is expectad
1o be earnad,

Revenues sxpacted to be sarnad are estimated by the
managamant based on vanous faclors including advertising
rates, alring schedule ‘and number of planned re-runs.
Accordingly, these estimates are reviewed periodically and
costs charged to the unconsolidated statemant of profit or loss
and remaining cost of assets are adjusted, if necessary.

We have considared this as a key audit matter due to
invalvemean! of managemaent’s estimales and assumptions,

Our key audit procedures, amongst others, included tha
following:

« obtained an understanding of the Company’s processes
and related imternal controls over television program costs;

= parformed testing of inputs used by the management in the
calculation of expacted revenue to be sarmed on a sample
basis by inspecting tha undarlying supparts.

+ performed recaleulation of cost chargad by the managemeant
in the unconsolidated statemant of profit or loss for a sample
of television programs in accordance with the policy of the
Company;

= performed testing of purchasa of television programs on a
sample basis to ensurs that they aré racorded appropdataty
al the correct costs when the conirol of the underiying
eplsodes have been translerred to the Company, and

+ assessed thae réasonablensss of the estimates usad by the
managemen! by comparing these with the actual resulls
on a sample basis,

2. Revenue from advertisements and subscriptions

As disclosed In note 20 to the unconsolidated financlal
slatements, ravanue earned by the Company from
advertisements and subscriptions amounting to As.
7,730,510.758 constitutes 96% of the total revenue of the
Company.

In case of advertisement revenue, the point of recognition is
when the related adverisemeant is alred, Subscrption revenue
is recognised In the month, the service is rendered,

We have considered this as a kay audit matter considering
the significance of the amoun of revenue generated from the
streams mantionad above. Further. ravenue is also cansidared
as a key performance indicator of the Company to meet
stakeholders” expectations

Qur key audit procaduras in this area amongst ofhers included
the following:

+ pbtained an understanding of the Company’s processes
and retated internal conlrols for revenue recognition from
advertisements and subseription revenue and on & sample
basis, tosted the effectiveness of thosa controls: specifically
in relation to recognition of revenue and timing thereof;

* inspecied a sample of contracts to check that revenue
recognition was In accordance with the contract terms and
the Company's revenuea recognition policies;

= performed testing of transactions on a sample basis o
ensure thal the relaled revenues are recorded appropriately
when the advedisemant is aired in case of adverisemant
revenua and whan the servige is rendered in case of
subscription revenue; and

+ assaéssed the adequacy ol the related disclosures In
accordance with the applicable financial reparting standards,
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Infarmation Other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Therean

Menagement Is responsible for the other information. The other Information comprises the Information included in the Annual Report
but does not include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor's repor thereon

Cur opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover tha other Information and we do not express any form of
assuranca conclusion thereon

In connection with our audit of the unconaolidaled financial statements, our responsibility is to read the clher information and, In doing
50, consider whether the other Information s materlally inconsistent with the unconsalidated financlal statements, of our knowledge
obtained in the audil or otherwise appears (o be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have parformed, we concluds that
there s a material misstatement of this other information, we ars requirad to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Managemeant and Board of Directors for the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Managemant i responsibla for the preparation and fair preseniation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with
tha accounting and reporing standards &5 applicable in Pakistan and the equirements of Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017) and
tar such internal confrol a5 management delermines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of unconsalidated financial statements
that are free from mataral misstatemant, whather due to fraud or arror.

In preparing the uncensolidated financial statements, managemant is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concerm and using the geing concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseaing the Company's financlal reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Unconsclidated Financial Statements

Cur objectives ara io oblain reasonable assurance about whaethar the unconsolidated financial stalements as a whole are frea from
materizl misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
i= & high level of assurance but is not a guarantes that an audit conducted in accordance with |5As as applicable in Pakistan will always
detect a matenal misstatement when it exists. Misstatemenis can anse from fraud or error and are considered matenal if, individually
or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expacted to influence the economic declslons of usars taken on the basis of thesa
unponsolidated financial statemenls.

Az par of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable In Pakistan, we exercise prolessional judgment and maintain professional

skapticiam throughout the audit. We alsa:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or arror,
deszign and parform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate o
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatermant resuling from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, lorgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the overnds of internal
control,

4 Obtain an understanding of intermal control refevant fo the audit in order to design audit procaedures that are appropriate in the
circumslances, but not lor the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s Internal cantraol,

. Evaluate the appropriatensss ol accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriatenass of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, bazed on the audlt evidence
obtalned, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events or condilions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
abllity 1o continue as a golng concern, I we conclude that a material uncertainty exlsts, we are requirad to draw attention In our
auditor's repaorl to the related disclosures in the unconsolidated linancial stalements or, il such disclosures are inadequate, lo
maodily our opinion, Our canclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
fulure events or conditions may cause the Company 10 cease b continue as a going concen.

. Evaluagte the overall presentation, structure and contant of the unconsolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whather the unconsolidated financial statements represent the underlyving transactions and events in 8 manner thal achieves
fair presantation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audil lindings, including any significant deliciancies in internal control thalt we identlly during our audit,

@
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Wa also provida the Board of Directors with a statement that wa have compliad with relevant ethical requiremants regarding indepandenca,
and {o communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance In the audit
of tha unconsolidated financial statemants ol the current year and ate theralora the key audit mattets. Wa dascriba these matters in
our auditor's report uniess law or regulation preeludes public diselosure about the matter or when, in axtremely rare circumstances,
wa detarmine that 8 matter should not ba communicated in our repont becauses the adverse conseguances of dolng so would reasonably
be expactad to outwaigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we lurther repont that In our opinion:

a) proper books ol accounl have been kKept by Ihe Company as requirad by the Companies Acl, 2017 (XIX ol 2017);

b} the unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position, the unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss, the unconsolidated
Statemant of Comprehensive Income, the unconsolidated Statemeant of Changes in Equity and the unconsolidated Statement
of Cash Flows togsther with the notes therecn have besn drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and ara in agreament with the books of account and retums;

¢} Invesiments made, sxpenditure incurred and guarantess extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company's
business; and

d} no Zakal was deductible al source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980).

The engagemen partrar on the audit resulting in this independeant audilor’s report |s Shalkh Abmed Salman.

f:‘r[\.i A L—

Charterad Accountants

Place: Karachi

Date: D6 October 2025

LIDIN Numbear: AR2025100762DX5alkaml
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Long lerm investments

Long term deposits, advances and prepayments
Deferred tax asset - net

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventones

Television program costs

Trade debis

Advances

Trade deposits and shori term prepayments
Other receivables

Taxatian - net

Short term investments

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2024: 1,500,000,000)
Ordinary shares of Rs.1/- each

Issued subscribed and paid-up capital
Unappropriated profit

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Lease liabilites

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables

Contracl liability

Unclaimad dividend

Unpaid dridend

Current portion of lease labilities
Current portion of long lerm financing

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

o =4 @ Lh &

10
11
12
13

14
15

16

17

18

17

19

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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— = DURAID QURESHI
1 - Chief Executive
oo
"

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI

2025 2024
- RUpEES --—e-
1,540,152,363 1,311, 273,956
24,408,333 742,503
242,974,730 548,898,481
270,340,019 282,170,583
172,138,033 145,021,921
2,250,013,478 2 088107 454
9,579,352 24 505,623
991,268,944 750,497 506
2,158,538,320 3,060,464 477
483,778,465 270,208,840
61,969,069 59923415
5.206,220,513 2,880,377,36R
370,315,615 41,863,203
1,375,033,308 1,062 444 008
476,205,411 748,140,168
11,132,908,997 8,908 424 811
13,382 922 475 10,996,532 065
1,500,000.000 1,500,000,000
1,134,000,000 1,134 000,000
10,825,442, 775 8,722 456,137
11,959,442 775 8,856,456,137
114,728,733 124,312,042
1,250,913,085 820,356,133
3482172 15,280,135
6,807,368 6,066,806
- 740,472
47,548,342 42,070,250
- 31,250,000
1,308,750,967 1.015,763,886
13,382,922 475 10,006,532.065
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
2025 2024
Note Rupees
Fevenus - nel 20 B,012,805.226 8,307.666.130
Cost of production 21 (4,180,199,145) {4,004 008 656)
Transmission cost {133,140,717) {121,164, 257)
{4,313,339,862) (4,125,172,913)

Gross profit 3,699,465,364 4182493217
Distribution expenses 22 (724,711,934) (525,217 080)
Administrative expenses 23 (1,173,198,505) (990,120,081)
Cther income 24 698,647,309 410,619,105
Other expenses 25 (265,498,321) (115,060,720}
Operating profit 2,234,704,003 20862 714,40
Finance cosls 26 (23,691,533) (35,641,323
Profit before final taxes, minimum tax

differential and incoma tax 2,201,012,470 2827 073,108
Final taxes 27 (14,803,210) (33,835,124)
Minimum tax differential 24 {108,381,841) -
Profit before income tax 2.077.727.419 2843237984
Income tax 29 25,250,218 (232,646,227
Profit for the year 2,102,986,638 2,610,591,757
Earnings per share — basic and diluted 30 1.85 2.30
The annexed natas from 1 to 38 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statemants.
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
- Rupees --
Profit for the year 2,102,986,638 2610591 757
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,102,986,638 2,610,691, 757

The annexed noles from 1 to 39 form an integral part of thesa unconsolidated financial stalements.
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DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIgQUI MHHAMMED ABEBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer



UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Balance as at June 30, 2023

Profit for the year
Other comprahensive iIncome
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at June 30, 2024

Profit for the vear
Other comprahensiva incoma
Total comprehensive income for the year

EBalance as at June 30, 2025

The annexed notes from 1 10 39 fonm an Integral pan of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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DURAID QURESHI

Chief Executive

%
(
A\t =

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Director

- .
1 \( LA ORT 2025
f ,‘ LT = TEE
L. =%
Issued,
subscribed and Unappropriated
paid-up capital profit Total
Rupees
1,134,000,000 6,111,864, 380 7,245.864 380
- 2,610,581, 757 2,610,581,757
. 2,610,591,757 2.610,591,757
1,134,000,000 8,722,456,137 8,856,456,137
- 2,102,986,638 2,102,986,638
- 2,102,986,638 2,102,986,638
1,134,000,000 10,825,442,775 11.959,442,775
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated rom operations
Income tax paid

Final taxes paid

Minimum tax differantial paid
Finance cosis paid

Note

n

Long term deposils, advancas and prepayments - net

Met cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions to property and equipmant
Additions o intangible assets

Short term investments made
Dradend received

Long term investment made

Profit received on deposit accounts

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets

Met cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid

Intarest portion of lease liabilities paid
Principal portion of lease liabilities paid
Long term financing — nel

Met cash used in financing activities

24

17

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

74

=

MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI

Director

2025 2024
Rupegs -—--—--—
535,813,569 1,004,415,199
(319,174 448) (169,044 615)
- (702,192)
(108,381,B41) -
{3,981,906) (19, B77.675)
11,830,574 (56,936,165)
116,105,950 755,854,652
(398,520,770) (96,498,863)
(25,250,000) -
{26,520) (434,795,053)
20,000,000 93,309,008
- (10,000,000)
82 606,990 B1,308 456
8,090,285 7,531,113
{313,100,015) (359,054 348)
- (720.873)
(29,709,627) {15,873,501)
(13,981,065) (17,362,431)
{31,250,000) (62,500,000)
(74,940,692) (86, 456,005)
{271,934,757) 300,342 399
748,140,168 447 796,768
476,205,411 748140168
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

1.1 HUM Metwork Limited {the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan 2s a public limited company on Fabruary 25, 2004
under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, (now Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company are quated
on Pakistan Stock Exchange

1.2 Tha Company’s principal business is 1o launch transnational salellite channels and aims al presenting a8 wide vanety of
cultural heritage and news. [is core areas of operation are production, advertisement, entertainment and media
marketing. I covers a wide variety of programs with respect to information, entertainment, current affairs, education.
health, food, music and society.

1.3 Geographical location and address of business units

Reglslered office Plot No. 10/11, Hassan Ali Streal, Of. |.l. Chundrigar Road, Karachi

City office — Karachi B.R.R Tower, Hassan Ali Street, Off. |.|. Chundrigar Road, Karachi

City office — Islamabad 28 1&T cenftre, sector G-6/1, Islamabad

City office — Islamabad Piot 2C, Shakesel Express Building No, 2, Khayaban e Suharwardy, Aabpara,
City office — Lahore Housa # 58, R-24, Masson Road, Lahore

City office — Peshawar Plot Mo. 7-A, 28 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonment

City office — Quetta Plot Mo. 4-4, Ground Floor, Aiwan & Mashrig Hall Road, Model Town, Quetta

1.4 These are separate financial statements of the Company in which investments in subsidiaries are stated at cosl less
impairment, if any.

2 BASIS OF PREFPARATION
21 Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial slatements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reparting siandards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Internatlonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standard Board
{IASB) as natified under the Companies Act 2017 (the Act); and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Act

whera provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under
the Act are followed.

22 Accounting convention

These unconsolidataed financial statements have been prepared under the historcal cost convention axcept otherwise
specifically stated.

23 Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (the “functional currency"). The unconsolidated financial statements are presenled in
Pakistani Rupees, which is also the Company's functional currency,
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2.4 New standards and amendments te approved aceounting standards

2.41 Adoption of amendments to approved accounting standards and application guidance effective during the
year

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statemenis are consistent with
those of the previous financial year, except as described balow:

1AS 4 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current and non-current liabilities with
covenants - Amendments to 1AS 1

The amendments to 1AS 1 specify the requirements for classifying Rlabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments clarify what Is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer settlement must exist at the
end of the reporting period. The amendments further clanfy thal classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an
entity will exercise its deferral right and that only if an embedded derivative in & converiible liability is itself an equity
instrurnent would the terms of a liabilily nol impact ils classification. Also it has been clarified that an entily is required
to disclose when a liability arising from a loan agreement is classified as non-current and the entity's right to defer
settlement is contingent on compliance with Tuture covenants within twelve months.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s unconsolidaled financial stalements.

IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements - Amendments to 1AS 7 and IFRS 7

The amendments to 1AS 7 and IFRS T clarify the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require
additional disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure reguirements in the amendments are intended to assist
users of financial statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance arangements on an entity's liahilities,
cash flows and exposure Lo liguidity risk.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements
IFRS 168 Lease Liability in a sale and leaseback - Amendments to IFRS 16
The amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements thal a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability anising

in & sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that
relates o the right of use Il retains.

The amendments had no impact on the Company’s unconsolidated financial stalements
242 Standards, annual improvements and amendments to approved aceounting standards that are not yet

The following standards, annual improvements and amendments to approved accounting standards as applicable Tn
Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standards, amendments or

improvements;
Standards | Amendments Effective date (annual
periods beginning on or
after)
IAS 21 Lack of exchangeability - Amendments to |AS 21 January 01, 2025
IFRS 17 Insurance conlracls January 01, 2026
IFRS7/IFRS S Classification and measurement of financial instruments - January 01, 2026

Amendments lo IFRS @ and IFRS ¥

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards - Volume 11 January 01, 2026
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IFRS7/IFR58  Contracls referencing nalure-depandent electricity - Amendmants lo January 01, 2026
IFRS 8 and IFRS 7

IFRS 10/ I1AS 28  Sale or contnbution of assets between an investor and its associate Mot yet finalised
or joint venture - Amendment o IFRS 10 and 1AS 28

Further, following new standards have been Issued by 1ASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose
of applicability in Pakistan,

Standard IASB effective date
IFRS 1 First-time adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards July 01, 2009
IFRS 18 IFRS 18 - Presenlation and disclosure in financial slalements January 01, 2027
IFRS 1 IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without public accountability: Disclosures January 01, 2027

The Company expects that above standards, annual improvemenis and amendments {o the approved accounting
standards (other than IFRS 18) will nol have any malenal impact on the Company's unconsolidaled financial
statements In the pericd of initial application. The Company is currently warking to identify all impacts that IFRS 18
will have on the primary financial statements and notes to the unconsolidated financlal statements.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, reguires the managameant o make judgmenl, estimales and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and the reporied amounis of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty aboul these judgements, estimates and assumptions could resull in outcomes thal reguire a
material adjustment io the carrying amount of assets or liabilihes affected in future penods.

The judgements, estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed o be reasonable under the circumstances, the resulls of which form the basis of making judgements about
the carrying values of assets and liabillties that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Judgements, eslimates and assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions lo accounting eslimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both eurrent and fulure periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumplions concerning the fulure and other key sources of estimalion uncartainty al the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below

i) Useful lives and residual values of items of property and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews appropriatenass of the rale of depreciation / amortisation, useful life and residual value used in
the calculation of depreciation / amaortisation. In making these estimates, the Company uses lhe technical resources
available. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amaount of respective item of property
and equipment and intangible assets, with corresponding effects on the depreciation / amortisation charge.

ii} Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

An assessment is made at each reporling dale lo delerming whether there is any indication that an investment may
be impaired. If such indication exists, the estimated recoverable amount of the investment is determined and any
impairment loss is recognised for the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying value. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. Value-in-use is

-
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ascerlained through discounting of the estimated fulure cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets,

iii) Television program costs

Television program costs are carried al lower of remaining cost and nel realizable value delermined based on revenue
which is expected to be samed. Revenue expected to be eamed is estimated based on various faclors including
advertising rates, airing schedule and number of planned reruns. Accordingly, these estimates are reviewed
periodically and cosl charged to the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss and remaining cost of asset are
ad|usted, if necessary.

iv) Taxation
The Company takes into account current income tax laws and decisions taken by the appellate autharities In determination of

its tax expensas and assets and liabilies arising therefrom. The charge of income fax expense is based on eslimates, and
therefore, the expense recognised in the financial statements may differ from expense subsequently filed to the tax authorities
due to adjustments to the estimates.

The management considers lax consequences thal would follow from the manner in which the enlity espects, at lhe
unconsolidated statement of financial position date, fo recover or seffle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities,
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply o the period when the differences reverse, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the unconsolidaled statement of financial position dale.

v) Allowance for expected credit loss

The Company recognises an alowance for expected credit loss (ECL) for all debt instruments not held at fair walue through
profil or loss. The assessment of the correlaion between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECL Is a significant estimate. The amount of ECL is sensiive to changes In circumstances and of forecas! economic
conditons. The Company's histoncal credit loss espenence and forecast of economic condiions may also not be
representatie of customer’s aclual defaull in the future

vi) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incrementsl borrowing rate
{'IBR) to measure lease liabhites. The IBR 15 the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay o borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary 1o oblain an assel of a similar value o the right of use asset in a similar
SConomic emiranment.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has macde the following judoements, which hawe
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Tinancial skataments,

ij Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherentty invehes he exercise of significant judgement as the outcome of the future
events cannot be prediclad with certainty. Contingent liabiliies may develop in a way not initialy expected. Therefore, they are
assessed confinually to determine whather an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has become probahble.

ii) Leases - Determination of the lease term

The Company has lease contracts thal include exension and termination option. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether il is reasonably certain to exercise the oplion to renew or lerminate the lease. After the commencement dale, the
Company reassesses the lease term if there i8 a significant event or change in circumstances thal is within its control that
affects its ability o exercise or nol to exercise the option to renew or o lerminate.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting poficies applied in the preparation of these financial slalemenis are 581 out beiow. These palices have
bean applied consistently for all periods presentad, unless otherwise siated

N
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3.4

Property and equipment
Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, i any. When parts of an itam of property and
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items {major componenis) of property and equipment.

Cperating fived assets are depreciated after taking Into account the residual value, if any, on a straight line basis at the rates
gpacified in note 4.1 1o these unconsclidated financial slatements, The residual values and uwselul lives are revewed and
adjusted, if appropriale, at each unconsolidaled stalerment of financial position date.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged fo unconsolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalised when it is probable that respective fulure economic benefits will flow to the

Caompany.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal of when no fulure economic benelits are expected from ils
use or disposal Any gain or loss ariging on derecognition of the asset s included in the unconsolidated staterment of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises a nghl of use assat at the commencement dale of the lease. Right of use assels are measured al
cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment lnsses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabiliies. Tha
cost of right of use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Right of use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the shorter of lease term or useful life, 2xcept for the leases in
which ownerghip of the underlying assels transfer 1o the lessee by the end of the lease term or cost of right of use assals
reflects that the lessee will exercise a purchase opllon, the Company depreciate those right of use asset over the useful ife of
the underdying assel

Capital work in progress

These are slated at cosl less accumulated impairment and consist of expendilures incurred and advances made in respect of
specific assats during the construction period. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for
use.

Intangible assets
These are carried at cost less accumulated amorisation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Amortization is charged 1o unconsolidated stalerment of prafit or loss on a straight ine basis over ils economic vsaful life at the
rate given in note 5 o these unconsolidated financial statements.

Investments in subsidiaries

Imestment in subsidiary is initially recognised at cosl Al subseguenl reporling dates, the Company revews the carrying
armount of the investrment to assess whether there is any indication that such investments have suffered an impairmeant loss, (F
any such indication exsis, the recoverable amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Such impalrment losses or reversal of impairment losses are recognised in tha unconsofidated statement of profit or loss.

Television program costs
Television program costs represent all program and film rights which are held for consumption In the ordinary course of
business. Tha Company inilially records purchased and produced lelevision programs al cost which comprises of Invoice

value, sales tax, and ather direct purchase and production costs. The cost is charged o the unconsolidated statement of profit
or loss as and when the programs are aired.

The asset is subsequently carried at lower of remaining cost and net realizable value determined based on revenue which is

enpecied fo be earned.
/,.-;
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Financial instruments

A fimancial instrument 18 any conlract that gives rise 1o a financial assel of one enlily and a financial habilily or equity
instrument of anothar entity,

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subseguently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Gaing and losses are recognised in the unconsalidated statement of profif or loss when the assel is derecognised
of impaired.

Financial assats at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets held for trading or those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.
Financial assets with cashflows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespectve of the business model.

Financial assets at FWVTFL are carried in the unconsodidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
recognised in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair value of mutual lunds and listed shares are determined on the
bazis of net asset walue (MAV) and guoted prices respectively.

Dividends on listed equity invesiments and mutual funds are recognised as other income in the unconsolidated statement of
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

Impairment of financial assets

For trade debts, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating expected credit loss. Therefore, the Company doss
nal frack changes in credil risk, but Instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit losses al each
reporting date, The Company has established a provision matnx that is basad on its historical cradil loss expenence, adjusied
for forward-lnoking factors specific o the deblors and the economic emdronment.

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Company may also consider a financial assat to be in default when intermal or exdernal information indicates that the
Company is uniikely o receive the outstanding contractual ampounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Company. A financial assel is wriften off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contraciual
cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabibies are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method,
Gains and losses are recognised in the unconsolidated staterment of profit or loss when the labilities are derecognised,

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and balances held with
banks thal are subject to an insignificant risk of changes In value.

Taxation
Final taxes

Taxes imposed on incomes subject to Final Tax Regime (FTR) In accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 2007, are classified
as final axes representing lew in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37 The charge for final laxes also includes
adjustments to charge for prior year and charge for super tax imposed by the incumbent government in respect of income
subject to FTR.

N

-



r {{;ﬁk . T AR
Az \@.{5} LR

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

3.8

3.9

i10

Minimum tax differantial

The Company designales the amount calculalad on taxable income subject o Minimum Tax Regime using the nolified tax rale
and recognises i1 as current income tax expense, Any excess over the amount designated as income tax, is then classified as
minimum tax differential representing kevy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37,

income tax

Current

Provsion for current taxafion Is based on taxable Income at the applicable lax rales after taking inlo account fax credits
available. if any, on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively snacted al the unconsolidated statement of financial
positon date. The charge for income tax includes adjustments o charge for prior year and super tax imposed by the incumbent
government in respect of income subject o Normal Tax Regime.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recorded using the lability method on temporary differances betwaen the tax bases of assets and Gabiliies and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabiliies are recognised for all
taxable termporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductble terporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which these can be utilised.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabiiies measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. |n calculating the present value of lease payments at the lease commencement date
the Company uses its Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR). After the commencement date, the amount of lease abiliies 15
Increased o reflect the acoretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods coverad by an
option to exdend the leass il il is reasonably cerlain to be exercised, or any periods coverad by an oplion o lerminate the lease,
if it is reasonably certain not fo be exercised,

Revenue recognition

Fevenue is recognised al amounts thal reflect the consideration that the Company espects 1o be entifled to in exchange for
providing senices o a customer. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and Is
recognised when parformance obiigation is satisfied at a point in ims whan the sendce has been provided.

In gase of adverbsement revenue, the point of recognition s when the refated advertisement 1s aired. In case of production
revenue, the point of recognition is when the related production work appears before the public. In case of digital revenue, the
point of recognition is when lhe agreed marketing has been provided on the digital proparties of the Company. Subscriplion
reveniua arises from the monthly biling to subscribers for senices provided by the Company and from digital avenues based on
number of views. Subscriplion revenue is recognised in the month the senice is rendered. Film distribulion revenue is
recognised at confractual rate applied o the customers' underfying sales of tckets.

The Company considers whether there are ather promises in the contract thal are separate performance obligations o which a
portion of the fransaction price needs i be alocated. In defermining the transaction price for the provsion of sendces, the
Company considers the effects of wariabla consideration, the existence of significant financing components. non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Credit limits in confract with customers is up 1o 90 days
Other income

Profil on bank deposils is accounted for on effective inlarest method,
Dividend income is recognised when it is declared and right to receive Is established,

D
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Foreign currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are franslated into Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactons, Monetary assets and liabilities in foresgn currencies are franslated inlo Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rate
at the unconsolidated statement of financial position date Mon-monetary assets and liabiities are recorded using exchange
rate thal esdstad when the values were determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulling from the setlemant of such
transactions and from the translatons at the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and lishilities denominated in foreign
currencies are @aken 10 unconsolidated slatemenl of profil or loss.

Contingencies

Conlingencies are disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation that arises from pas! events and whose esslence will
be confirmed only by the sccurrence or non-occurrence of one of more uncertain fulure events not whally within the control of
the entity or a present obligation that anses from past events but 15 not recognised becausa it 1s not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliabiiity,

Segment reporting

Segment reparting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An cperating segment is an identifiable
component of the Company thal engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expanses, including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactons with any of the Company’s other components and for which discrete
financial Information Is avallable. An operating segmant's operaling results are reviewed regularly by the senior managment to
make decisions aboul resources 1o be allacated o the sagmenl and assess ils performance. The Company reporls segment
information separately that mests the quantilative thresholds as defined under IFRES &, e, 10 percent or more of the combinad
revenue, profit or oss or assets

Segment results that are reported 1o the senior managment includes items directly attributable 1o & segment as weld as those
that can be allocaled on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly of corporale assats, income lax assets |/
liahilities and relatad Income and sxpendire, Segment capital expenditure is the iial cost incurred during the year to acquire
property and equipment and Intangible assets,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 2025 2024
MNote remmnmsee RUPEOS. ~rmnnee
Operating fixed asssts 4.1 1,244, 712,113 1109447151
Fight of use assets 45 124,186,648 130,838,734
Capital work-in-progress 4.6 171,253,602 61,588,071

1,540,152,363 1,311.273,956
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4.2 Particulars of immovable aseets in the nama of the Company are a8 follows:

Location Addresses Totsl Area
Karachs Pl Mo 10011 Hassan Al siresl. off || Chundrigar Rosd 2,070 8.0
lskamahad Plat Ma 24, BT centre secior G801 0610 sg.f
2025 2024
HNote Ruposs ———
4.3 Depreciation for the year on operating ized assets has been allocated as Tollows:
Cosk of production 21 58,307 611 52,158,658
Distribubon sapensss 27 11,844,402 11,024,675
Administralive expenses 3 T2,524.823 58,442 949
144,076,836 1627 282
4.4 The dotalls of opereting fivod azsele dispoaed / written off, dusng the yoar ara aa follows:
Het book
Accumulatad Sales Mades of Particulars of purchaser and
Datcrption Coat depreciation :Bu;l consideralion Gain Disposal relationship (if any)
Rupees
As per the Aol Hussain - Key Management
Vel 30,000,000 19,616,862 10,383,338 21,539,093 11,185.755 Company's policy Parzonne
5,463,000 3,824,100 1,638,500 1847100 2,208,200 A% per the Shanzad Javed - Fmployes
¥ 1 ' ¥ 1 Carms II'F!"!: lﬂt!-l i s
2,002 500 1401 TEO 800, TS0 2,350,000 1,745 250 Megpokialioh Haider fAulos - Third party
Hems havisg NBW of
s than B, 500,000 1,874,760 1,TEZ, 183 122,887 354,092 231,538
2025 36,340,250 20,554, T05 12745548 28,080,385 15344 Tdo
Net book
Accumdalated Sales Modes of Partieulara of purchaser and
il ] in
attsption Gow depreciation E;!::J consideration s Drinpaosal relationship (if any}
Rupocs
7,075 811 5020239 2,055 RT72 2122743 BT AT As par Company Nash Theheriny - Emplayed
‘ehicies palicy
2,707,000 1,780,440 nrEs 1,720,850 12900 As percompany Manan Zafas - Emplinen
policy
liamms hawing NBY af
s fan Ra. 500,000 881,001 {458,389 128767 T R 2,281 04 r
2024 18,541 BEZ 14 181,087 4,380,795 7.531,113 3170310
45 Right of uss sssets Land
hilcd I
and building Wtiiohe Toum
Cost Mata Rupoos
Ag at July 07, 2024 176,420,158 5,273,389 181,653 598
Additiona 857G B4E - OLETS, 848
Transfars to operating fried sssots 4.1 = (5,273, 380) 5,273,398
Agat Junp 30, 2025 186,396,047 - 186,206,047
Accumulated deprecintion
As ot July 01 2024 40,838 4432 1,216,422 41,854,864
Diepreciation charge for the e 451 21,470,957 1,224,873 22695 630
Translars o operatng fled sssely LE - (2,441, 205) {2.441,295)
As At June 30 X125 62,103,355 - 2,106,399
Mot book valus
As-at duly 01, 2024 135,781,757 4,056,977 139,838,734
Additinns 8,075,848 - 20875048
Diepreciation charge for the pear (21,470,957) (1,224 873) (22,695 530)
Transiers b operalng lxed assety - (2,832, 104) {2,832, 104)
Ag at Jume 30, 2025 124,188 648 - 124,186,648
Annual e of depreciation % 10-13 a3
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Land
i I
and buliding Vehicles || Tota
Cost Maote Rupees B
A at July o1, 3023 B3, 574 886 18,507,823 82 082 309
Additians a7.526.882 a7 528882
Reasessament ol Eass Eatibity 15314331 - 15318331
Tranater to operabng fikad assets a1 . {13.234,424) (13.234.424)
As al June 30, 2024 176, 420,190 5,270, dad 161,694,598
Accumulated depreciation
As gl July O, 2023 222031 B35 7 BER D47 30,03k 5A2
Decreciation charge for the year 451 1406 807 2,508,121 20,814,828
Transher to npemting fid assels a1 - {9,158, 646) (0,4 58 B4E)
Ag al Jume 30, 2024 40,638 442 1,216,422 41,804 564
Nat ook valus
Agat Jully 01, X123 41,343,351 10640 BTE 51,884 227
Additinng o7 526,882 - o7 528882
R saepizman of Mo Bability 15,318,301 B 16,318,331
Deprociation charge for the yoer [1B.406.807) {2.508,121) (20.914,528)
Transfar to oparating fivad assots - {5,076, 7TR) [4,075,778)
As at June 30, 2024 138,781,757 4,056,977 150,638,734
Annual rale ol deprecistion % 10-33 33
2025 024
Nota Rupegs ——-—
Dapreciation charge for tha year on night of Usa assets has baan allocated a8 follows:
Cost of production 21 12,826,047 18,339,073
Adrinigiealive upeEnahs 23 9,860,183 2575868
72 BOS5 B30 20 814 028
Capital work-in-progress
Leazshend tand 29,653,392 8,107,230
Leasstiold Imiprovements 141,600,210 52 80 841
461 171,253,802 61,958,071
Mipsameant m capial work-m-progress dumng e yesr
Batance at beginning of he year 1,888,071 47 i35, 445
Additions dunng The yea 108,265,531 14, X32625
Balance at and of 1he yoar 171,263,602 61,888071
INTANGIBELE ASSETS
Cost Accumulated amortisation Book value .
As at o s at As at o As at as ot ”"T““
tions rga
July 01, (Nota 5.3) June 30, July 01, (Note 5.1) Juna 30, Jduna B0, {% per annum)
074 2025 2024 2025 2025
Rupees
Computer softwares 58 466,118 - 58,466 118 57,860,526 605,582 58,466,118 - 20-33
Licensa fee 10,500,000 25,250,000 35,750,000 10,434,800 908 B6T 11,341 667 24,408,333 66T
Trademark 43,883,500 33,883 500 33,811,789 .71 33,883,500 - 20
102,849,618 25250000 128,009,618 102,107 115 1,564,170 103,691,285 24,408,333
Coast Accumulsted amorisstion Book valuo
As al As at As at i As at as at AEm——n
3
July 81, Additiens June 30, Juky 01, {Nats 5.1) June 30, June 30, {% per annurm]
2023 2024 2023 2024 2034
Rupes
Computer sofvwates S 466,118 - 58,468,118 56,507, 854 1,452 672 57 860,526 BLIS, Sz B0-33
Licensa fae 10,500,000 10,500,000 10,234,700 200,100 10,434 800 fif, 200 f.67
Traemiark 33,883,500 - 33,83 600 33,140 856 G70.833 33817.TRR LT 20
102.A40.618 - 012,849 618 B8B83 410 2,223,705 102107916 742,503

On

e
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 2025 2024

51 Amortisation Tor the year has been sllocated as follows: Mot wesssenaee Ruppmms
Cosi of productlon H 1,512,458 1,815,852
Adminisiralive sxpenses a T1.711 JOT A5
1,684,170 2,223 T05

52 HAaepresenls Salellite TV licence fsa pald 1o Pakisian Elecronic Media Reguéslony Authority for a parlod of 15 years

6 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS — unguoted subaidiariaes

Country of 2028 2024
Incorporation Wending %) Rupees ————

HUM TV, Inc
10,000 Comman atock 815 00,01 {5 100} I of & 100 B.G03 8,603
Adhance for folure issue of shares {5200, 004) i b 18,716,750 18,716,750

18,725,363 18, 25,353
HUM Natwark UK Ltd
553,677 ardinary share ol 1 GEP {GEP 553.577:| : Ki 100 85023 751 435.923,751
Frowision for impainmen] Ubiad Ringriar {85,823, 751) -

- 6,523 Thi
Sky Line Publication (Private) Limited
3,000,907 ordinary shares of FBa. 10 aach —_— ‘ 39,009,970 30,000 970
Frowisin for anpaimmsnt tetan o (39.99.070) | (39.500.970)
HLIM Natwork FZ LLC
2.400 ordinany shares of AED 1,000 sach [AED 2,400,000) . 69,802,371 50,802,371
Ei B,

Aduans or fulure issue of sharss (AED 175.431) i vl 4,446 956 | 4 445 588

74,240 337 74,248,337
HUMM Co. (Privats) Limitad
4 opdinary sheres of Re. 10 aoch Pakistan 100% 40 40
HUM Mart [Private] Limited
14,000,000 ardinary sharas of Rk, 10 each s o 140,000,000 140,000,000
Prowisdon for smpasment (140,000,000 [RE VI RR A
Tower Sports (Private) Limited
20,100 cedinary shares of Re, 7,452,689 sach Pakistan 100% 150,000,000 150, 000, 000
Sphere Ventures (Private) Limited
1,000,000 ordinary shares ol Rs. 10 each Pakistan 100 10,000,000 10,000, 000
Prowision for impasment 10,000,000 -

- 10.00G.000

m:‘ ITH k& 401

B4 The Company has assassed the camyng amount of is invastmants in sebsidanes i accordance weith the raguersmants of the applicatie accounting and mparting
slandards  Tho immsimonts whoeo rocoverahlo amoungs howe boon Seosced ac Wl batod on their respoctive Anancial potiione; have boon fully Impairod
Movernant in provision for impairment i as follows:

2025 2024
Note e RUpBRS ———
Balsnce at the beginning of the year 179,999 870 170, GG a7
Frowiszon made during the year Ful 105,923,751 :
Balancs &l the gnd of he year ZB5.923 721 170 999 870
T LONG TERM DEPOSITS, ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits - unsecured - considered good
- Rerd 14,205, TE2 12,661 944
= Trade 15,558,118 15,675 435
= Ohers 2,456,134 3,148 972
32,220,144 3,087,391
Advances
- Suppliar 192,907,000 162 507,000
Prepaymenis
- SOMWEre maintenanos fes 47,168,260 BRE1T 871
Less: currant porticn 12 {19,540 405) (21,237 825
27 626 BTE AT, 35D 242
= Mambership foo 20,096,000 22 608,000
Less: currant portion 12 {2.512,000 {2,512,000)

17,584,000 20,0706, (00
270,340,010 288 170, 504
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

B.1

10

101

1wz

10.3

DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of:
Unmeahsed gain on revaluaton of investmants

Tax depreciation

Deductible temporary differences arising in respect of:
Provision Tor impaimant agalngt long e investments
Allowance lor expecied credil loss

Leases - net

Tax depreciation
Unabsorbed tax losses
Oithors

EPORT 2025
Il N1 e ITER
2025 2024
Note RUDEEE ~siasimeees
(57,562,012) (3,568, 708)
(52,351,225) .
{108,913 237) (3,006, T0E)
111,510,236 70,149,080
107 976,822 45 089,910
14,855,267 10,351,988
. 5,268,845
8.1 28,904,654 -
18,804,294 18,098,054
282,051,270 148,088, 627
172,138,033 145,021,021

Defermed tax assel bas been recognised for unabsorbed tax losses during the year fo the extent thot the realisation of the related tox berefit
thrasugh future taxable profits, based on the projections, is probahbls

2025 2024
Note Rupses -————=-
TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS
Unroieased ! relonsed 843 350, 659 GBI B4 71
In production 47,018,285 56,855,795
901,268 944 TS0 497 508
TRADE DEBTS — unsecured
Conaidared good 2,158,538.320 3,060,464, 477
Conzidered doubitful 209, TES 811 52,255 448
10.1 2,368,328,1311 3,112.,719,926
Less: Allowancs for sxpected credit loss 10.2 {209, 789,811} {52.255,449)
10.3 2,158 538,320 3,060 464 47T
Includes amaunt recevable from the following related parties 0 the following foresgn junsdictions:
HLIM Matwnork LK Lirmited, Unitad Kingdan 112,820,206 104,998,200
HUM TV Inc., United Siates of America 129,096,744 126,463,909
10.4 241 ﬁm ?31.-1-3211-149
Allowance for expected credit loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 52255449 36,221,116
Allenarance during e ywoar 25 157,534,362 16,034,334
Balance at the.end of the year 205, 7a8.811 52,255,440
The: agirg of trade debts al the noohsolidated staterment of financial positon dale was
2025
Past due 1-30 Past due 31-60 | Past dus 81-30 | Pasi due more
ot pust dlus days days days than 90 days Total
Rupons
Related parties
- HUM Mstwark UK Limited - - - - 112, 829,288 112,829,296
- HUM TV Inc. - - - - 120,006, 744 128,086,744
: = - - 241,926,040 241,926,040
Other than related parties 1,277.866,235 464 986,355 178,617,218 8,296,600 196,635,082 2,128,402,091
4,277 .888,235 464,986,055 178,817,219 8,206,800 438,561,122 2,368,328,131
Expected crodit logs [11.983,817) [24.562,565) [18,341,820) (1,836, 648) (152,885, 363) {209,789.811)
1, 266,702,618 440,434,300 156,275,505 6,459,854 285,665,758 2,158,534,320
Loss rate 1% 5% 1% 22% 5%
2024
Past due 1-30 Past due 31-60 | Past due 6190 | Past due more
Haot past dus duys duis dayn than 90 days Tatal
Rupess
Related parties
- HUM Matwark UK Limited - - - 104 Q08 290 104,958,290
= HUM TV Inc - - - - 126 4837 805 126,483 905
. - - . 231,482,195 231.482,188
Other than related parties 2,035,618 BO4 612,413,530 112,555 884 3,970,087 116 672 812 2 881,237 727
2035 618,804 812,413,530 112 555,684 3.970.097 348,161,811 3,112,718,926
Expocied crodit loss [13.074 422) {1B.801,085) {4.6574,681) {535,163 (14, 868.802) (52, 255,448)
20232 544 387 5973 612 435 107 580,723 3,434 828 333 282 008 3,060 464,477
Loss rate 1% % 4% 13% 4%
’/ i
=i
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

10.4 The maximum amount outstanding from related parties at any time during the year calculated by reference to month end

balancas are as follows:

2025 2024
Hote e RUPEES e
= HUM Metwork LK Limited 112,829,296 106,915,871
= HUM TV Ine 129,006,744 130,750,782
11 ADVANCES
- Producers 157,361,959 186,687 669
- Suppliars 11.1 300,562,375 77.668.074
- Employees 11.2 25,854,131 6,052,197
483 TTH. 465 210,208,840
11.4 Includes advance paid to OMNI Molarsporis {Privata) Limited amounting to Rs 120,000,000 (2024 MNil} for use of the
venue 1o conduct various business reiated events
11.2 Rapresants advancas given o amployeas against businass axpensas.
2025 2024
12 TRADE DEPODSITS AND SHORT TERM PREFAYMENTS HNote ——— Rupees ~—
Deposits - unsecured
= Renl 1,359,500 1,364,500
Prepayments
= Currenl portion of long term soflware maintenance lee T 19,540,405 21,237 620
= Current portion of long lerm membership fee T 2,512,000 2,512,000
- Insurance 16,755,537 35,220,112
= Professional Tee 8,800,000 E
- Others 12.001.627 2 4TRATT
60,609,569 58,558.918
61,969,062 69,923 418
13 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales lax receivable 201,274,240 154,159,827
Due Trom related parties 13.1 1 13.2 5.055,431.227 2.784.531,308
Others 14,663,678 4,964,657
5,271,569,145 2.943 685,792
Allowance for expactad credit loss 133 (65,348,632) (53, 308.424)
5,206,220.513 2.580.377.368
13.1 Due from refated parties - unsecured
Considered good
Hum MNetwork FZ LLC 4,778,538,826 2.580),345 261
Hum TV, Inc. 54,208,543 53,111,397
Tower Sports {Private ) Limited 1,535,226 1,535,226
TS3FZLLC 155,800,000 76,230,000
4,990,082.595 20721 222 6884
Considered doubtful
Skyline Publicalions (Privale) Limited 65,057 787 63,180,424
HUM Mart (Private) Limited 290,845 128,000
5,055,431.227 2.784 531,308
Less: Allowance for expected credil loss 13.3 (65,348,632) {63,308,4124}
4,890,082,595 2.721 222 BE4
13.2 Theze represent currenl accounl balances wilh wholly owned subsidianes of lhe Company. These balances are
denominated in their respective foreign curmencies and are in the normal course of business. These balances are
recaivable on demand and are considered neither past due nor impaired excepl as provided for in these unconsolidated
financial statements
2025 2024
13.3 Allowance for expected credit loss Hote e RUPSEE  —————
Balance al the beginning of the year 63,308,424 57,8605 219
Allowance for the yaar 25 2,040,208 5,703,205
Balance at the end of the year 65,348,632 53,308 424
—
7 D
g4
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

13.4 The maximum amount outstanding from related parties at any time during the year calculated by reference to month end

balances are as follows:
2025 2024
s=sseee Rupees

Hum Matwork FZ LLC 4, 778,538,826 2.605,164,196
Hum TV, Ing. 54,208,543 54,803,084
Towar sports (Private) Limited 1,535,226 1,535,226
TSAFZ LLC 155,800,000 76,230,000
Skylina Publications [Privata) Limitad 65,057, 78T 65,082,301
Hum Mart {Private) Limited 290,845 128,000

14 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - at fair value through profit or loss
Listed securities
Javedan Corporation Limited
5.000,000 (2024: 5.000.000) shares at Rs. 84 (2024 Rs, 35.08) per share 321,750,000 175,300,000
Mutual Funds
AKD Opportunity Fund
556,607 (2024, 553.768 )units at Re.166.34 (2024: Rs. 110.31) per unit 02,601,129 51,088,578
AKD Islamic Income Fund
129,601 (2024 116.510) units at Rs, 51 .60 (2024 Rs 51.51) per unil 6,687,537 6,001,918
AKD Golden Agow Stock Fund
4,048,731 (2024, 3,986.680) units al Rs. 29.23 (2024, Rs, 18.92) per unit 118,362,612 75455472
MBP Monay Markat Fund
3,907,115 (2024: 3,521,414 units at Rs. 10.03 (2024: Rs_ 10.01) per unit 30,199,306 35,243,012
UBL Liquidity Plus Fund
2024: 270,601 units at Rs. 101,36 per unit - 27 427 SR8
UBL Money Market Fund
300,884 units at Rs. 101.13 par unit 30,430,287 -
Faysal Islamic Cash Fund
1,885,231 (2024: 1,497 517) units al Rs. 100.23 (2024 Rs. 100.17) pear unil 160,007,542 150,000,000
Afalah GHFP Money Market Fund
2287648 (2024 2.068.9109) units at Rs. 99.02 (2024; Rs. 58.94) per unit 227,504 508 204,703,774
MCB Pakislan Cash Managemenl Fund
20024 3 464 123 units at Rs. 50 47 per unit - 174 B26.658
MCE Cash Management Oplimizer
G566, 128 unils al Rs. 102 3 par unil 87,818, 663 -
MCB Pakislan Soveraign Fund
1,807,971 unils at Rs. 55.03 par unil 99,492 619 -
Pakigtan Income Enhancemant Fund
38,244 units at Rs. 55.01 per unit 2,103,831 -
Faysal Financial Seclor Oppartunity Fund
2024: 8190 units at Rs. 103.5 per unit - 951.026.00
Faysal Halal Amdani Fund
2024 7253 unils al Rs. 101.42 par unit - 735 588.00
HBL Cash Fund
1,307,682 (2024 1,180,164 ) units at Rs. 103.35 (2024: Rs, 103.21) par unit 135,152,214 121,805,628
HBL Money Markst Fund
26,745 units at Rs. 1036 per unit 2,770,840 =
ABL Cash Fund
3.052.B41 (2024: 2. 747 .352) units al Rs. 10.26 (2024: Rs. 10.23) par unil 31,307,492 28,120,867
Askari High Yield Schemea
8,073 (2024: 7.433) units at Rs. 104.6 (2024: Rs. 104 _28) per unit Ba4, 621 774,920

153?5!033!305 1,062 444,008

/’_5:‘:\
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

15 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand

Cash at banks
- in current accounis
- in depeosit accounts

15.1 These carry profit at the rates ranging from 8.5% 1o 19% per annum (2024: 18.5% 10 20.5% | per annum.

16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2025 2024
(Number of shares) Ordinary shares of Rs. 1/- each
500,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash

634,000,000 634,000,000 Issued as fully paid bonus shares

1,134,000,000 1,134.000.000

Note

16.1

2025

2024

ceeenanees RUPBEE ccseeaes

161 Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and black voting are in proportion to the shareholding.

17 LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance af beginning of the year
Additions in legse liabiitios
Changes due (o reassessment
Interest on lease labifities
Lesse remals paid

Balance al end of the year

Current portion of lease fabilities
Mon-current portion of lease labilities

986,480 913,789
289,538,065 161,783,261
185,680,866 505,443 118
475,218,931 T47 226,379
478,205,411 748,140, 168
2025 2024
ETit— Hupaﬂﬁ it
500,000,000 500,000,000
634,000,000 634,000,000

1,134,000,000 1,134,000,000
2025 2024
b il Eum PR LR Lo
166,382,292 70,809,475
9,875,848 9T 526 882
- 15,318,366
29,709,627 15,873,501
(43,690,692) (33,235,932)
162,277,075 166,382 202
{47,548,342) (42,070,250}
114,728,732 124,312,042

171 The Company has a lease finance facility with 8 commercial bank for vehicles amounting to Rs. 50000000 (2024:
Rs.50,000,000) out of which Rs. 50,000,000 (2024: Rs. 48,394,158) remain unutilized at year end.

17.2  Maturity analysis of undiscounied lease liabilites is as follows:

Gross liabilities - minimumn lease payments:
Mot later than one year

Later than one year but nat later than five years
Later than five years

Future finance charge
Present value of finance lease liabilities

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors

Boorued liabilities
Withhelding tax payable
Others

rf \
8G
-

S

Mote

181
18.2

2025 2024

P Rw S
47,548,342 42,070,250
199,033,035 191,045,577
110,098,784 152,762,344
356,680,161 365,808,171

(194,403,086) {215.515.878)

162,277,075 166,382,202
472,250,534 378,255,510
678,285,036 446,532,756
73,198,044 44,714,830
27,178,471 49,853,037
1,250,913,085 520,356,133
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181

8.2

19

19.1

19.1.1

18.1.2

19.1.3

18.1.4

19.1.5

19.1.86

19.1.7

Includes amount payable to the following related parties:

M.D Productions {Private) Limited 72,885,350 36,021,464
Moomal Productions 54,800,680 71,237 416
127,686,030 107,258 880

Includes amount accrued against following related party:
Mamina and Duraid Foundation 42,735,652 68,203,097

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencles

In 2020, the Company recesved an order from  Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), raising a tax demand of Rs.
168,166,692 in reapect of tax year 2014 on account of disallowance of agency commission vide order dated June 19, 2020,
The Company obtained a stay order against the recovery and filed a suit in Sindh High Court (SHC) against the said order.
During the year, SHC, vide its judgement dated September 12, 2024, rejected the plaint and the matter was remanded back
to the taxation authorilies for further proceedings. Subseguent to the year end, the Company received a revised tax demand
of Rs. 323,881,344 vide order dated August 04, 2025, The Company has obtained a stay order against the recovery of this
lax demand and filed an appeal before the Commissionar Inland Revenue (Appeals) - CIR(A), which is currenlly pending
adjudication

During 2023, the Company received a show cause nofice dated December 14, 2022, from Assistant Commissioner (AC) -
Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) for tax year 2016 raising a demand of Rs. 20,759,949 on alleging shori-declaration of revenue
The Company duly submitted Its responses ta AC - SRE whe vide order dated January 17, 2024, malntained the assessed
demand and added penalty of Rs, 21,817,946 increasing the total demand to Rs. 42,677,895, The Company being aogneved
filed an appeal before Commissionar Appesls and the matter is currently pending adjudication,

During 2023, the Company received a show cause notice dated December 14, 2022, from Assistant Commissioner (AC) -
Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) for tax year 2017 raizsing a demand of Rs. 80,653,779 in respect of alleged short-declaration of
ransmission expenses, cerlain advertisament and promotion expanses and technical advisory fee. The Company duly
submitted its responzes to AC - SEB who vide order dated Jsnuary 18, 2024, maintaned the assessed demand. The
Company being aggrieved filed an appeal before Commissioner Appeals and the matter is currently pending adjudication.

In 2023, the Company received an order dated October 20, 2022 from Assistant Commissioner (AC) - Sindh Revenue Board
{SRB) raising a tax demand of Rs. 454,845,572 and Rs. 81,156,253 on account of short payment and short withholding of
sales tax respectively, aggregating to Rs. 536,001,825 pertaining to tax perod from July 01, 2011, to June 30, 2015 In
addition, the order also imposed a 100% panalty amounting to Rs. 536,001,825 partaining to aforosaid period. The Company
being aggrieved filed an appeal with Commissioner Appeals, SRE, which vide its order dated March 05, 2024, reduced the
demand of tax short paid to Rs. 121,563 366, thereby also reducing the imposed penalty 1o the same amount while
maintaming tax demand of Rs. 202,719,616 as well as impased penalty at the same amount. The Company baing aggneved
fled an appesl before Appellate Tribunai, SRB. During the year, the appeal was declded through order dated November 27,
2024, whereby the matter was remanded back to the AC - SRB to consider the malier afresh, The Company has not heard
back from the authorities in this respect thus far.

During the year, the Company received a notice dated June 28, 2025, by Assistant Commissioner Infand Revenue (ACIR) in
respect of tax year 2018 raising a tax demand of Rs. 163,242 837 disallowing certain expenses on account of non-withhalding
ol laxes. The Company has filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenus - Appeals (CIR-A) agains! the demand and
the matter Is currently pending adjudication

In addition to the above, the Company is defending various minor suits filed against it in vanous courts in Pakistan relsted to
its business operations as at reporting date, which are not material to be disclosed as contingencies

The Company based on the merits of the aforementioned matters and as per the advice of its tex consultants and legal
advisars, expects a favorable oulcome on these matters and accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect in these

unconsolidated financial statements. o
/’ N
G
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19.2 Commitments

19.21 Commitments for purchase of television program as at year end amounted to Rs. 938,520,000 (2024: Rs. 468 477 478).
These include commitments to the following related parties:

2025 2024
ceemeeeeee Rupees
M.D. Productions (Private) Limited 740,308,100 308,368,867
Moomal Productions 29,061,900 80,028,400
769,370,000 398,387 067
2025 2024
Mote -- Rupees
20 REVENUE - net
Adverisement revenue 5,420,081,749 5 566,997,201
Production revenue 136,312,232 244 357 641
Digital revenue 141,589,109 128 GET. 0BT
Subscription revenue 2,310,429,009 2.425.699,940
Fiim distribution revenue 4,393,127 41944 171
20017202 8,012,805,226 8,307 666,130
201 Revenue is net off the following items:
Sales tax 943,536,029 E40 444,340
Trade and valume discoun! 520,423,704 617,472,806
1,463,959,733 1,457 917 246

20.2 Inciudes contract liabilities amounting to Rs. 15,280,135 (2024: Rs. 28,724 520}, which were realized during the vear.

21 COST OF PRODUCTION

Cost of outsourced programs

Cost of in-house programs

Cost of inventones consumed
Salanes and benefits

Technical advisory fee
Depreciation on pperating fixed assets
Depreciation on right of use assets
Amartisation

Travelling and conveyance
Insurance

Repair and maintenance

Uitilities

Fee and subscriplion

Communication

(=)
\*J

Note

211

212
4.3

4.5.1
5.1

2025

2,280,009,957
404,029,013
2,961,391
1,262,431,659
68,439,372
59,307,611
12,826,647
1,512,459
177,976,190
33,005,703
33,607,841
20,446,649
19,394,383
33,860,179

Rupees

2024

2,200,028.467
365,574,243
1,091 462
1,281,770,254
54,751,500
52,159,658
18,338,073
1,815,852
172,623,206
33,266,218
33,508,118
20,870,205
7,080,344
25,072,393
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211
21.2

22

23

Rent, rales and taxes
Printing and stationery

Securily charges

In preduction lelevision programs - opening
In preduchon television programs - closing

Released | unreleased lelevision programs - opening

Released / unreleased television programs - closing

NE
(Conszpomaon
VA
968,195 876,547
1,103,334 1,215,245
- 726,000
4,420,970,583 4,271,058,786
66,855,795 50,827 650
9 (47,918,285) (66,855,795)
4,439,908,093 4,255,030,641
683,641,711 432 619,726
] (943,350,659) (683,641,711)
4,004,008,656

4,180,199,145

Includes Rs. 39,404,932 (2024: Rs. 33 490.473) in respact of staff relirement benefits.

Represents fee pald 1o a Direclor for lechnical advisory services rendered in accordance with the agresment duly

approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries and benafits

Depreciation on operating feed assels
Advertiserment and promation
Travelling and conveyance

Insurance

Repair and maintenance

Utilities

Fees and subscription
Communication

Printing and stationery

Includes Rs. 11,224 169 (2024: R5.8,527,681) in respect of staff retirement benafits,

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits
Depreciabion on operating Med assels

Depraciation on nght of use assets
Amortisation

Muditor's remunaration
Donation

Traveling and conveyance
Insurance

Repair and maintanance
Utilities

Fea and subscription
Communication

Note

221
4.3

Note

231
4.3
4.5.1
51
23.2
233/234

2025 2024
- [T —
308,029,804 211,036,492
11,844,402 11,024 675
358,592,859 260,880,311
35,110,348 30,666,581
3,932,866 4,500,124
1,451,637 1,315,656
2,574,907 3,079,048
1,000,000 950,040
1,146,393 837,193
1,019,628 817,960
724,711,934 525.217.080
2025 2024
- RUPEES =emmmennee
619,482,715 546,281,058
72,924,823 58,442,949
9,869,183 2 575,855
71,711 307,853
11,490,543 8,544,793
85,418,667 77,548,007
116,911,440 89,886,276
12,099,747 9,978,520
74,618,229 67,239,122
75,530,551 66,841,280
31,874,107 12,144,499
11,417,695 5,850,853

©
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Legal and professional charges
Rent, rales and taxes

Prnting, stationery and penodicats
Security charges

231 Includes Rs. 11,767,144 (2024: Rs, 9,186,396 ) m respect of staff retiremeant benefils.

232 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee for unconsalidated financial stalemants
Audit fea for consolidated financlal stalemeants
Fae for halfl yearly reviaw

Other reviews, services and certificalions

Tax services

Oul of pocket expenses and sales lax on services

23.3 Includes the following donees to whom donation exceed 10% of total donation or Rs. 1,000,000

Mate

Capital Development Autharity 23,31
Womina and Duraid Foundabon

23,084,124 21,788,132
6,317,349 618,683
7,398,832 9,255,301

14,479,789 12,806,811

1.,173,198,505 990,120,091

2,561,625 2,323,750
939,263 853,875
768,488 GO8,625
5,531,966 3,455,463
367,281 238477
1,321,920 960,603
11,490,543 8,544,793

2025 2024

~—---—— Rupees

23,679,834 1,100,000

60,145,788 75,223,087

83,825 622 76,808 097

23.3.1  The company has undertaken 1o adopl a public area named as Sullana Siddiqul Park for uplifting and maintenance of the

public park

234 Reciplents of donation do not include any donee in which any director or its spouse had any interest except for donation pald
to Momima and Duraid Foundation. Following directors of the Company are also trustess of the said trust:

= Mr. Durasd Qureshi
- Ma. Sullana Siddiguil

24 OTHER INCOME Note

Income from financial instruments

Profit on deposit accoums

Exchanga gain - net

Dividend income

Liabilties no bonger payable written off
Linrealised gain on revaluation of invesimeanis
Realised gain an invastmanis

Income from other than financial instruments

Gain on disposal of aperating fixed dssets - net 4.4
Managemeant fee from related pany

Sale of coment and festival income

Sundry income

=
O
-

S

2025 2024
e RLUpEES e
82,606,990 £1,308 456
112,976,578 -
120,351,675 93,359,939
- 54 741 187
225,869, 894 31,733 646
12,379,280 6,772,018
554,184 417 267,055, 286
15,344,740 3,170,318
76,565,833 76,230,000
38,078,845 38,404,287
14,473,564 24,659 214
144 462 982 142,663,819
698,647,399 410,618,105
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23

26

27

a7

28

23

29.1

30

OTHER EXPENSES
Allowance for expecled credit loss 159,574,570 21,737,538
Exchange loss - net - 83,323,181
Provision for impalrment against long term investmanis 6 105,923,751 -
265,498,321 115,060,720
FINANCE COSTS
interast on long term financing 2,477,491 16,375,906
interest on lease liabilties 17 28,709,627 15,873,501
Bank charges 1,504,415 1,387,826
33,691,533 356841.323
FINAL TAXES
Currant 50,529,041 83,835,124
Prior {35,625,831) -
27 A 14,003,210 B3.835.124

Reprasents final taxes paid under section & {tax on dividend) and 1544 {export of services) of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
representing levies in terms of requirernents of IFRIC 21 / 1AS 37 (also see note 3.7).

MINIMUM TAX DIFFERENTIAL

Reprasents minimum tax differentizl paid under section 153 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levies in terms of
requiraments of IFRIC 21 [/ 1AS 37 (a0 sas note 3.7).

2025 2024
INCOME TAX Mote Rupees
Current 1,656,892 259,121,735
Defamred (27,116,111) {14,005 054)
Prior - (12,470,454)
(25,259,219) 232 646 227
Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense
Profit before final taxes, minimum tax differential and income tax 2,201,012.470 2827073108
Tax at the enacted tax rate of 28% 638,283,616 848,851,201
Effects of:
Tax al reduced rate (37,018,204) {1,2408,335)
Prior year tax . (12,470.454)
Super tax 9,518,569 06,388,777
Minimum tax differential and final taxes (600,595,087) (672,587,347)
Adjustment of losses (39,902,392) -
Cthers 4,444,279 (26,286,615)
{25,259,219) 232 646 227
Effective tax rale - 8%
EARNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Profit for the year 2,102,986,638 2.6810.591,757
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outztanding during the year 301 1.134,000,000 1,134.000,000
Eamings per share 1.85 2.30

%\
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

04 There is no dilutive effect on the basic eamings per share of the Company,
2025 2024
3 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Mote Rupees
Profit before final taxes, minimum tax differential and income tax 2,201,012, 470 2927,073,108
Adjustments for;
Daepreciation on cperating fixed assets 4.3 144,076,836 121,627 282
Depraciation on right of use assets 451 22,695 830 20,914,928
Amortisation on intangible assets 5.1 1,584 170 2,223,705
Finance costs 26 33,691,533 35,641,323
Exchange (gain) / loss - net 24 125 (112,976,578) 93,323,181
Profit on deposit accounts 24 (82,606,990) (81,308,456)
Gain on disposal of operating fived assets - et 24 (15,344,740} (3.170.318)
Realised gaimn on investmeants 24 (12,373,280) (6,772,018)
Dividend income 24 {120,351,675) 193.399,999)
Allowance for expected cradit loss 25 159,574,570 21,737 539
Prowvision for impairmant 2gainst long term investments 25 105,923,751 -
Liabilities no longer payable written off 24 - (54,741,167
Unrealisad gain on revaluation of investments 24 (225,869,894) (31,733,646)
(101,982 467) 24 342 354
(Increase) / decrease In current assets
Inventorias 14,926,271 {7,790,036)
Television program cosis (240,771 438) (267.050.130)
Trade debts 744,391,795 (427.803,171)
Advances {213,569,625) (115.633,211)
Trade deposits and short lerm prepayments 7,854 348 {41.018,120)
Other receivables (2,214,906, TTE}" (1,237,229,757)
(1,901,975,423) (2,096,525 425)
Increase [ (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 350,556,952 160,969,647
Contract liability (11,797,863) {11,444 485)
535813 560 1,004,415,188
32 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2025 2024
I ol el | I Bl il
Manoganad e rakan A7 22 T2 = 387112184 421635, 380 . 286,373,660
Tochaical advisory foe - 68,439,372 . . - 54,751 500 . -
Meating Toe . - 4 200,000 - - - 5000 080 -
Bonus 143,641,165 143,641,165 . AT08T,500 02311608 202,311,808 5,715,261
Retiremant benelis - = JLATT EXE - - 23,737,512
Hosise rent 21,249,325 - 173,377,203 16,544, B85 137,508, 147
Utilitas 4 732,872 - 348,320 507 4,121,081 26,037 365
Cae aliovwanca 10,363,504 - 76.768,502 20,767,188 . . 51,930,347
Fuil and coitvisyansa - 1,730,711 1,080,082 - 2975 351 2704 411 1,701 048 -
227216877 213,811,248 180,082 762,043,602 201665481 250,767 517 6701086 5B1,3101.253
il 1 1 B 105 1 1 7 Bl

LR The Chief Execullve and certain exscutives s also provided with: free use of company-maintained cars. club membership and resmbursament of expenses
related to busness fravel in accordance with the employement contract and the Company's policy

%\
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

3 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Related pardes of the Company comprse of subsldianies, assocsien compames, retwement funds, directors and key management pereonnel. Detsls of
transaciions with relaled partes during Ihe year, other than ihose which have been dsclosed elsewhere In these uncongolkdaled financl statements are s Tollows

Relationship
Subsidiaries

Associated Companies

hers

Mature of transactions

Expenses paid on behall of the Company
Expensas paid an behalf of the Subsidany
Paymant recatved on behalf of Subsidiary
Payment recewved on behaf of the Company

Managemant fee

Amount paid on behalf of the Company

Subscrption revenue
Purchaso of inlevision program rghts
Paymanis mcaied during e yaar

Payments made-dunng the year
Cantribufion 1o the provident fund

Key Management Personmel Shor-laem amployos banglits

Ratirament banelis
Purghaze of Vehick

Purchases of television programs rights

2025 ol
e RUpEES

91,833,811 20138 889
55,583,128 8,606:951
75,358.930 31,471,738
2145036837 2007 .560,785
76,656,833 TH.230,000
. T7.A5T.BOD
B4.331,058 84 861 418
20,593,778 10,511,788
- B26.375.072
1,965,092,555 2,026,814 702
1.945612,206  1,963,171,618
62,396,245 51,184,000
770,326,387 733 058 340
11,644,520 B.716,662

40,000,000 -

331 All ransaclions weh refaled parbes an antared into sl E-WBd terms IjIJ|:|l' -E'pﬂ[ﬂ‘-'ﬂﬂ' h!ll' Ihe Board of Diracltors of the Company. Tha ﬁﬂﬂﬂlﬂlﬂﬂ reca/able and
pavable balances of the related parties nclude payable o key managment persornel amounting to Rs. 827 484,128 (2024; 358 B65,287) and as disclosad in
respoctive moles (o these unconsolidated finanoal siatomenis:

333 Hey mansgemeni personnel ar= those persons having authorty and responsbility for planning. descting and controling the sciivities of the anfily dirsctly or
indirecty, The Company consilers af members of their peacutive managamant team, including the chief executiva officer and directors, o ba key managemant
personnel. None of tha kay management personnal had any amangemants with the Company other than the employment contrect and thoss mientioned o noles o
these unconsolidated financial statiements

2333 Foliowing are tha related parliss with whom the Company had anisred inlo iransactions or have arangemants / sgreements in placa:

S.No. Company Name Country of incorparation Basis of association Shareholding %
1 Skyfine Publications (Private) Limited FPakes=lan Subsidiary 100%
2 HUM TV Inc United Siates of America Sulssiciary 100%
3 LI Network FZ LLC United Arah Emirates Subsidiary 100%
4 HLUIR Meteork LIK Limited United Kngom Subsidiary 100%
5 UMM Co. (Privaie) Limited Patisian Sulbaidiary 100%
B Tower Sports (Prvate) Limded Pakistan Subsidiary 100%
7 HUR Mart (Privateh Limited Pakistan Sulbsidiaey T0%
a TEIFZLLE United Aragb Emiratos Indirect Subsidiany -

a .0 Productions (Private) Limied Pakstan Associated company (33.3.1) -
L] Maomina & Duraid Fime (Privata) Limiled Pakisian Associated company (33.3.1)

1 Memira and Duraid Foundation Pakizlan Azsocinted company (33 3.) =

12 Moomzl Productions Paks=tan Associated company (33.3.1)

13 HLUR Nemwork Limited- Emplayees’ Providant Fund Paketan Raetrament Fund .
14 Ids. Gurana Siediul Director 181%
15 I, Mazihar ub Hag Shddigul Diractor .
18 fdr. Duraid Qureshl Director 47.41%
17 Me. Sthumaid Gureehi Direclor 5.38%
18 Mes. Mahiak Akbar Rashedl Direcior .
14 Lt Gen (R) Asif Yasn Malik Dlirector

20 e Muhammad Ayud Yoonus Adhi Director

Fi | e, Sofvall Arsnr Director

) Mr. Kimzshy bakhi Shugaat Director

33.31  Theas anlilies are associnied companies | undentakings of the Company n sccordance with the provisians of Companies Act, 2017

334 Investiments oul af providend fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Sechon 248 of the Act and the regulatons formulated for this purposs

Oh
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35

351

2025 2024
Note emeeees RUPBEE =emeeeeme

FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financlal assets
At amortised cost
- Long term deposits T 32,220,144 31.787.351
- Trade debts 10 2,158,538,320 3,060 464 477
- Trade deposits 12 1,359,500 1,364,500
- Other receivables 5,004946,273 2,726,217 541
- Cash and bank balances 15 476,205.411 748,140,168

7.673,260,.648 6.567,874,037
At fair value through profit or loss
- Short term invesiments 14 1,375,033,308 1.062 444,008
Financial liabilities
Al amortised cost
- Long term financing - 31,250,000
- Lease Liabilities 17 162,277,075 166,362, 292
- Trade and other payables 1,150,535,570 825,788,266
- Undlalmad dividend 6,807,368 5,066,856
- Unpald dividend - 740,472

1,319,620,013 1.030,227.826

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a varety of financial nsks i.e. market risk {including currency risk, interest rale nisk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group's senior managemant cverseas the managament of these risks. The Group's senior managemant provides
policies for overall risk management, as well as policles covering specific areas such as foraign exchange risk, interest rate
risk and credit risk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. it is the Group's
policy that no trading in denvatives for speculative purposes shall be underiaken. The Board of Directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these nsks which are summarized below:

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of thess risks which are summarized below,

Market risk

Markel risk Is the nsk thal fair value of fulure cash flows will llucluale because of changes in markel pnces. Markel prices
comprise three typas of Ask: interest rate risk, currency sk and equity price risk.

351.1 Interest rate risk

S

=
O

Imerest rate nek is the risk that the fair value or future cash Nows of financial instruments will Nuctuate because of
changes in the market interast rates. The Company's interest rate risk anses from fong term financing, finance lease
abligations, and deposil accounts with banks. The Company manages these risks through risk management strategies.

Sensitivity analysis:

The following figures demaonstrate the sensitivity of the Company's profit before taxation to & reasonably possible change
in interest rate, with all other variables held constant:

-
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35.1.2

3513

Increase [ decrease Effect on profit

in basls points before taxation
- Rupeas -
June 30, 2025 +100 10,280,004
-100 (10,280,004}
June 30, 2024 +100 13,450,920
=100 (13,450 920}
Currency risk

Foreign currency rigk i the risk that the value of financial aseets or financial llabilities will fuctuate due to a change in forelgn exchange rates. It
arses malnly whera recelvables and payabies exst due to transactions in foreign cumancies. The Gompany's exposure 1o foreign cumancy risk is
as follows:

- 2025 7034
uso | GBP [ AED usoD | GEP | AED
Trade debis 454 406 289,566 - 454 406 298 689 .
Oihier receivables 190,808 - 63,341,962 180, 6808 - 33,980,667
Rupees ——— Rupeps -———
Closing exchange rates 28441 389.65 7.9 27835 a51.53 76.23

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonsirates the sensitivity of the Company's profit bafore taxation to & reasonably possible changa In the AED, USD and
GEP exchange rates, with all ather variables held constant:

Change in USD Effect on Change in GBP Effect on Change in AED Effect on
rate [%) profit before tax rate (%) profit before tax rote (V) profit before tax
— Rupees — - Rupees — — Rupees —
June 30, 2025 +i0 18,330,530 +10 11,282 938 +10 493 433 884
10 (18,330,530) -10 (11,282,839) -10 (493,433 864)
dune 30, 2024 +10 17,950 532 +10 10,499 B14 +10 258,034 25
-10 {17 950 537) -10 (10,490 814) -10 {258,034 535)
Equity price risk

Equity prica risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash fiows ol financial instrumeants will fluchuate because of changes in market prices
(other than thaose ansing from currency nsk or interest rate nsk). Therefore, Company's invesiments in shares end equity based mutual funds are
susceplible to equily price nsk. The Company manages (he aquity price sk through divessification and placing Bmits on Individua! and totel
investmianis. Repors on the investmants portfolio are submitted 1o the Company's sanior management on 8 regular basis.

As of the mmconsolidated staiement of financial posibion dale, the exposure to Imvestments al fair value through profil or loss was Rs
532,713,748 (2024: Rs. 312, 795077)

Sensitivity analysis
The Tallowing figures demonsirate the senstiivity of the Company's profil before taxation o a reasonably possible change in markel prices, with
all other varables held conglant:

incresse/ | oot on profit
dacreasein |l | fore taxation
market price (%)
— Rupees —
June 30, 2025 +10 53,271,375
-0 Eﬁzn:a‘mi
Jure 30, 2024 +10 31,279,508

=10 {31 2789 508}

Za
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Cradit risk

Credit rigk is the risk which arses with the possibility that ane party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation and causa the
niher party to ncur a financial loss. Conceniration of oredit sk anse when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business aciivities
or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obfigations to be similary affected by changes in economic,
palitical or other conditions: Concentrations of credit nsk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance fo developments affecting
@ particular indusiny

Management of credit risk

The Company's palicy i8 to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guadslines set by the Board of Direclors a&nd other intemal
guidelines.

Credil rsk is managed and controlbed by the management of the Company in the following manner:

- Credit rating and credit worthiness of the couniemarty is tzken into account along with the financial background 50 85 o minimiss the risk of
defait.

The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Company is mitigated by 8 pericdic review af their credit
ratings, financial statements; credit worthiness and market information on a regular basts,

- Cash iz held with reputabie banks caly.
Az of the unconsolidated statemant of financial position date, the Company is expased 1o credit risk on the following aases:

2025 2024

Note Rupees -
- Lang lerm depasils 7 32,220,144 41,787,381
- Trade dablz g i1} 2158,538,320  3,080.464 477
- Shott tenm Imvestments 14 1,375,033,308 1.062 444 006
- Trade deposits 12 1,359,500 1,364,500
- Other recevabies 5004046273 2 T#217.541
- Bank balances 15 475,218,931 747,226,378
9047316476 7,628 504 258

Quality of financial assets

The eredit quality of financial assets can be assessad by referencs to extemal cradit ratings or 1o historical Information about counterparty

defaull rales:
2025 2024
Mote —reeee—  RUPEEE ——me—
Bank balancos
Al+ 455,928,275 720,504,111
AZ 19,290,656 17,321,848
Al - 420
i Dhitoa s 1 £ R
Short term Investments
Listad sacunties
At 321,750,000 175,300,000
Mutual funds
A - 136 544 051
Al B44 621 774,820
AT 2,103,911 251,026
BB 208,206,848 185,978, 600
Adk{T} 524,084,004 558,893,453
Ba-l) 106,180,156 6,001,918
2 Star 92,601,129 -
3 Siar 118,362,619 -
1.053,283,308 BBT, 144,008
14

%)
\*J

1,375,033, 308 1,062 444,008
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35.31

35.4

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk ia the risk that the Company will not be able 1o meet itz financial obligations as they fail due: The Company applies prudant risk
managemant policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and by keeping committed credit lines.

The: table below summarizes the maturty profile of the Company's financial liablites as at the following reporling dates:

2025 Lese than 1 year 1to & years Il More than 5 years Total
Rupees:
Lease Liabiibies 47,548,342 199,033,035 110,098,784 356,680,161
Trade and other payables 1,150,535,570 - - 1,150,535,57T0
Unclaimed dividend 6,807, 36B - - 6,807,368
1,204 BS1 280 199,033,035 110,008,784 1,544,023 0449
2024 Less than 1 year 1to 5 years || More than 5 years Total
Rupees
Lease Liabilitles 42,070,250 191,045,577 152,782 344 385.898,171
Long term financing 31,250,000 31,250,000 - 62,500,000
Trade and other payables B25,7H8 266 - - 825,788 266
Unclaimed dividend 6,066,896 - - 6,066,896
Unpaid dividend 740472 - - TARATZ

305,915 884 2222955 152 VB2 344 1,280,293 805

Changes in liahilities from financing activities

1-Jul-24 Cash Flows MNew leases || Others 30-Jun-25
Rupees
Long term financing 31,250,000 (31,250,000} - =
Leasa habilives {Mote 17) 166,362,292 {43,690.692) 9,875,848 29,709,627 162,277,075
1-Jul-23 Cash Flows New loases " Othors A0-Jun-24
Rupess
Long term financrg 93,750,000 (62,500,000} - - 31,250,000
Leasea llablities (Mote 17) 70,899 475 {33,235 932} 97 525 882 31,191 867 166,382 292

Capital risk

The Company finances its operations through sgquity, borrowings and management of working capital with & view of maintaining an
appropriate mix batwean various sources of finance (o minimize gk, The primary objective of the Company's capital mamagement = lo
ensure that it mamnlains healthy capital ratios in order o support its business sustam fulure development and maamize shareholders’ value.
The Company monitors capital using & debt equity ralio as follows

2025 2024
Mate RUpBes -—cae
Lease habilites {Note 17) 17 162,277.075 166,382,292
Current portion of long term Tinancing - 31,250,000
Total debt 162.277.075 187,632,292
Share capital 16 1,134,000,000 1,734 ,000,000
Unappropriated profit 10,825.442,775 8. 722,456,137
Total equity 11,950.442.775 0,856,456, 13T
Total debt and equity 12,121.719,850 10,054 OBA 429
Gearing ratio 1.34% 1.97%
—
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35.5

36

(o)

Fair value measurement

Falr value Iz the price thal would ba received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a labilty in an orderiy transaction between market

participants at the measurement dato.

The laliowing table shows sssets recognised al fair value, analysed bebween those whose fair value is based on:

Level 1. Quoted prices in sclive markels for identical assels or kabifies,

Leve!l 2: Those invohing inpuds other than guoted prices included in Level 1 that are cbsenable for the asssl or labiity, either direcily (as

prices| or indirecily {derved from prices), and

Levai 3: Thosa whosa inputs for the assel or Bability that are not based on obsarvable market data (unobsarvabie inputs).

” Note Year
fair value
{Rupees)

Short term investments. 14 2025 1,375,033,308 - - 1,375,0331,308

Short term vesimeants . 14 2024 1,062 444 008 1.062,444 004

During the year, there wera nd ransfens batwean level 1 and level 2 falr vahis measuraments, and po ransfers inlo and out of level 3 i

value measurement

Fimancial instrumeants whach are radabls in an open marke! are revalued at the marke! prices pravalling on the staiement of financial position

date,

The camying values of all financsl assels and lipbidities refliected in the unconsolidated fimancial stalements appropriata their fair values,
OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Company has determined following reportable operating segments on the basis of areas of operations

i.e. entertainment and news;

Enteriainment segment 12 engaged in adverisamenl, enlertamment and madia markating.
Mews segments is engaged in broadcasting of news programs.

Revenue
Adverimamen! revenus
Production revenus
Digieal revenue
Subscription revenue
Fllm distrbulian reverue

Cost of produsction
Transmission cost

Gross profit

Distribution expanses
Administrative expenses

Segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses | income

Other income
Othsr axpensas

Finance costs

Profit before final taxes, minimum tax

differential and income tax

N

8

~

Entertalnment News Total

2025 | 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024
4,181,609,532 4615794604  1,238472,217 851,202 687 5,420 081,749 5, 566,807,201
136,062,232 236,447 641 250,000 7,810,000 136,312,232 244,357 641
139,015,755 128,667,087 2,573,354 - 141,569,109 1286670687
2,308,043,830 2425 699 440 2,385,179 - 2,310,429,009 2,325 699 940
4,393 127 41044 171 - - 4,393,127 41844171
6,769,124 4T6 7348553443  1.243,680,750 886,112 6AT §,012.805,226 8,307 666,130
{3,363,552,654) (3,104, 570660)  (816,646,491) (000437 008)  (4,180,199,145) (4,004 DORE54)
{91,976,065) {85,135 678) (41,164,652) (38,028,579} (133,140,717) (121,164 25T)
3313505757 4158847 105 385,869,607 23646112 3,699,465, 364 4,182 493217
(608,949,514} {431.280.778) (115, T62.420) {B3,926,302) (724, 711,934) (525,217 .080)
(904,060,482) (743,817 2200 (269,138,023}  (F46,202871)  (1,173,198,505) (990,120,091}
1,800,585, 761  2.883 639,107 969,164 (316,483,061} 1,801,554 925 2 BGT, 156,046
698,647,399 410,619,105
{265,408,321) (115,060,720)
{33,691,533) (35 B41,323)
2,201,012,470 2927 073,108




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Final taxes
Mirimum tax ditferantial

Profit bofore income tax
Income tax
Profit for the year

Other infarmation

{14,903,210) {B3,835,124)
(108,381,841) s
2,077.727419 28437237984

25.259,219

(232 646 227)

2,102.986.638

2,810,591 757

Asmortisation {1,507,688) {1,713,056) {76 480) (510,649 (1,584,169) (2,223 7058)
Depreciation {106, 788,709} (86,908,140} (59,283,957) (55,634,070 {166,772,666) {142 542 210}
Segment assels 3.235,162,291 3341460 443  1,479,205,669 1,781.517 985 4,714 367,960 5122978442
Unalionated Assets B,668 554,515 5873553623
Total Assets 13,382,922 475 10,986,532 065
Segment liabilites 1,353,209,350 925,306,008 59,880,800 102682419 1,413,190,160  1,117,088,425
Unallocated liahilities 10,289 540 22 087 603
Total Liabllities 1,423,479, 700 1,140, 075928
Segment capital expendituras 202 1164315 36,533 321 22,388,804 45 532 618 314, 505 239 B2 168 230
Unalliocated capital sxpanditure 109,265,531 14,332 625
423,770,770 36 498 E54
361 Reconciliation of segmant assets, labilites and capial expenditure 1o the tolal assets, habiliies and capital expenditura of the
Company is as follows:
2025 2024
36.1.1 Segment assets MNote Rupees
Allocated segment assets 4,714,367 960 51220978 442
Long lerm invesiments 6 242,974,730 348,898 481
Long term deposits and prepayments 7 270,340,019 282,170,583
Deterred tax asset - net ] 172,138,033 145,021,821
[vantonas 9,579,352 24 505,623
Advances 11 483,778 465 270,208,840
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 12 61,969,069 69,923 418
Oiher receivables 13 5,206,220,513 2 880,377,368
Short term investmeanis 14 1,375,033,308 1,062 444 008
Taxation - net 370,315,615 41,863,203
Cash and bank balances 15 476,205.411 748,140,168
Total assets 13,382,922 475 10,996,532 065
36.1.2 Segment liabilities

Allocated segment liabllities
Contract liability

Unctamed dividend

Unpad dividend

Total liabilities

1,413,190,160 1,117,988,425
3482172 15,280,135
6.807,368 6,066,896

. 740472
1,423,478,700 1,140,075 928

©
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

36.1.3 Segment capital expenditure

Allncated Segment capital expanditure 314,505,239 82,166,239
Additions o capital work in progress 461 109,265,531 14,332,825
Tolal capital expenditura 423,770,770 06,408 864

36.2  Geographical information of net sales to external customers

Asia 5.834,707,316 €,105,672,873
Amenca 2,178,007,910 2,201,993,257
8,012,805,226 8,307 666,130

363 All non-current assets of the company are located in Pakistan {domicite country).

36.4 Revenue from four (2024: three | major customers of the Company perlaining to enterlainment segment constituted 66%.
{2024 67%) of the total revenue during the yaar

ar NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The lotal number of employees and average number of employess at year end and duning the year respectively are as follows,

2025 2024
Total number of employvees 780 756
Average number of employees during the year 757 743

38 GEMERAL

381 Corresponding figures have been reclassified / rearranged wherever necessary for better presentation. However, there are no
malerial reclassifications (o repon in these inancial slalements, except as disclosad below.

Reclassified S
From | To
- Riupegs —o

Reclassification of television program cost Television Program Television Program 668,959 141

from non curment assats to cument assets (Non Current Assels) (Current Assets) e
Trade Debts ! 39,686,300

i Lang term deposits EC

Reclassification of long ferm advance Capital Work in Progress X

(Property and Egulpmant) advances and prepaymeants 153,220,700

38.2 Figures have bean rounded off o the nearest Rupes,
hoi: ] DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial staternants have been authorised for (ssue on October 02, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

a2
P DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
~ 3 Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
100
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of HUM Network Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements ol HUM Network Limited and s subsidiaries (the Group), which
comprise the consolidated statemant of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidaled slalemant of comprehensive income, the consolidaled statamant of changes in equily, the consolidated slalement of cash
llows for the year then ended and noles to the consolldated financial statements, including materlal actounting palicy Information and
ather gxplanatory Inlormation.

In cur opinion, consalidated financlal statemeanis give a trua and fair view ol the consolidated financial position.of the Group as at 30
June 2025, and of its consolidated financizl performance and its consolldated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as appboable in Pakistan,

Basis for Opinion

We conductad our audit in accordance with Inteérnational Standards on Auditing (I5As} as applicabla in Pakistan, Qur responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Audilor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
saction of our report. Wa are independent of tha Group in accordance with the Intermational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Coede of Ethies for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartared Accountants of Pakistan (the Code), and we
have fulfilled our other athical responsibilitias in accordanca with the Code. Wa balisve that the audit evidence we have obitained is
zufliciem and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matiers are those matters {hat, in our professional judgment, were of mast significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whele. and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinicn on these matters.



Following are the Key Audit Matters:

2 @l FEPORT 2025

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Television program costs

As disclosed In notes 4.4 and 8 fo the consolidated financial
statements, television program costs amounting to Rs.
1,400,015,137 ara carried at lowear of remaining cost and nat
realizable value determined based on revenue which is expacted
to be earned.

Revenues sxpsected to be sarned are estimated by the
managemant based on various lactors including advartising
rates, airing schedule and number ol planned ra-runs,
Accordingly, these estimates are reviewed petiodically and
costs charged 1o the statemeant of profit or loss and remaining
cost of assats are adjusted, if necessarny.

We have considerad this as a key audit matter due to
involvement of management’s estimates and assumptions.

Our key audit procedures, amongst others, included the
following:

+  pbtained an understanding of the Group's processes and
rejated nternal controls over television program costs;

+  performed testing of Inputs used by the management in
the calculation of expected revenua to be earmed on a
sample basis by inspacting the underlying supporls;

» performed recalculation of cost charged by tha
managemant In the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for a sample of television programs in accordance
with the policy of the Group;

= perlormed testing of purchase of television programs on
a sample basls to ensure that they are recorded
appropriately al the oomect costs when the control of the
underlying episodes have been transterad to the Group;
and

* assessed the reasonableness of the estimates used by
ihe managemeni by comparing thase with the actual
rasulls on a8 sample basis.

2. Revenue from advertisements and subscriptions

As disclosed in note 22 1o the consolidated financial statements,
revernue gamad by the Group from advertisements and
subscriptions amounting to FAs. 10,800,654, 3680 constitutes
95724 of the lotal revenue of the Group.

In case of advertisemant revenue, the point of racognition is
when the related adverlisement Is aired. Revenua from
subschptions 15 recognisad in the month, the senvica is rendered.

We have considered this a5 a key audit matter considering
the significanca of the amoum of revenua ganaratad from the
streams mentloned above. Further, revenue is also considerad
as a key performance Indigator of the Group 1o meet
slakaholdars’ expactations.

Our key audit procedures in this area amaongst others inciuded
the fallowing:

*  obtained an understanding of the Group's precesses and
related internal controls for revenue recognition from
advartizements and subseriptions and on a sample basls,
tegtad tha effectiveness of those contrals, spacifically in
relation to recognition of revenue and timing thereof;

= Inspected a sample of contracts to check that revenue
racognition was in accordance with the contract terms
and the Group's revenue recognilion policles;

«  perormed testing of transaclions on a sample basis 1o
ensure that the related revenues are recorded appropriataly
whan the advertisemant iz alred in cage of advertizsemant
revenue and when the service 15 rendered in case of
aubscription; and

= assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures in
accordance with the applicable financial reporting
standards,

©
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon

Management Is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
but dees nol include the consolidated hinancial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our ppinion on the consolidated financial statements does not covar the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion tharaon,

In connaction with our audit of the consolidated financial statemeants. our responsibility is to read the aothar infarmation and, In doing
g0, consider whather the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statamants or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, basad on the work we have parformed, we concluds that
there is a material misstatement of this other Information, we are required 1o report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Managemant is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
acesunting and raporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such intaral contral as managemant
datarmines is necassary lo anable tha preparation of consolidated financial statemants that are free from material misstatement,
whather due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability 1o continua as a going
concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management
either imends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so

The Board of Directors is responsible for oversesing the Group's financial repoarting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for tha Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
materlal misstatement, whather due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's repan that includes our opinlon. Reasonable assurance
Is @ high level of assurance, but s not a guaranies that an audil conducted in accordance with 1SAs as appheable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or errar and are considerad material if,
Individually or in the aggregate, hey could reasonably be expected Lo influence the economic decsions ol users laken an he basis
of theze consolidated financial statemants,

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and mamtain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. Wa also:

= Identify and assess the nsks of material misstatemant of the consalidated financial statamants, whether dua to fraud ar arrar,
design and parform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit svidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinlon. The rigk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one
resulting from arror, as Iraud may invalve collusion, lorgery, inlentional omissions, misrapresantations, or the override ol Internal
control.

«  Obtain an understanding of intamal control relevant to the audit in order to design-audit procedures that are 2ppropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the affectiveness of the Group's infernal control,

. Evaluate the appropratenass of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by managemasnt.

«  Concluge on the appropriateness of management's use of the golng concern basis of accounting and, based on the audil evidence
obtained, whether a material uncenainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. It we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention in aur
auditor's raport to the ralated disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or. If such disclosuras are inadeguats, to modity
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Howaver, fulure
avents or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concarm.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contant of the consolidated linancial statements, Including the disclosures, and

whethar the cansolidated financial statements reprasant the underiying transactions and avents in a mannar that achievas fair
prasentation.
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*  Oblain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infermation of the entities or business activities within tha
Group to axprass an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, suparvision and
pariormanca of tha group audit. We remain solely responsible lor our audil opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding. among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and signlficant
audit lindings, including any significant dsliciencies in internal control that we denlily during our audil.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding Indepandence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
whera applicable, related sateguards,

From the matters communicated with the Board of Diractors, wa determine those matiers that were ol mosl significance in the audit
of the consalidated financial statements of the current vear and are therefore the key audit matters: We dascribe these matters. in our
audlitor's report unless law or regulation praciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extreamaly rars circumsiances, we
determineg that a matter should not be communicated in our repor because the adverse conseguencas of doing 5o would reasonably
be expacted to outwelgh the public interest banefits of such communication

Thie engagement partner on the audit resulting in this Independent auditors” report is Shaikh Ahmed Salman.

'::'?Ll l L—

Chartered Accountants

Placa: Karachi

Date: 08 October 2025

UDIN Number: AR2025100765Sbdal THIW
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025 = -
Note seremreems QUPEES soeeemeeee
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and eguipmeant ] 1,567,450,395 1,381,703,333
Intangible assets 6 229,890,899 254,384,203
Long term deposits, advances and prepayments T 270,345,701 282 184 145
Deferred lax assel - nel B 253,915,959 169,109,833
2,321,606.954 2,107.381,514
CURRENT ASSETS
Inveriories 9,578,152 24,506,672
Television program costs 9 1,400,015,137 1,206,196,593
Trade debts 10 4,156,163,219 5,206,721,585
Advances 11 1,142,638,804 334 604,084
Trade deposils and short tam prepayments 12 163,715,656 28,470,526
Other racelvables 13 250,112,867 235,029,850
Taxation - net aT2,B88 127 37 569 395
Shorl term invesiments 14 1,395,048, 840 1,062, 444,008
Cash and bank balances 15 2.916,927,547 2,313,357,.609
11,807,080,630 10,600,840, 538
TOTAL ASSETS 14,128, 696,593 12,747.322,052
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised capital
1,500,000,000 (2024: 1,500,000,000)

Ordinary shares of Rs. 1/~ each 1.500,000,000 1,500.000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 16 1,134,000,000 1,134,000,000
Unappropnated profit 9.941,390.418 8,705 651,051
Foreign currency translation reserve 575,600,310 555,709,516
Attributable to ownars of tha Holding Company 11,651,080,728 10,305,360, 567
MNon-controlling interast (B8,749,922) (BB.677.922)

11,562,330, 806 10,306 6A2 B45
NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Leaza liabilities 17 114,728,733 124 312,042
Long term financing 18 . 1,488,288
Staff retirement benefits 18 130,755,178 108,013,256
245 483 911 233,813,586
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and cther payables 20 2,160,654, TB4 1,441,897 402
Contract liabilities 99,872,603 650,992 343
Unclaimed dividend 6,807,368 6,066,886
Unpaid dividend - TA0,4T2
Currant porion of lease liabdlities 17 47 548, 342 42,070,250
Current portion of long term financing 18 5,958,779 35,058 458
2,320,881,8T6 2.176.825,821
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 21
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 14,128 696,583 12717,322,052
The annexed notes from 1 1041 form an integral part of these consolideted financlal statements.
] ‘-"A - III'.'
|%j‘"f il o
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Revenue - net

Cost of producticn

Transmission cost

Gross profit
Cistribution expenses
Adminisirative expenses
Oiher income

Other expenzes
Operating profit
Finance costs

Profit before final taxes, minimum tax
differantial and income tax

Final taxes
Minimum tax differential

Profit before income tax

Income tax

Profit for the year

Altributable Lo:

Orwriers of the Holding Company
Man-controfling interest

Earnings per share — basic and diluted

The annaxed notes from 1 10 41 farm an integral part of these consolidated financial statemants.

—
A
DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive
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MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Director
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2025 2024
ss=e—eee  Rupees

11,478,854, 122 12,203,007 629
(7.6B6,072,487) (6.501.276.001)
{4841,336,273) (318,107, 482)
(8,167 408,760) (6,810,383 484}
3,311,445 362 5473,624,215
(741,519,898) {1,1B5,406,658)

{1,618,962,964)

(1,206.434,376)

702,058,368 79,185,966
(271,284,618) {111,416,637)
1,381,736,249 3,349,552,510
(36,121,348) {36,245 668)
1,345,614,301 3,313,306, 642
(14,203,210) (63,835,124)
(154,606,312) (15,230,983}
1,176,105,379 3,214,240,735
50,561,988 (288,370,031)

1,235,667, 367

£.924 870,704

1,235,739,367 2,924 967 161
(72,000) (96 457)
1,235,667,367 2.974.870,704
1.09 2.58
MUHAMMAD ABEBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Profit for the year

Cther comprehensive income for the year

Items that may be reclassified subseguently to statement of

profit or loss in subsequent periods

Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive Income for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of the Holding Company
Non-contiolling intenest

Tha annexed notes from 1 1o 41 form an integral part of these consolidated financial stalements.

X
) {{ S
v
DURAID QURESHI
Chief Executive

\)
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MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI
Directar

2025 2024
Rupees ——-———
1,235,667.367 2.924 870,704
15,980,754 38,820,845
1,255,648 161 2 963,691,550
1.255,720,161 2. 963, TER 007
{72,000) {98,457}
1,255,648,161 <, 965,601,550
MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN

Chief Financial Officer
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
Revenue resore Other resere
lzsued, Forelgn Froy
subscribed Unappropriated CUTTERICY ariributable to owners of ,
[ confrolling
and paid-up profit tranalation the Holding Company kit Total
capltal servn
Rupees
Balance & af Juena 30, 273 1,134 000,000 5,780,603 050 S D ET0 T 451 512 50 (HBE 541 4465) TAa7 oo (Eh
Prroafit Pt e e - 2524 BET. AR - ” 2524 O5T, 151 IR AT, 61
Chher aomprohensree meome 38§20 BaE 34 520 G 38 BA0 g48
Tl Ensmpertianisns Mo o B e - 2024907161 2 208405 2. TR0 ERERETE
Lo aifritiuiabie to ron-contrliog misned for the war LT [l L]
Badance as of June 30, 3024 1134, 000000 B.705.651 051 55570056 40,305,580 56T e 57T 23} 0,06 BH2 845
Profit for {he e - 1,235, 719,367 - 1,238,739, 367 1,235,735, 387
Onher noETRrEhens e rome . 18,050, Tid 10, 980, 758 18,500, T4
Tolal compistensis noone o lhe year 1,235,730 3867 45,080,784 1,256, 720,181 1,255, 720,161
Loz atinbutsbie in nor-contmling eanes for-tha year [Ta000) {7 000)
Badorce oa at June 30, 2025 1,134,000, (00 051, 390,418 575,608,310 11451,080, 738 (B, TiE 23] 11,56 330 &06
Thie anivexed fictes fam {041 form e integral part of thes s coisoidated francial sixemens,
o ’_’_o\ = 1\-_\_
e ol =R
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ sIDDIQuUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note srassssancs RUPBES wossanness

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from aperations a3 1,441 441,924 1.006 489,088

Income lax paid (353,561,941) {195,381,049)

Final taxes paid - (702,182)

Minimum tax differential paid (154,606,312}

Finance costs paid (6,411,721) {20,372,167)

Long berm deposits, advances and prepayments - nel 11,834,444 (58.371.854)

Net cash generated from operating activities 938,696,394 731,631,706
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions o property and equipment (405,835 553) (111,420, 184)

Additions to intangible assets & (25,250,000} -

Acquizition of subsidianes - {115,903.523)

Long term invesiment disposed - 43 577 574

Ehort term investments made (19,260,835) {440 007 085)

Dividend received 20,000,000 83,350,995

Prafit recanved on deposil accounts 26 154,571,115 128 502 483

Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets B 896 680 11,836,874

Net eash used in Investing activities {266,878,593) (383,072,862)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid - {720,973)

Interest portion of lease liabilities paid 17 (29,709,627) (15,873.501)

Principal portion of lease Habilities paid (13.981,065) (17,362,431)

Long tarm financing paid {30,587, 967 {88,747,105)

Net cash used in financing activities (74,278,659) (122,704.010)
Met increase in cash and cash equivalents 537,538,142 225 854,834
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,313,397,5309 2,101,886,791
Impact of foreign currency translation 5,990,506 (14,453, 818)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 2,9186,927,547 2.313,387,809
The annsxed notes from 1 fo 41 form an integral pan of (hese consolidated financizl statements

A r'k___a IIIII N
DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1
14

1.2

13

14

THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS
Thia 'Group’ consists of HUM Matwork Limited (the Holding Company) and the following subsidiarias:

Subsidiary companies Country of incorporation Parcentage of holding
HUM TV, Inc. United States of America T00%:
HUM Metwork UK Limited United Kingdom 100%
Skyline Publications (Private) Limitzd Pakistan 100%
HUM MNetwork FZ LLC Uniled Arab Emirales 100%:
HUMM Co. (Private) Limitad Pakistan 100%:
HUM Mart (Privata) Limited Pakistan TO%
Tower Sporis (Private) Limited Pakistan 100%
TSIFZLLC United Arab Emirates 100%
Sphere Yentures (Private) Limied Pakistan 100%:

The Holding Company was incorporaled in Pakistan &s a public limited company on February 25, 2004, under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, (now Companies Act, 2017). Tha shares of the Holding Company are gquoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The
Holding Company's princigal business s o lBunch ransnational satellite channels and aims at presenting a wide vanety of cultural
heritage and news. I8 comn areas of operation are pmdur:unn‘ adverisement, enlerainment and media markeling. I covers a wide
variety of programs with respect ta infarmation, anfertainment, current affairs, education, health, fosd, music and society,

HUM TV, Inc., HUM Mebwork Uk Limiled and HUM Nelwork FZ LLC have been eslablished wilh (he purpose of providing enleriainmeant
programmes to the South Aslan community by Increasing presence in the United States of Amesica (USA), Canada, UK and UAE

respectively The subsidiary companies will also serve as a platform for the Holding Company to explore avenues for greater distribution
of the Hoiding Company brands in USA, Canada, UK and UAE and will estshlish relations with advertisers, as well as develop US-
based media materals, such as dramas, documentanes and other enferainment shows and avents. Skyline Publications (Privata)

Limited (SPL} is engaged in the publicatons of books and magazines. HUMM Co (Private) Limited has been established with the

purpose of developing and producing contents, shows and parograms. HUM Mar (Private) Limited s engaged in the business of anfing
shopping for grocery, househoid items and consumer goods. Towar Sports (Privata) Limitad is angaged in the business of providing

specialised spors services which include but are not imited to production, sales, morketing and distribution of sports media content.

Sphere Vanlures (Private) Limited Is engaged In production. acquisition, busing, selling, procuring, sponsoring, commissioning and

markating of TV programmes, events, fims and entertainment programmers and software for their exbibition, distibution and

dissimination on TV channels.

In prior yaar, HUM Natwork FZ LLC acquired 100% shareholding of TS3 FZ LLC, e 100 ordinary shares having face value of AED
1.000 esch, issued at AED 17,536.73 each at 8 cost of AED 1,753,672 million through purchase of 100 ordinary shares. Resultantly,
T&3 FZ LLC becams a subsidiary of the HUM Network FZ LLG effective from August 28, 2023, TS3 FZ LLC s engaged in the
business of providing sponz consultancy, media and marketing consultancy and digital media services. In the current year, purchase
price allocation exercise has bean completed with the assistance of an independent valuer {refer nole 3)

Geographical location and address of business units

Registered offices

Holding Compary Plot No. 10011, Hassan Ali Street, O, L1, Chundrigar Road, Karachi
HUM TV, Inc. f201 Benhomme Road, 180N, Houston Texas

HIUM Metwork UK Limited 38-P Alum rock road, Birmingham, Engtand. 2 Hemilet Mews, London
Skyline Publications (Private) Limited Plot Mo, 10011, Hassan All Street, O, 1.1, Chundngar Road, Karachl
HUM Metwork FZ LLC G01, Boutique Studio 17, Dubal Studio City, United Arab Emirates
HUMM Co. (Privata) Limitad Flot No. 10011, Hassan Ali Street, Of. |.1. Chundrigar Road, Karachi
Hum Mart {Private) Limited Plot No. SR-7, Survey 413, Sector TA, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi
Tower Sports (Private) Limited Office Mo. 111, 1st floor, Sidco Avenue Centre, Saddar, Karachi
TEIFZLLC Fulgirah - Creative Tower, P, Box 4422, Fujairah, United Arab Emirates
Sphere Venturas (Private) Limited Mezzanine Floor, 3-C, Rahat Commercial Lane, Karachi

)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

City offices
Karachi B.R R Tower, Hassan Ali Street, Off. 1. Chundnger Road, Karachi
lslamabad 2A, I&T canlre, sector G-G/1, lslamabad
Islamabad Piot 2C, Shakesel Express Building MNo. 2, Khayaban e Suharwardy, Aabpara,
|siarm atad
Lahore Heouse Mo, 58, R-24, Masson Road, Lahare
Peshawar Plot Mo, 7-4, 29 The Mall, Peshawar Cantonmant
Quetta Plot Mo. 4-A, Ground Floor, Alwan @ Mashng Hall Road, Maodel Town, Quetta
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 Statement of compliance

These consobdated financial statements have heen prepared in accordance with the sccounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakstan. The accountng and reportng standards applicable in Pakistan comprse of:

- Intemational Financiel Reporing Standards (IFRS) wsued by the Intemational Accounting Standard Board (IASE) as
notfied under the Companes Act 2017 (the Act), and

- Provisions of and directives lssued under the Act

where provisions of and directives issued under the Act differ from IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act are
fnllowed

2.2 Accounting convention

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except otherwise specifically stated.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic emaronment in wiich
the Group operates (the functional currency), The consolidated financizl stalements are presented in Pakistani Rupess, which is also
the Group's funclional curency,

2.4 Basis of consolidation

Subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. Control is achieved when the group is exposed. or has rights. to variahble
refums from its involvement with the nvestes and has ability to affect those retums through its power over the investes. Genarally, there
i presumption that a majorty of voting nghls result in contral.

The Group re-assess whether or not it controls an investee il facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes o one or more
elements of control,

Subsidiary i consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue o be consolidated until the date when such
confrol ceases. Income and expenses of a subsidiary scquired or disposed off during the yvesr are included In profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

The financial statements of the subsidiary companias are prepared for the same reporting period as the Holding Company, using
consistant accounting policies. The accounting policies of the subsidiary companles have been changed o conform with accounting
policies of the Holding Company, where required.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition mathod of accounting. dentiiable asssts acquired, liabities assumed
and conlingent labilites assumed in a busness combination ane measured initially at their fair values at the acguisition date, irespecte
of the extent of any non-controfing interest.

The cost of an acquisition & maasured as the cash paid and the fair value of other assets given, equity instruments issued and labilities
incurrad or assumed at the date of axchange, plus costs directly attrbutable to the acguistion. ldentifisble assets acquined, labilites
assumed and contingent lisbilities assumed In a business combination are measured Initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the exent of any non-controlling interest, The excass of cost of acqulsition s recorded as goodwill, however, if the cost of
acquisition s less than fair vaiue of the net assats of the subsidiary acquired, the difference s recognised directly in the profit or loss.

Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulaled impairment losses. Goodwil B reviewed for mpairmant
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camying value may be impared. Impaiment is
detarmined by assessing the recoverabla amount of the cash-generating unll © which the goodwill relates, Whera the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the camying amaunt. an impaiment la5s (s recognisad
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Al intra-group balances, transactions and unrealised gains and losses resulling from intra-group transactions and dividends within the
Group are aliminatad n full.

J

Mon-controling interest (NCI) s that part of the net results of operations and of net assets of subsidiary atiributable interest which are not
owned by the Group. The Group maasures NCI on proportionate basis of the net assets of subsidiary company.

25 New standards and amendments to approved accounting standards
251 Adoption of amendments to approved accounting standards and application guidance effective during the year

The accounting polickes adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistant with those of tha previous
financial year, except as described below:

IAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current and non-current liabilities with covenants - Amendments to
IAS 1

The amendments to 1AS 1 specify the requirements for classifving llabiRies as current or nen-curant, The amendments clarify what s
mieant by a rght o defer setlement and thal a right to defer satlemant must exdst at the aend of the reponting period. The amendments
further clanfy that classification is unaffected by the likelihood thal an enfily will exercise its deferral righl and that only if an embedded
dervative in a convertible iablity is fself an equity instrumant would the terms of a labity not impact its classfieation, Also it has been
clarified that an entity is. required o disclose when a liabiity arsing from a loan agreement is classified az non-cument and the entity's
nght to defer settiement is contingent on complance with future covenants within twelve months

The emendments had no mpact on the Group's consolidated fingncial statements.

IAS Tand Disclosures: Supplier finance arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7
IFRS T

The amendments o 1AS 7 and IFRS 7 clanly he charactenslics of suppber inance amangemenls and require additional disclosure of
such amangements, The disclosure requirements in the amendments are ntended o assisl users of financial slatements in
undarstanding the effects of supplier finance amangaments on an antity’s liabilities, cach lows and exposura 1o liguidity risk.

The amendments had no impact on the Groups consolidated financial statements,

IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a sale and leaseback - Amendments to IFRS 16

The amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requiemeants that a seller-lesses uses in measuring the leasa lability arising in a sale and
legseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognisa any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the nght of use i
raiains,

The amendments had no mpact on the Group's consolidated financial stetements.
2.5.2 Standards, annual improvements and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following atandards, annual improvemeants and amendmeanis to approved accounting standards as applicable in Pekistan would be
effective from the dales mentioned below against the respective standards, amendments or improvements;

Standards / Amendmenis Effective date (annual
periods beginning on or
after)

s 21 Lack of exchangaabiity - Amendments 1o 143 21 January 01, 2025
IFRS 17 Insurance contracts January 01, 2026
IFRS T/ Clzssification and measurement of financial instruments - Amendments to IFRS @ and IFRS January 01, 2026
IFRS 9 7

Annual mprovements (o IFRS Accounting Standards - Volime 11 danuary 01, 2026
IFRS 7/ Conftracts referancing nature-dependent elaciricily - Amendments 10 IFRS 8 and IFRS 7 January 01, 2026
[FRS 9
IFRS 10/ Sala or contnbution of azsets between an investor and its associate or joint wanture - Mot yet fmaised
IA5 28 Amendment to IFRS 10 and 1A5 28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Further, following new standards have been ssued by IASB which are yot 1o be notified by the SECP for the purpase of applicability

In Pakistan:

Standard IASE effective date (annual
IFRS 1 First-time adoption of internabional Financtal Reporting Standards July 01, 2009
IFRS 18 IFRS 18 - Presantation and disclosure In financlal slalaments January 01, 2027
IFRS 1 IFRS 19 - Subsidianes without public accauntability: Disclosures January 01, 2027

The Group expects that above standards, annual improvements and amendments 1o the approved accounting standards (other
than IFRS 18) will not have any materal impact an the Group's consolidated financial statements In the penod of initial application,
The Group s currently working o dentty all impacts that IFRS 18 will have an the primary financial statements and notes to the
consolidated fmancial statements.

26 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires the management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions thal affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and flabifiies and accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these
judgemeants, estimates and assumptions could result in outcomes that requirg 8 material adjustmant fo the camying amount of
assets or lisbites affected in future perods.

The judgements, estimales and assumplions are based on historical expenence and vanous other factors that are believed 1o be
reasonable under the circumstances, tha esults of which form the basis of making judgements asbout the carmyng values of assets
and liabiities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the perind in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future penods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

2.6.1 Estimates and assumptions

The key assumplions concerning the fulure and other key sources of astimaton uncertainty al the reporting date, thal have a
aignifecant nsk of cauvsing a matenal adjustment to the camying amounts of acsats and Eabiliies within the next financial vear, are
dascribed below.

I} Useful lives and residual values of items of property and equipment and intanaible assets

The Group reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreclation [ amortisation, useful ife and residual value used in the calculation of
depreciation / amortisation. In making these estimates. the Group uses the technical resources available. Any change in the
aslimates in the future might affect the camyng amount of respective tem of property and equipment and intangible assats, with
corresponding effects on the degrecialion / amortisation chama,

il} Impairment of non financial assets

An estimate of the recoverable amount of assels is made for possible impairment as and when required. The estimation of fair value
less costs of disposal s based on observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the asset The estimate of value-
in-use is based on & discounted cashfiow model. The recoverable amount is sensifive to cashflow sssumptions.

iif} Television program costs

Television program costs are camied at fower of remaining cost and nel realisable value determined based on revenuea which s
expectad to ha samed. Revenue expectad 1o be eamad s estimated bazed on vardous factdrs including advertising rates, airing
schedule and number of planned reruns. Accordingly, these estimates are reviewed penodically and cost charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and remaining cost of asset are adjusted, if necessary

iv) Taxation

Thia Group takes into account currant income. tax laws and decisions taken by the appellate autharities in determination of its tax
expenses and assets and liabilities arising therefrom, The charge of income tax expense is based an estimates, and therefare, the
expense recognised in the financial statementis may differ from expense subsequently filed to the tax authonties due fo adjustmenis
to the estimates.

The managemeant considers tax conseguences that would follow from the manner in which the entity expects, at the consolidated
statement of financial position date, to recover or settle the camying amount of its assets and kabiibes. Deferred tax is calculated at
the lax rates thal are expectad o apply o the perod when the differences revarse, basaed on lax rales thal have been enacted or
substantivaly enactad by the consalidated statement of financial posttion date
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

v} Allowance for expected credit loss

The Group recognises an alowance for expecled credil loss {ECL) for all debl Instrumanits nol held at fair value through profit or
loss, The assessmant of the correlation between historical observed defaull rates, forecast economic conditions and ECL is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECL s sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credil loss expensnce and forecast of economic condiions may also nol be repraseniatve of customer's actual default in
{he fulure.

J

vi) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readity determine the Interest rate impliclt in the lease, therefore, i uses s Incremantal borrowing rate (IBR) to
measure lease labifities. The IBR |2 the rate of interest that the Group would have o pay to bormow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right of use asset in a similar economic environment.

wil) Staff retirement benefit

The cost under the retirament banefit plans and the presant value of the obligations are determined Using actuanal valuations, An
actuarial valuation involves making varous assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the fulure. These include the
dalermination of the discount rale, fulure salary increases, mortaiity rales and fulure pension increases. Due lo the complesities
mvolved in the valuation and its long-lerm nature, & defined benefil obligation is highly sensitive 1o changes in these assumpbons. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date

2.6.2 Judgements

In the process of applyng the Group's accounting polices, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidaled financial slatements.

i) Contingencies

The asssssment of the contingsncies nherently involves the exercise of significant judgement as the oulcoms of the future events
cannol e predicied with certainty, Contingant liabiites may devalop in a way nol initially expectad. Therslore, thay are assessed
continually to determing whether an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has became probable.

il) Leases - Determination of the lease term

The Group has kase contracts that include sxension and termination oplion, The Group apples judgement in evaluating whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the oplion o renew or terminate the lease. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there IS a significent event or change in circumstances that is within its control that affects Itz abilty to exercise or
not o exercise the aption o renew or o terminate.

3 BUSINESS COMBINATION
Purchase price allocation of TS3 FZ LLC

On August 28, 2023, the Group acquired 100% shargholding of TS3 FZ LLC Le., 100 ordinary shares having face value of AED
1,000 each. The nel assets recognised in the prior year's consclidated financial statements were based on & provisional
assessment of thelr fair value as the Group was in the process of getting an independent valuation completed for purchase price
allocation which was nol completed by the date the prior year's consolidated financial stalements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabidities of TS3 FZ LLC as at the date of acquisition determined by the independent
valuer |s as follows:

Fair value = Rupees ---
Asseats
Intangble assat 37,652,959
Advances, deposits and prepaymenis 931,931
Cash and bank balances 32,544 853
71,129,543
Liabilities
Accounts paysble (12,252,322)
Identifiable net assets at fair value 58877221
Goodwill arising on acguisition 84,356,080
Purchase conslderation transferred 143,234 210
Cash flow on acquisition
Purchase consideration transfermed 143,234,210
Met cash acquired with the subsidiary 132,544 653)
110,689,557
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

4.1

4.2

e

Az at the date of acouisition, TS3 F2 LLC kad a contract with a custamer 1o provide preduction ancillary sendces in ralation 1o
broadeasting of sports events: The customer conract has been valued using Multiperiod Excess Earnings Method, which imvolves
discourting the rasulling sxcess earnings, following the deduction of contnbutory asset charges to determine the intangible value, Tha
customar cortract is amartised in accardance with the expected patiern of flow of economic berefits over the contractual lerm.

The purchase price alocation exercise resulfed in recogrition of the customer contract as an inlangible assel amounting o RS
37,625 858, A corresponding reduction by Rs 37 625959 in the amount of goodwill provisionally recognised in the prior year's
corsolidated financial statements has also been recorded. Recognibon of customer contract also resulted in increase in tha
amortisation expanse in cost of production by Rs. 25,176,021 recogrised in the prior yvear's consolidatad statement of profit or loss.
Effect of translation recognised in the other comprehensive income resulting from these adjustments s immaterial

Tha comparative information has been accordingly restated to reflact these adjestmants to the provisional amounts pravicusly recorded
in the consolidated fmancial statements.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The matersl sccounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financizl statements are set out below, These polices
have basn applied consistently for all periods presented, unless otherwise stated

Property and equipment
Operating fixed assets

These are stated at cost less accumuisted depreciation and impairment loss, if any. When parts of an tem of property &nd aquipment
have different useful Ives, they are accounted for as separate items {major components) of property and equipment

Operating fived assets are depreciated afigr taking into account the residual value, if any, on a straight line basls at the rates specified
innote 5.1 ta these censolidated financial statements. The residual vakues and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
gach financizl position date.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged 10 consolidated statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements, if any, are capitakised when it is probable that respective fulure economic benafits will flow o the Group.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no futre economic benefits are expected from is use or
disposal Amy gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the assat is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year the
asssl i\ derecognised

Right of use assets

The Group recognises a right of use asset al the commeancement date of the lease. Righl of use assets are measured al cost less any
accumuiated depreciation and mpairment losses and adjusted for any remeaswrement of lease liabiities. The cost of right of use
assats includes the amount of lease hishilties recognised, infial direct costs incwred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives receved.

Right of use asseis are depreciated on a siraight ne basis over the shorter of laase tarm or usefu life, except for the leases in which
ownarship of the undarlying assets transfer (o the lesses by the end of the lease term or cost of nght of use assets reflects that the
lessee will axercise a purchase option, the Group depreciate those night of wse asset over the wseful life of the underlying assel.

Capital work in progress

These are staled al cost less eccumulated impairment and consist of expenditures incumed and advances made in respect of specific
assets during the construction period, These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are avallable for use.

Intangible assets
These are carried al cost Iess accumuiated amortisation and accumulated impairmeant Ioss, IF any.

For intangible assets with Tinite useful ives, amortisation ie charged to consolidated statemant of profil or loss on a straight line basis
over its economic useful life a1 the rate given in nofe & to these consolidated financial statements. Intangible sssets with indefinite fves
are not amorlised, but are tested for impairment annually, either indiidually or at the cash generated unit (CGLU) level, as appropriate
The assessment of ndefinte ke is reviewed annually to determine whether indefinite life cortmues to be supportable

N
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4.3

4.4

4.5

46

Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying amount of non financial assels are assessed at each reporting date to ascarlain wheather there is any indication of
imparmeant ar ot If any such indication esdsts then the asset’s recoverable amourt s estimated, An impaimant loss s recognsed, as
an experse n the consofidated statement of proflt or loss, for the amount by which 1he asset’s carrying amount exceeds iis
recowerable amount.

Television program cosls

Telewvsion program costs represent all program and film rights which are held for consumption in the ordinary course of business. The
Group initially records purchased and produced television programs at cost which comprises of invoice value, sales tax, and other
direcl purchase and production costs. The cost is charged 1o the consolidatad statemant of profit or loss as ard when the programs
are aired,

The assst is subsequently carried al lower of remaining cost and net realisable value determined based on revenue which is expected
to be eamed.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to-a financial assel of one entity and & financial liability or eguity instrument of
anclher entity.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assels al amorlised cost are subsequantly measured using the affeclive inlerest rate (EIR} mathod and are subject o
impairmant. Galns and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the assst is derecognised or
impaired

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at FYTPL include financial assets held for trading or those designated at FUTPL on initial recognition. Financial assats
with cashflows thal are not solsty paymenis of principal and interes! are classified and measured al FYTPL, imespective of the
business model.

Financial assets al FYTPL are carrlad in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with nel changes recognisad in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair value of mutual funds and listed shares are determined on the basis of net asset value
(NAN) and quoted prices respactively.

Dividends on lsted equily inestments and mulual funds are recegrised as ather income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been establiched,
Impairment of financial assets

For trade debls, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating expected credil loss, Therelore, the Group does nol track
changes n credit sk, bul nslead recognises a l0ss allowance based on [Helime expected credil losses at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision malrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the deblors and the ecanamic anvironment,

The Group considers & financial asset in defaull when confractual payments are 80 days past dus. However, in cerain cases, the
Group may also consider a financlal asset 1o be in defaull whan imternal or external informaticn indicates that the Group s unlikely 1o
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full bafore taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
assel is written off when there i no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash fiows.

Financial labilities

Financial liabiites are nitially recogmised at far value and subseguently measwred at amortised cost using the EIR method, Gams and
losses are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the labilities are derecognised,

Cash and cash equivalents
Far the purpose of the statemant of cash llows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand and balances held with banks that

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
/’ N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.7 Taxation
Final taxes

Taxes imposed on ncomeas subect to Final Tax Regime (FTR) in accordance with Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are classified as final
taxes represanting levy in terms of requiraments of IFRIC 21/1AS5 37, The charge for final laxes also includes adjustments to charge for
pitar yaar and charge for super lak mpoased by the Incumbent govermnmeant in respact of incomea subject to FTR.

Minimum tax differential

The Group designates the amount calculated on laxable income subject 16 Minimiem Tax Regime using the notified tax rsle and
recogmsas i as curren income [ax axpansa, Any excess over the amount designeted as ncome 1ax, s then classiled &5 minimum fax
differental representing levy n terms of requrements of IFRIC 21/1AS 37,

Incame tax
Currernl

Prowison for current taxation s based on taxable income at the applicable tax rates afler taking o account tax credits availabls, o
any, on the basis af the tax laws enacted or substantively enacled at the financial posiion date. The charge for incoma tax includes
adjusimants o charge for prior year and super lax Imposed by the incumbent govermamant In respect of income subject lo Normal Tax
Regme.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recorded usng the liabdily method on temparary differences babween the tax bases of assals and hshillies and ther
carrying amourts for firancial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferrad tax kabilties are recogresed for all taxable temporary
differences and defarred tax assels are recognised for all deductible temporary differences 10 the extent that it Is probable that future
taxable profits will be avaiable against which these can be uilised

4.8 Lease liabilitias

&1 the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognisas lease hebifties measwead al the present value of lease payments (o be
made over the lease lerm. In calcutating the presant value of lease pavments al the lease commencement date the Group uses s
Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR). After the commeancemant date, the amount of lease Eabiltles Is increased 1o reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancaliable term of the lease, logether with any periods covered by an option to
exend the lease If Il |5 reasonably cerain lo be exerdlsed, or any perods covered by an oplion Lo lerminale the leasa, i It s
reasonably certain not to he exercised.

4.9 Revenue recognition

Revenues 5 recognised al amourts thal reflect the consideration that the Group expects to be enlitled 10 in exchange for provding
sarvices to a cuslomer. Revenue i measured al the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and & recognised whan
parformance obligaticn is satisfied at a point in time when the service has been provided.

In case of advertisement revenue, the point of recognition s when the retaled advedissment s aired. In case of production revenus,
the point of recognition s whan the relsted production work appears before the public, In case of digital revenue, the polm of
recognition i when the agreed markeling has been provided on the digital propertles of the Group. Subscription reverue arises from
tha manthly billing to subscribors for services provided by the Group and from digital avenues based on number of views | agread
contractual amount. Subscription revenue is recognised in the month the senice |2 rendered. Film distribution revenue |s recognised at
contraciual rate applied to the customers’ underlying =ales of tickets.

The Group considers whether there are other promisas in the contract that are separate performance obfigations 1o which a portion of
ther fransaction price needs (o be allocated, In determining the transaction price for the provision of servces, the Group considers the
effects of vanable consideration, the exdstence of significant financing compaonents, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable
to tha customear (il any).

A contract liabiity is recognised if 8 payment s received from a customer before the Group satisfies the performance obigation
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs or transfers control of the related services 1o the customer

Credit limits in contract with customers is up to 90 days

N
8
&

)



%‘
RT"JJJ
1 ‘fﬁ’

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4.10  Other income

Profit on bank depogits i accounted for on effective interest method

Dividand incoma |s recognised when it is dectared and right to recelve is astablishad
411 Forelgn currency transactions and translations

Foreign currency transactions are trenslated into Pakistan Rupees using the exchange rates ruling 8t the dates of the transactions
Monstary assets and Habilties in forelgn currencies are translated into Pakistanl Rupess using the exchanges rate at the consolidated
slatement of financial position date. Mor-monelary assets and liabiities are recorded using exchange rate thal exdsled when the valuss
weare determingd. Forgign exchange gains and losses resulling from the selllemant of such transactions and from the (ransiations &t
the year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies are 1aken to consolidated statement
of profit or loss,

412 Contingencies

Contingencies are disclosed when the Group has a possible obligation that anses from past everts and whose ewstenca will be
confirmed only by the ococurmence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events nol wholly within the control of the enlity or
a present obligation that arises from pas! events but s nol recognised because il i nol probable thal an outfiow of resources
embodying economic benefits will ba requirad (o settle the obligation or the amount of the nhiigation cannot be massurad with sufficient
rehabdity

413 Staff retirement benefits

The Group operates an unfunded grafuity scheme for the management personnel employed in subsidiary located in United Arab
Emirates In accordance with Ihe applicable laws of the country. The scheme is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation that s
carried out anmally. The cost of providing benelits Under the defined bensfit plans is determined using the projected unit credit melhod
The latest actuanal valuaton was carried oof a5 at June 30, 2025 The Group recognises sendce costs and net inlerest expense o
incomea in the consolidated statement of profil ar loss,

414 Segment reporting

Segment reporting 5 bazed on the operating (business) segments of the Group. An operating segment 1 an identifiable component of
the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues and mcur expenses, Including revenues and expenses
that relate lo transactions with any of the Group's other comporents ard for which discrete financial informabion is avallable. An
operating segmerl's operating resulls are reviswed regularly by the senior managment to make decisions aboul resourcss o be
allocatad 1o the segment and 355855 its parformance. The Group reporls segment information saparately that meets the quantitative
thresholds as defingd under IFRS 8, La. 10 percent or more of the combined revenue, profit or loss or assets,

Segmenl results thal are reported to the senior managment includes ifems directly attributable to a segment as well as thoge thal can
be allocated on & reasonable basis. Unafiocated items comprise mainly of corporate assets, income tax assets [ liabilities and related
Income and expenditure, Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year (o acquire property and equipment and

intangible assets.
3 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 2023 2024
Note === RUpees —--—-
Operating fixed assals 51 1,272,010,145 1,159,876.528
Right of u=e assels 55 124,186,648 138,838,734
Capital work-in-progress 56 171,253,602 61,9880
1,567,450,395 1,361,703,333
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Particulars of immovable assets in the name of the Holding Company are as follows:

V¢

.A - \--%" T LIMITED
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EPORT 2025

Location Addresses Total Area
Karachi Plot Mo, 10011 Hassan All street, off |1 Chundrigar Road 2070sgh
Ishamakud Piat Mo 28, 1&T Cenlrs, Secior 5-6/1 3610 sq.it
Depreciation for the year en operating fixed assets has been allocated as follows:
2025 2024
Mote RupeRs -
Cost of productan 2 60,229 306 52232325
Mstribution axpensaes 24 11,844,402 11,024 675
Administrative expenses 5 0, 352,004 a4, 016,653
jrstisne LIt N
Right of use assels Land
Vehicl Tatal
and bullding ohiivien || =i
Cost Note Rupees
As &t July 01, 2024 176,420,184 5,273,398 161,693,588
Mddifions 0,875,848 - 8.6875.848
Transfers (o oparating fixed assels 51 - (5,273,399) {5,273,389)
As at Jung 30, 2025 186,206,047 - 166,296,047
Accumulated depreciation
As at July 01, 2024 40,638,442 1,216,422 41,854,864
Diepreciation charge for the year 551 21,470,957 1,224,873 22,695,830
Transfers to opersting fixed assets 51 - (2.441,235) (2,441 295)
A= at June 30, 2025 62,108,399 - 62,109,399
Net book value
As at July 01, 2024 135,781,757 4,056,877 139,838,734
Addifions 9,875,848 . B9.875 848
Dreprecistion chaerge for the year (21,470,857T) (1,224,873) {22.695.830)
Transfers o operating fixed sssets - (2,832,104) {2,832,104)
A5 3l June 30, 2025 124,186,648 . 124,186,648
Annual rabe of depreciaton (%) 10-33 1
Land
and bullding JL WVehicles " Taotal
Cost Rupees
As at duly 01, 2023 63 5674 880 18,607 823 2,082 803
Additions 97 526,882 . 87 526,602
Reassessment of lease lability 15,318,331 153183
Transfer to operating fixed assets 5.1 - (13,234,424 {13,234 424)
A5 al Jume 30, 2004 178,420,154 5273354 181,693 508
Accumulated depreciation
As al July 01, 2023 22,231 835 7 8E604T 30,058,582
Depreciation charge for the year 551 18 406,807 2508421 20:914 928
Transler 1o opareting fixed assols 51 - (0, 158.646) (0,158 646)
As at Juns 30, 2024 A0 B35 442 1,216,422 41,854 54
Net book value
Asat July 01, 2023 41,343,351 10,840,878 51,884 227
Additions a7 528 882 07,526 842
Reassassment of laase lability 15,318,311 - 15.318 231
Depreciation charge for the year (18 408.8BOT) (2,508,121} (20814.928)
Transler 1o oparating fied assets - (4,075, 778) {4.075,778)
As at June 30, 2024 135 781,757 4 056977 130,838,734
Anrwal rate of depreciation (%) 10-33 33
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2025 2024
551 Depreciabon charge for the year on right of use assels has been alfocated as follows: Mote Rupees
Gost of production 23 12,826 647 18,338.073
Administralive oxpanses 25 0,869,183 2 575 855

12,695 830 20, 814,528
56 Capital work-in-progress

Leasehold land 28,853,392 9,107 230
Leasshald Improvemants 141@50.210 szlsﬂu..ﬂnh
561 1T1IISJ- 602 1,868,071

561 Mavement in cagital work-mn-progress duning he year:
Balance at beginning of the yoar 51,988,071 47855146
Audlitinns durlg the yesr 109,265 531 14 332 625

Batance at end of the year 171,253 602 61,988,071

B INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Coui. Accumulite wnorisation ssd Epairmant Foreign T [—
e Aiditinis A at Ae ot Cluicgs | | oot i s il = ra=
by 1, O3 [Muke BT Jumedn mgs || Jwhpmd, 2opd | (Marend) (Mote 83} | e 30, TO38 [y Juite 502025 || % per annuns)
Conda 053, 523 " 052, 5 11,302 7 . 5 1BE 53 16,840,337 (EAME TR 1STERREDE  Ruter note §.3
Fights 17,642,768 . 17842, ey . ATHEILTED  Reofer note 6.0
Cnrrinr settas 008,118 : 5400, 118 7,860,420 08,58 . BLAGE 1A . ; -1
iy G 0, i, 009 L ] ¥, 450, o ALEEIR L] Lot - 1,340 4T = a4 800 333 a7
1ot ey 120,537, 187 = 30,957, 187 55078100 BAOTB1T G051 HTS ABL 158,740 2735 F »
Cuslomaer comvEel A7, 653, 050 3 37 552050 PEATEED] 1004753 . 15693814 12,970 348 . Rt Nt 3
257 3ar ¥ 1IR3 2= ean 11:12 Ta R sy EEENTIN T ﬂ='|'| T Eﬁﬂ
L] A e s e el ::H'HF' Boou v ArooaTisaon
hast Aaat Bt Charge st i == 3l raks
Juby B, 303 Additions | o lan sena || beytn, dors | pionenry | TWeTmEt | o pega | TR (e snmnsk |/ peraniind
i
Giorcwil fresatiul 2T, 13, e R g v E0L5 5 11.803.7E 11803701 (5853063 MWAITIHT  Rodernom il
Hightz: L. ] ¥ AT e B2 Helgraoin 21
Carputor softaires =8,k 118 SEASEA1E 55 407 854 1383 8TR L7 BB EI6 0 D -1
Limnesa fon A - S0, 000 LR TR 200, 100 . 10 43E 500 . 520U Ba7
Tt i 130,397, 167 130 M, 17 B AT0 0 5,500 35 58 079 300 . T2 AT ]
Cimtomer comrsel ¢ s I AE S0 I F0 G55 L} H‘I'I._'q't'! 28 17H A3 [+ 1H5.l3_'.':- L ] Sedornme 3
28 511 088 127 V2= 484 Aah A5T Y VEALTI P 33747 158 5 1% 366 44T U7 J9E ETT A b4 04

* Thetr vwa vt o QUi el [RBGUeE 4 DTN b et o (w0 Ol ke e BgOies e e el b P nckE stele rents s non i i v Sel ki of scosletion of THA TT LLE wers wake o deisled I ok
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6.1

6.2

6.3

]

2025 2024
Amaortisation for the year has been allocated as follows: MNote reemraners RUPERS sreeeemees
Restated
Cost of production 23 11,860,052 27,091,873
Administrative expenses 5 6,001,917 6,145,279
17,861,969 33,237 152

Represents Satellite TV licensa fee pald 1o Pakistan Elecironic Media Regulatory Authority for a period of 15 years

Impairment testing

The Group has perfarmed ils annual impaimment test for Rights and Goodwill acquired Ihrough business combinations having indelinite
useful lives as at June 30, 2025, Furdher, the Group has also performed impairmant lesting at CGLU level for specific subsidiarias wheare
there were indicalors of impairment and has accordingly booked provision for impairment whers required

The recoverable amount Is determined based on a value-in-use caloulation using cash flow projections from financlal budgets approved by
the senior management applying the expected value approach. The calculation of value In use is mast sensdive to the following

assumplions:
- Discount rate

The discount rate refiects current market aszessment of tha rate of return required for the business and is calculated using the Capital
Aszel Pricing Model, The discount rate refleats tha 1arget Walghted Average Cost of Capltal of the Group.

- Key business assumptions
Bassd on industry data, the mansgemsnt assesses how the subsidiary's position might change over the projected period
LONG TERM DEPOSITS, ADVANCES AND PREPAYMENTS 2025 2024
MNaote Rupees
Security deposits - unsecured - considered good
- Rent 14,205,782 12,661 044
- Trade 15,558, 228 15,975,435
= Others 2 465,816 3,163,524
32,220,826 31,800,903
Advances
- Bupplier 182,907,000 192,907,000
Prepayments
- Boftware maintenance fea 47,169,280 5B 617,871
Less: current partion 12 {19,540,405) {21 237 629)
27 628 875 a7y.ann 242
- Mambership fee 20,096,000 22,608,000
Less: current portion 12 {2,512,000) {2.512,000)
17,584,000 20,006,000

— 270349701 287 184 145
DEFERRED TAX ASSET - NET
Taxable temporary differances arising in respect of:

Unreafisad gain on revaluation of investments (57.562,012) {3,966, 706)

Tax depraciation (52,632,641) .
(110,1594,653) {3,968, 706)

Deductible temporary diferences arlsing in respect of:

Provisions 111,510,236 71,586,926
Allowance for expected credit loss 111,907,880 60,962,292
Leasas - nal 14,855 267 10,351,088
Tax depraciation - 4,949 327
Unabsarbed tax losses B.1 107,032,938 17,927 812
Chhers 18,804,291 18,008,094
364,110,612 173,076,538
253,915,059 169, 109,833
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

8.1 Dafarred taw assef has been recognised for unabsorbod tax lossas 10 the exient that the realisation of the related tax benafit through future taxable profits,
based on the prajections, s probabis.
2025 2024
MNote RUpOUE —==meereeee
g TELEVISION PROGRAM COSTS
Unreteasad [ relaased 1,352,096 852 1,229,340, 798
In producton 47,918,285 fifi, 855, 795
1.400,015.437 1.286.186, 583
10 TRADE DEBTS — unsecured
Considered good 4.156,163,218 5,2046,721,5485
Corsidered doubful 252,336,088 B2 441,121
101/ 10.4 4408459, 307 5,289,162 706
Lie=s: Allowance for expected credit loss 0.2 {252,336,088) (BZ.441.121)
0.3 4 156,163,219 5,206,721,585
10.1 Includes amount recelvable Inom cusbmers in the lollowing lorelan juisdclons:
Wnitgd Araby Emirales 464,919,372 413,385,923
United Kingdom 240,181,301 204,140,949
United Siates of Amenca 90,112,724 54,458,682
Canada 39,866,181 23,862,291
835,079,578 797 BH7 845
10.2 Allowance for expected credit loss
Balance at the baginning of the year BZ441121 47582291
Trade dedts - willen aff 27 - 567,842
Allowancs during Lhe year a7 183,619, 292 16,034 334
Impact of faretgn currency transiation {13,724,325) 18,246,554
Balanoe st the end of the year 252 336,088 B2 411
10.3  The aging of trade debis at the consolidated statement of fimandal pesifion date was:
2025
Past due 1-30 Past dus 31-60 Past dus 61-90 Past due more
Not past due days days days than 90 days Total
Rupoos
Gross repsivalie 2,804 4673294 570,184,923 187,800,696 26,284,383 BE0, 765,790 4,408 499 307
Expected cradit loss E!5.31D‘,353! !g.!ﬂ,ﬁﬂ:}} (20,088, 088) ;4.251.539[ (174,418 475) (252 336,088)
Livss rate 1% 5% 1% 16% 20%
2024
Past dus 1-30 Past dus 31-80 Pagl due 61-90 Past dus more
Nol pasi due days A days than 50 days Total
Rupess
Gross recovabio 3,982 475,043 B4 T G8E, 108 305,250,696 232,854 403 140,483,606 BB, 162,708
Expected cradit logs {18,777 405 {14,645 327) (0,932 817) [Z3,118,224) [ 15,967, 258] (B2 441,121}
3,963 BOH 248 533,342 THY 286 317,779 200836179 104,526 358 5,206,721 585
Loss rate % 2% 3% 10% 13%
10.4 Includas ameunt due from MO Films FZ LLC {a related party) amountng to Mil (2024; Rs, 4 005611 apged less than 30 days) The maomum smount

outatanding from the ralated pary al any Umé during the year calculated by refarencs o month and balances amounted 1o 4,005,611 (2024: Ra. 4005811}
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2025 2024
MHote seeeerenemns RUpees
1 ADVANCES
- Producers 768,745,017 220,755 843
- Suppliers 19.1011.2 329,888 417 B8543, 782
- Employees 1.3 44,005,450 16,299,349
1,142,638,894 334,604,084

119 Inciudes sdvance paid to MO Productions (Private) Limiled - a related party, smounting fo Rs 547 074 368 (2024 Rs 18846 117)
against purchase of content as parl of normal course of business. The maximum amaunt oulstanding at any time during the year
calculated by reference to menth end balance is Rs. 547,074 368 [2024: Rs. 19,846 117).

11.2 Inciudes advance pald o OMNI Motorsports (Private) Limited amounting 1o Rs. 120,000,000 (2024, NIT) for use of the venue 1o
conduct various husiness refated events,

1.3 Represents advances given to employeas against business expenses Including Key Managemen! Personned amounting lo Rs.
17,561,105 (2024: Rs. 10,238.013)

2025 2024
12 TRADE DEPOSITS AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS Hote e e RUPBES  —memeememensn
Deposits - unsecured
- Trade 37,500,000 -
- Rent 1,358 500 1,364 500
38,859 500 1,364 500
Prepayments
= Curremt partion of lang lenmm softwans maintenandce fes T 19,540 405 21,237 629
- Currant portion of long lerm mambership fee v 2,512,000 2 512,000
= Rent 20,467,372 =
- Insurance 16,862,723 35,330,112
- Professional fee 8,800,000 -
- Transmission cosls 30,513,373 26,588 740
- Others 16,160,283 12,426,545
124,856,156 a8, 106,026
163,715,656 80 470,526
13 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales lax receivable 208,420,498 166,918,527
Others 53,699,533 74,490,701
262,120,031 241,408 228
Less: Provision for impairment 131 (12,007,164} (6,378, 369)
250,112,B67 235,025,850
131 Provision for impairmeant
Balance at the beginning of the yaar 6,379,369 6.379,368
Allowance for the year 27 5,627,795
Balance at the end of the year 12,007,164 6,378,360

7
\%y



1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

;.'r‘ 2025

[ =)

g\\
o
,,pr

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

14

()

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - at falr value through profit or loss

Listed securities

Javedan Corporation Limited
5,000,000 (2024 5,000,000) shares at Rs. 64 (2024 Rs. 35.06) per share

Mutual Funds

ARD Opporfunily Fund
556 697 [2024- 553,769 | units at Rs.166.34 (2024: Rs. 110.21) per unit

AKD Islamic Income Fund
129,601 (2024: 116,510) units &t Fs. 51.60 (2024 Rs. 51.51) per unit

AKD Golden Armow Stock Fund
4,048 731 (2024: 3 988 680) units at Rs. 2023 (2024 Rs. 18,82) per unit

NEP Money Market Fund
3,907,115 (2024: 3,521 414) units al Rs. 10.03 (2024: Rs. 10.01) per unil

UBL Liguidity Plus Fund
2024. 270,601 umits al Rs.101.36 pear unit

UBL Money Market Fund
300,984 units at Ra. 10113 per unit

Fay=al Islamic Cash Fund
1.686,231 (2024 1,497 517) umts at Rs. 100.23 {2024 Rs. 100.17) per unit

Faysal Islamic Financial Growth Fund
196,249 units at Rs. 101.9%9 per unit

Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund
2,297,649 (2024 2,068,919} units al Ry. 99,02 (2024: Ry, 98.94) per unit

MCE Paklstan Cash Management Fund
2024: 3,464 123 units at Rs, 5047 per unit

MCE Cash Management Optimlzer
056,129 units at Ra. 102,30 per unit

MCE Pakistan Soversign Fund
1,807,971 units at Rs. 55.03 per umit

Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund
38,244 units al Rs, 55.01 per unii

Faysal Financial Sector Opporunity Fund
2024: 9,180 units 2t Rs. 103.50 per unit

Faysal Halat Amdani Fund
2024; 7,253 units st Rs. 101.42 per unit

HBL Cash Fund
1,307,682 (2024: 1,180,164} units at Rs. 103.35 (2024 Rs. 103.21) per unit

HBEL Money Markat Fund
26,745 units at Ra. 103.60 per unit

ABL Cash Fund
3.052 B41 (2024: 2,747,352} units at Rs. 10.26 {2024: Rs. 10.23) per unit

Askari High Yield Schema
B,073 (2024 7,433) units at Rs. 104,60 (2024; Rs. 104.26) per unit

D
e

\

2025 2024
Ru; ——
321,750,000 175,300,000
92,601,129 61,088,579
6,687,537 6,001,918
118,362,619 75,455 472
39,189,306 35243012
- 27,427,568
30,430,287 £
169,007,542 150,000,000
20,015,532
227,504,508 204,703,774
- 174,826,656
97,818,663 =
99,492,619 -
2,103,931 -
- 851,026
- 735,588
135,152,214 124 605,628
2,770,840 -
31,307 492 28,129,867
B44,621 774,920
1,395 048,840 1,062 444,008
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2025 " 2024
[ B
15  CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note g
Cash in hand
- local currency 986.853 942,928
- forgign currency 5,161,398 3,679,775
6.148.251 4,622,703
Cash at banks - current accounts
- local currency 339,116,120 228,570,085
- foraign currency 1,545,011,364 1. 216647 036
1,884,127 484 1,445,218.021
Cash at banks - deposit accounts
= local cusrency 15.1 TT8.609,047 B27.438 525
- foreign currency 15.2 131,097,765 36,120,560
909,906,812 853,557,085
Term Deposit Receipts 153 116,745,000 =
16,927 231 7.8

15.1 These carry interest at the rates ranging from 8.5% to 19% per annum (2024; 18.5% to 23%) per annum
152  These carry interest at the rates ranging from 1.15% to 1.65% per annum [2024: 1% to 1.65%) per annum.
153 Represant balance with foreign bank having a maturty of three months Gl September 13, 2025,

16 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2025 2024 2025 2024
—-—- Mumber of shares --— Ordinary shares of Ris, 1/~ each - Rupees
504,000,000 500,000,000 Fully paid in cash S00,000 nnﬂ 500,000,000
634000000 6534 000,000 lssued as borus shares 634 000000
—1.134.000000 __1.134.000,000 134000000 _ Trsaoooo00
164 Voting rights, board selection, right of first refusal and bleck voting are in proportion 1o the sharsholding.
2025 2024
Rupees
17 LEASE LIABILITIES
Balance at beginning of the year 166,382,292 70859 475
Additione in lease liabilities 9,875,648 97 526,882
Changes due to reassessment - 15,318,366
Interest on lease liabilities 28 28709 627 15,873,501
Lease renfals paid (43,690,692) {33.235 832}
Balance at end of the year 162,277,075 166,382,202
Current partion of leaze labillies (47,548 342) {42 070,250)
Non-current portion of lease lisbiities 114,728,733 124 312042

17.1 The Group has & lsase finance facility with 8 commernal bank for vehicles amounting 1o Bs. 50,000,000 (2024 Rs.50,000,000) out of
which Rs, 50,000,000 (2024 Rs, 48,384 158) remain unubiised at year end

20235

Note semsee—s  Riupees «
172 Maturity analysis of undiscounted l2ass liabilities s as follows:
Gross liabllities - minimum lease paymenis:
Mot later than one year 4T 548, 342 42,070,250
Latar than one year but not later than five years 199,033,035 1891045577
Later than five years 110,098,784 152, TA2 344
356,680,161 85 888 171
Future finance charge (194,403 08E) {219,515 879)
Presant value of finance leass liabilites 162,277,075 166,302 202
18 LONG TERM FINANCING
Diminshing Musharaka from klamic bank - secured 18.1 5 31,250,000
Bounce back loan from comventional bank - unsecured 182 5,958,779 5,296,746
5,858,770 36,548, 746
Current portion of long term financing {5,958,779) {35,058,458)
Mon-current portion of long ierm financing - 1488 288

A
.
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18.6

28
"

f/’?:\

THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Represented Diminishing Musharaka facility carrying profit at the rale of 6 months KIBOR plus 1% per annum. The finandng was
rapayable in B equal quarsrly instalmenis commeancing after a grace parod of 12 months from the dale of disbursement Le. December
2021, Financing was secured by way of Equitable Modgage over registered office, first hypothecation charge over property and
eguipment, first pari passu charge over recelvables of the Holding Company and first pari passu charge by way of constructive morgage
charge over lslamabad office.

Represants foraikgn currency loan amounting to £100,000 obtainad from Barclays Bank UK PLC at the rate of 2.5% per annum. The loan
s repayable in 80 equal Installments commencing aller a grace perdod of 13 months from the date of disbursement The loan s
supported by the Bounce Bank Loan Schems (BELS) managed by the Bristish Business Bank on behalf of the Secretary of State for
Busmess Energy and Industrial Strategy

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Staff retirement benefit obligation recognised in consolidated statement of financial position

2025 2024

Note Rupees ———
Prasenl value of defined benelil obligation 130,755,178 108,013,256
Less: Fair valug of plan asasts - -

18.2 130,755,178 108,013,256
Movement in present value of statf retirement benefit obligation
Balance at the baginning of the year 108,013,256 04 199 346
Current service cost 19.3 14,268,360 11,832,385
Interast cost 193 5,768,631 4,823,612
Impacl of forelgn currency transiation 2,704,931 (3,042 091)
Balance at the end of tha yaar 130.755.178 108 013 356
Amount recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
Currenl service cost 14,263,360 11,832,388
Intersst cost 5,768,631 4 023612
Expense for the year 20,036,991 16,856,001

The Group congiders that the impact of remeasurements to be recognised in other comprehensive income due to change in actuarial
assumptions |s not material 1o these conscolidated financial statements angd accordingly no charge has besn recognised in othar
comprehensive Income In this regard.

Significant actuarial assumptions

2025 2024
Discount rate 5.00% 560%
Expecied rate of increase in salaries 3.50% 3.50%
Maorality rate A 1949-52 A1948-52

Mortality Table Martality Table

Withdrawa! rate B% 8%
Retirement age assumption B0 years B0 years
Weighted average duralion 5 yoars & years
Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions

2025 2024

Rupees =ewe—s

Prasent value of defined benafit obllgation at the and of tha year 130,755,178 108 013,256
Following shall be the present values under vanous sensitivilies
Discoumnt rata + 1% 122,835,820 87,358,724
Discount rata - 1% 136,181,018 108 402,462
Salary increase rate + 1% 136,215,731 108 465,715
Salary increase rate - 1% 122,686,542 97,205,437

I marality changes by 1 yaar, the rasullant change in tha dafined benafil abiigaticn s insignificant,

The above sensitlivity analyses are bazed on a change in an azsumption while holding all cther assumptions constant. In practica, this is
unlikely 1o oecur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be comelated. VWhen calculating the sersitivity of the defined benefit
ahligation 1o significant acluarial assumphons the same mathod has been applied a8 when detemining the dafined benefit abligaton n
the consolidated statement of financial position. The methods and types of assumptions used in praparing the sensitivity snalysis did not

..,\change compared to the previous year
'-\
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19.7  Expected maturity analysis of undiscounted cashflows
2025 2024
snsarans RUpees -
Lese than & year 12,513,196 10,126,231
Belwesan 1-2 years 28,060,050 22,864 668
Between 2-5 years 52,986 041 44,250 646
Owvar 5 years 219,453,749 161,675,031

19.8  As per the recommendations of the actuary, the expacied charge for the year ending June 30, 2026 s as follows:;

- RUpEOS ——

Current samvice cost 14,465,987
Interest cost 7,890,921
22,356,908

189  Risks on account of staff retirement benefit obligation plans

Maortality risk — the rigik that the actual mortality axperionca is diferent. The effect depends on the beneficiarias’ service or age
distribution and the banefit

Investment risk — lhe risk of the invesiment underperforming and being nol sufficient to meet Lhe liabilities.

Final salary risk — the risk that the final salary at the fime of cessation of senvice is greater than what is assumead. Since the benefit is
calculated an the final salary, the benafit amount Increases accordingly

Withdrawal risks — the risk that the actual withdrawal experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability, The significance of
the withdrawal risk variss with the age, service and enfiied bensfits of the beneficiaries

Discount rate fluctuation — The plan liabifilies pre calculated using a discount rele determined by reference lo markel yields (at the
reporting date) on govemment bonds, A decrease in govammant bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this wall be parbally
offzet by an increase in the valug of the plans’ bond holdings.

2025 2024
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES HNate -~ Rupees
Crediiors 201 1,235,058,423 703.643.858
Accrued labifities 202 785,584 831 516,352 397
Viithholding {ax payabie 73,198,044 44 714 B30
Othars 66,853 486 177,146,317
2.160.694.TR4 1.441 897 402
201 Includes amount payabla to the following related parties:
M D Productions (Private} Limited 72,885,350 36,021 464
M.D Films FZ LLC 3,021,824 -
Momina & Duraid Films (Private) Limilad 5,869,566 5,869,566
Moomal Productions 54, 800,680 71237416

136.577.420 113,128 446
20.2 Includes amount accrued against following relatad party

Momina and Duraid Foundation 42,?35!552 BB 203,097

21 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

211 Contingencies

21.1.1 In 2020, the Holding Company received an order from Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR), raising & tax demand of Rs
168,166 692 in reapect of tax year 2014 on account of disallowance of agency commission vide order dated June 19, 2020, The Holding
Company obtained a stay order against the recovery and filed a suit in Sindh High Court (SHC) against the said order. During the year,
SHC, vide its judgement dated September 12, 2024, rejected the plaint and the matter was remanded back to the taxation authorities for
further proceedings, Subsequent to the year end, the Holding Company received a revised tax demand of Re. 323 881,344 vide order
dated August 04, 2025 The Holding Company has obtainad a stay arder against the recovery of this tax demand and filed an appeal
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) - CIR(A), which 15 currently pending adjudication

/’ N,
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21.4.2 Dunng 2023, the Holding Company recened a show cause notice dated December 14, 2022, from Assistant Commissionear (AC) - Sindh
Revenue Board (SRB) for tax year 2016 raising a demand of Rs. 20,758,849 on alleging shor-declaration of revenue. The Holding
Company duly submitied its responses o AC - SRB who vide order dated January 17, 2024, maintained the assessed demand and
added penalty of Rs, 21,917 846 increasing the total demand to Rs, 22 677 895, The Halding Company being aggrieved filed an appeaal
bafore Commissioner Appeals and the matiar is currently pending adjudication

21.1.3 Dunng 2023, the Holding Campany received a show cause notice daled December 14, 2022, from Assistan| Commissioner (AC) - Sindh
Revanue Board (SRB) for lax year 2017 raising a demand of Rs. 60,653,779 in respect of alleged shorn-declaration of transmission
expenses, cerain advertisermen and promotion expenses and technical advisory fee. The Holding Company duly submitted it=
responses o AC - SRB who vide order daled January 18, 2024, maintained the assessed demand. The Holding Company being
aggrieved filed an appeal before Commissioner Appesls and the matter is currantly pending adjudication

21.4.4 In 2023, the Holding Company received an order dated October 20, 2022, from Assistant Commissionar (AC) - Sindh Revenue Board
(2R8) raising a tax demand of Rs. 454845572 and Rs. 81,156,253 on account of short payment. and short withholding of sales tax
respecively, aggregaling to Rs. 536,001,825 pertaining 1o tax period from July 01, 2011, to Jure 30, 2015, In addition, fhe order also
imposed a 100% penally amounting to Rs. 536,001,825 perlaining o aforesaid penod. The Hoking Company being aggrieved filed an
appeal with Commessionar Appeals, SRE, which wide its order dated March 05, 2024, reduced the demand of tax shor paid o Rs,
121,563,366, thereby also reducing the imposed penalty 1o the same amount while maintaining tax demand of Rs. 202 718 616 as well
as imposed penaity al the same amount. The Holding Company being aggneved filed an appeal before Appellate Trbunal, SRE, Durng
the year, the appeal was decided through order dated Movernber 27, 2024, whereby the matter was remanded back to the AC - SRE o
consider the matter afresh. The Holding Company has not heard back from the authonties in this respect thus far

21.1.5 During the year, the Holding Company recelved & nollce dated Juni 28, 2025, by Assistant Commissioner Inland Ravenue [ACIR) in
respect of lax year 2010 raising a lax demand of Rs. 163,242,637 disallowing cartaln expanses on account of non-withhotding of laxes.
The Holding Company has lied an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) againsl he demand and the maller is
currenlly pending adjedicaticn.

21.1.6 In additen o (he above, te Group is defending vanous minor suils filed againslil in vanous cours related Lo its business operations as
al reporiing date, which are not material ta be disclosed as contingancies.

21.1.7 The Group based on the ments of the aforementioned matters and ( or as per the adwvice of #5 taw consultants and legal advisors,
expects a favorable outcome oh these matters and accordingly, no provision has besen made In this respect in these consolidated
financial statemants

.2 Commitments

21.21 Commitments for purchase of television program as al year end amounted to Rs. 3 120,701,774 (2024: Rs. 1,B88,547.82G). These
include commilments Lo the folfowing relaled parties.

2025 2024
Rupeos
.0, Productions {Privates) Limited 740,308,100 308,368 667
Moomal Productions 29,061,900 80,028,400
— 169370000 _ 398307007

1

2
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22

221

23

231

2025 2024
REVEMUE - NET Note Rupees
Advertisement revenus 7,141,717 645 7.5089,551.560
Production revenue 382,558,041 017,971,504
Digital revenue 141,589,109 128,667 087
Subscnption revanue 3,748,936,715 3,578,101,535
Marketing fee 5,030,890 101,510,368
Film distribution revenue 59,021,722 56,068,272
Sale of magazines - T4T 253
221222 11,478,854,132 12 293,007,690
Revenue is nat off the following items:
Sales tax 1,199,161,745 1,065,504.813
Trade and volume discounts 540,013,361 666,561.086
1,739,175,106 1,722 155,899

Includes contract lisbihties amountng to Rs. 782 500 437 (2024 Rs 811126,575). which were realised duning the year

2025 2024
COST OF PRODUCTION Note cernnnnns RUPGES =essmanse
Restated

Cost of outsourced programs 5,066,329,545 4,909,138, 785
Ciost of in-house programs 914,709,813 432 657,958
Caost of inventonies consumed 2,961,291 1,091,462
Salaries and benefits 231 1,301,950,958 1,320,6098,820
Technical advisory fee 232 68,439,372 54,751,500
Depraciation on operating fixed assats 54 60,229,306 52,232 325
Depreciation on right of use assets 551 12,826,647 18,338,073
Amortigation 6.1 11,860,052 27,091,873
Travelling and conveyance 187,500,720 242 582 626
Insurance 33,005,703 33,438,168
Repair and maintenance 33,653,820 33,670,948
Litilites 20,446,649 20,970,205
Fee and subscription 37,186,347 TAD7 147
Communication 33,860,179 64,886 177
Rent, rales and laxes 968,195 B7E 547
Printing and stalionery 3,853,334 3,184,505
Seaurlty charges - 726,000

7,789,891,031 7314025218
In production lelavision programs - opening ] 66,855,705 50,827 650
In production telavision programs - closing k' (47, 918,285) {68,B55,705)

7,808,828,541 T.297,907.073
Unredeased [ released lelavision programs - opening ] 1,229.340,7098 432,619,726
Unreleased / releasad televislon programs - closing f (1,352,006,852) (1,229,340, 758)

7,686,072 487 6,501,276.001

Includes Rs. 39,404,932 (2024: Rs. 33,480,473} In respect of stalf retirement benefits.

Represents fee paid to a Director for technical advisory services rendered in accordance with the agreemant duly approved by

the Board of Directors
7
(e
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24 DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES 2025 2024
MNote S Hupm T
Salaries and banefils 241 308,029,894 415,979,504
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 54 11,844 402 11,024,675
Advertisement and promotion 375,400,824 714,100,127
Travelling and conveyance 35,119,348 30,666,581
Insurance 3,832,866 4,500,124
Repair and maintenance 1,451,637 1,315,656
Litilities 2,574,907 3.079.048
Fees and subscription 1,000,000 850,040
Communication 1,146,383 837,193
Rent, rates and taxes - 2,126,750
Printing and stationery 1,019,628 817,960
— 741,519,899 11854
241 Includes Rs. 11, 224 169 (2024; Rs 8,527 G81) in respect of stafl retirement banefits.,
2025 2024
Note wemvesnee  RUPOES seeneenees
25 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 251 BY96,573,183 616,014,756
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 54 99,382,004 84,016,853
Depreciation on nght of use assels 8.51 9,869,183 2,575.855
Amortisation 6.1 6,001,917 6,145,279
Auditor's remuneration 252 17,292,428 14,560,182
Dihation 253/ 254 85,418,667 77,548,007
Travelling and conveyance 125,499 472 101,297 245
Insurance 15,730,871 12,919,710
Repair and mainlenance 75,684,933 69,782,336
Utilities 81,288,718 72,576,983
Fee and subscription 35,078,646 18,376,039
Communication 11,760,070 5,850,853
Legal and professional charges 83,703,797 61,976,757
Rent, rates and taxes 52,689,308 40,152,437
Pririting, stationery and perdodicals 8,309,888 0,534,363
Sacurity charges 14,479,789 12,706,811

1,618,962 D64 1,206,434 376
251 Includes Rs. 34 839 369 (2024 Rs. 27 655 488) In respect of staff ratirement benafils.

2025 2024
252 Auditor's remuneration Note eeesnmece  RUPNEZES —eseceeee
Audit fee for unconsolidated financial statements 8,193,510 T.B70 148
Audit fea for consolidated financial statements 939,263 853,875
Fee for half yearly review 768,488 698 625
Other reviews, services and certifications 5,531,966 3,725,463
Tax services 367,281 238477
Owt of pockel expenses and sales (ax on services 1,491,920 1,173,603
25.2.1 17,292,428 14,560,182

25.2.1  Includes audi fes of auditors of certain subsidiary companies (other than the statutory auditors of the Holding Company)
_‘..,?\\amnunting o Rs. 5,801,885 (2024: Rs, 6,015,399)

.
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25.3

25.31

25.4

27

28

291

Includes the following donees to whom donation excead 10% of total donation or Rs. 1,000,000:

2025 2024
Note semeeeeeee  Rupees
Capital Development Authority 25341 23,679,834 1,100,000
Momina and Duraid Foundation 60,145 788 75,223 087
83,825,622 76,323,097

The Group Ras undertaken to adopt a public area namad as Sultana Siddiqui Park for uplifting and maintenance of the
public park.

Recipients of donation do not include any dones in which any director or ils spouse had any interes! excepl for donation
paid to Momina and Duraid Foundation. Following directors of the Holding Company are also trustees of the said trust:

= Mr. Duraid Cureshi
- Ms. Sultana Siddigui

2025 2024
OTHER INCOME MNote - Rupees —
Income from financial instruments
Profit on deposil accounts 154,571,115 128,502 483
Exchange gain - net 118,379,868 -
Dividend Income 120,976,455 93,390,004
Liabilities no langer payable written aff - 54,741 187
Urrealised gain on revaluation of invesiments 225,260,648 31,733,846
Realised gain on investments 13,144,966 1,559 986
632,333,050 310,837,281
Income from other than financial instruments
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - net 852 16,135,434 3.194 638
Sale of content and festival income 38,078,845 38,404 287
Sundry incame 15,511,039 26,648 760
69,725,318 65,245,685
702058368 _ 3791850966
OTHER EXPENSES
Allowance for expecled credit loss 10.2 183,619,292 16,034,334
Provision for impairment 83,531,396 B
Exchange loss - ned - 94 B14.461
Current tax assst written off 4,133,930 -
Trade dabts - written off 10.2 = a67 842
271,284 618 111,416,637
FINANCE COSTS
Interest on long lerm financing 2,672,328 16,379 9496
Interest on lease liabilities 17 25,709,627 15.873.501
Bank charges 3,739,393 3.992171
36,121,348 36,245 BaA
FINAL TAXES
Curreni 50,529,041 83,835,124
Priar (35,625,831) -
281 14,903,210 823835124

Represents final taxes paid under section 5 (lax on dividend) and 1544 (export of services) of Income Tax Ordinance,
2001, representing levies in tlerms of requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 27,

MINIMUM TAX DIFFERENTIAL
Represents minimum tax differential paid under section 153 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, representing levies in terms

of requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37. =
7 D
G
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31 INCOME TAX

A

32

321

()

Currani
Deterrad
Frior

Relationship betwean accounting profit and tax expense
Profil balara finad axes, minimum &k difsrantal and inoomea Lax
Tax at the enacted tax rata of 28%

Effects of:

Tax al reduced rale

Priar year tax

Super tax

Minimumn tax diferental and final taxes
Adjustment of losses

Others

Effective lax rata
EARMNINGS PER SHARE - basic and diluted

Profit-for the year attrhutable to owners of the Holding Company
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 24

Earmings per share
There is no dilulive effect on the basic earnings per shara.

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Prafit before fimaé taxes, minimum tax differential and income tax

Adjustments for:

Depraciation on operating fiked assels 54
Deprechation on fght of LSe assets 551
Amartisation on inlangible assets 6.1
Amounts recognsed In respect of staff retirement benafits 16.3
Finance costs 28
Exchange [qain) | lpss - nel 26727
Profit on depasit accounis 28
Gain on disposal of operating fised assats - net 26
Realised gain on investmenis 26
Dividend ncoms 26
Allswance for expected cradit lnss Fi}
Provision for impairment r
Current tax asset written off 27
Liabitties no longer payable witten off 26
Unrealised gain on revalualion af invesiments 28

{Increase) | decrease in current assels
Invanlories

Television program cosls

Trade debis

Bdvances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other recenables

Inerease | (decrease) in eurment lisbilities
Trade and alher payables
Contract liabllities

\*‘{,ﬂ;

2025 2024
------ RUPERSE —=memeeeee
22,707 611 5. 762 725
(B4,7589,376) {15,694 535)
2,488,777 (10,588,153)
e 159,561,358 285.300,031
1,345,614.901 3,313,306 842
390,278,321 960, B5E S84
209,804,302 {24 704, 760)
2,488 777 (12.470.454)
8.518.569 85,388,777
(600,505,087) (672 587.347)
{39,902 392) -
{31.195,478) {568,111.169)
(59,561,988 289,370,031
2
— 235,730 367 2,524,967, 161
1,134 000,000 1,134 000,000
1.09 2.58
1,345,614,901 3.313.306.842
171,455,802 147,272,653
22,685.830 20,514 828
17,861,969 33.237.152
20,036,991 16.855.001
36,121,348 36,245,668
(118,379,868) B4 214 461
(154,571,115) {120,502 483)
{16,135.434) (3,194, 638)
{13,144, 966) {1,550, 888)
(120,976,455) {93,353 504)
183,619,292 16,034 334
81,531,306 -
4,133,930 -
- {54,741 167)
(225 260 B4E) {34,733 648)
(109.011,926) 51,244 278
14,927,327 {7,790, 036)
(103,818,544) (267,050,130
HB0,663,399 {2.149.585.807)
(808,034, 810) (BB2,342,711)
(64.245,130) {12,107 385)
97,664,065 (10, 574,382)
17,161,307 {3,200 480 551)
738,787,382 328,381 244
(551,119,740) 513,987 285
1,441 441 924 1,008,450, 008
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351

63

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVIES

035 Hhia
Exsculiag Maon-Expautive (=11 Basta Kon-Exscutive i
EH::;"I'I | [ [ Bi I Exoculives NP P _.m o Execulives

hianagestal nesvmrs i on 108558, 550 . = 539,110,885 168,241, 11 = L NG FErEna
Technis polisary him - BA4XR AT - - . 54750500 - -
Linsing P g & ek st - B - £ 08, D0 =
Eewiiis 43 541 185 43 641 TRS - =0, Ta% 06T 03 3% God 02311 BOS - 58 TI5361
Ralimmant enalis 11,658,274 . - LLER05TT Iaarezay e = 280743232
sy vt T IR 520 L . 173377283 18,544 A0S 137, 80 148
| Hib=s. aTInar " - 8, X0 50T &1 nn = F TBO3T, 008
Car slowance AR LEE Y * . T TER 599 20, M6T 184 = & AR MT
Fust wrad cainvayancs 2 17T 1,0l B2 - 2ITE A6 _27hd. 817 1,741,086 — =

R Y TR T Y B v - R AT RETRT P
Musnibes 1 1 ] g | ! T 5

The Chin' Exgatulive and oealn execufives ors akko provicid with. frée ugs of carg. dlib mambecship and reimbursssssnt of experses retaled 10 businsss ool in socandancs with
{his smplayment contract ard the Grog's polboy,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Fesated parties compnse of oubsichanas. ssoociabed compares. retvament fungs, direciors and key managemant parsonnel of the Group. Detals of ronsectons with related pordes
during Ihe year, olhar then hoss whish have bean disclosed elaeshors in thess congoldated francial slatemants ase o lolowe

M0Es 2024
Redatrenahip Hature of transactions s Rupuss
Associated companies Furchazes of tefevision programe nghta 1.965,997, 655 0ERA14 707
Fim dninbuson rovenon 113862 A4l 07
Paymenls misds dumng s yaar 2AT2TA0A56 1.883.117.735
Dithers Coemiribeion bo the providant fumd 62,386,245 51.184.000
Hegy Management Personne Ehort-teem employes benglits 9B, 513,313 bE1, 628 048
Resdirement beneflis 15,425,657 20857 337
Purchane of vehicis 40,000,000 -
Logal ard profrssiomal chargns 17 274,192 -

&l brarmactions with relaled paities B antersd la &1 sgeasd ema duly approed by ke Boand of Dirsciers. The putstanding recatvabis sail payabile batances of 1he raldtal pares
nclute payabie io key managment personnel anounling o Rs, 627 £64 123 (2024, 356,565 207) and s dkclssd i respective notes {0 Ihess conuniidated Ninatcisl stalements.

Key menagement personnel gre tose persons having autnonty and responsibidty for planning, drecting and controiing ne actvites: of the Group directly or indicsclly. The Group
considers a1 mernbors of their axscutiva managomeanl team . including e el owecutive officer snd dirscors, ts bo key management persannal. Hona af Tha Kay manadgamont
parsonnal hard pny srangemanis with the Groop other than the empiopment contract and thoae mentioned in noées o these conaclidotad finarcal siatements.

Folloraing are the relaled pariies wily whom (he Grodp had antered infe transactions or have Srangemens © agraemants n plage

& Ho. I Eompany Nama [ Country of incorparation | Basis of agsociation [ Sharehakaing % |
1 LD Productons [Prvete] Limied Fakistan Asrociatad company®
2 tcaming & Duradd Fibva (Privebod Limibed Pakiatan Asgoclalad company’
3 M0 Films FZ LLC United Arab Emwates Associatod company”
4 Memins sl Dursld Fouedstion Pakistan Associabed company* -
5 Migomal Productione Pakigian Aagnclatsd compary’ -
T Hund Matwork Limdad- Employoes” Provident Fund Fokzeian Rirlirormarmi Fumf .
[ Ma. Sultara Sidaqui Brocior 181%
g ke Maghar ol Haq Sidoigu Cérecior -
10 Ly Diresd Cureshd DHrucion AT 41%
11 Wi Shunaid Ourashl Direrior 538
12 Mrs. Mahiab Akbes Rashdl Derecior '
13 Lt Gien (R} Asil ¥asin Ltk Direddor
e v Mubammed Ayuo Y oonus Adh Drrpdior
5] M Sohail Ansar Dhrecior
i b Khish biakhl Shujpal Dhrecier

“Thesa eriites are assocuted companies in accordarce with the provisions of Comparses Act. 2017,

Irvesiments out of providert fund, whene spplicable, have bean mide m accordsnce wilh (ha prevaons of Becton 218 of the A and he reguilston lomulsied fed this purpose

=
~
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36.1

36.2
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2025 2024
Note Rupees -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
Financial agseats
At amortised cost
- Long term deposits 7 32,229,826 31,800,003
- Trade debis 10 4,156,163,.219 5.206.721,585
- Deposits - rent 12 1,359,500 1,364,500
- Dther raceivables 41,692,369 68,111,332
- Cash and bank balances 15 2,916,927 547 2,313.397,809

7,148 372 461 7,621,396 129
At fair value through profit or loss
- Short term investments 14 1,395,048,840 1,062 444,008
Financial liabilities
At amortised cost
- Lang tarm financing 18 5,958,779 38,546,746
- Lease Liabilities 17 162,277,075 166,382,282
= Trade and other payables 2,020,643,254 1.220,036,255
- Unclaimed dividend 6,807,368 £,066,894
- Unpaid dividend 740,472

2,195,686.476 1,420,772 661
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activitles expose It 1o a varaty of financlal risks, i.e., market risk (including currency rsk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk), credit risk and Hguidity risk, The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financlal
markets and seeks o minimise potential adverse affects on the Group's financial pedormance.

The Group’s senior managemeant oversass the management of these risks. The Group's senlor managemant provides poficies for
overall fisk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange sk, interest rate nsk and credit
risk, use of financial derivatives, financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Group’s policy that no frading in
dervalives lor speculative purposes shall be undertaken.

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value of future cash fiows will fluctuate because of changes in market pnces. Markel prices comprsea
three types of risk: inlerast rate sk, currency risk and equily price risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate fsk is the fsk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuste because of chandges In the
markal interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises from long term financing, finance lease obligations, manay markst
mutial funds and deposit accounts with banks. The Group manages these risks through risk managemeni stralagies.

Sensitivity analysis:

The following figures demonstrate the sensitivity of the Group’s profil before Income tax 1o a reasonably possible change in inlerest
rate, with all other varables held consfant:

Increase [ decrease Effect on profit

in basis points before income tax
— Rupees -~
2025 +100 1 TIT:: 413
-100 (17,722,419)
2024 +100 16,132 0RO

=100 1ﬁi13.?-DEEI

\%2)
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Fosogn cuffonty mas i e ik thal e vales of Tnancal sosets o fnanois| Satslea will Ruciusbe dus W & charge in fomegh eachange taloe. (L o makly whey uconables ond pesables sl duy 1o
frans Brions r'inmg:n ourreneiss. Tha Gmup's exposors 0 fnnsign oumanoy nek |18 & folioes

[ FIFE] I 204 ]

| CAD [ uso I SBR | AED | (] ] ush | GER AED) ]
Trode detdls 180,712 meam Gt 388 4 528 40 181523 200,370 TEITH 5,100 835
Cash and bank bafances - 7.8 377,667 20,028 672 67,662 a8 EE1 15,357, hod
Dt feculvabduon - . R - - - ekl -
Lang temm fnencing . . {15, 306) - 25878
T'emde ind gher Cayabies E 36.30€) {184,737} 581017 £14.556) 190961 [RERC R
Ciming eucharge ralss 2014 oot OH 368,31 T 2061 F3iidi 35LE5 LY

‘Senaitivity analysis

Thea folimaing tebia demonainsses the sanstivty of tha Group's pofit bafods inoome i esonshly possitla chanos in the &ED, USD snd GAP axchongoe mies, with @il cther vanablas heed constant:

Effesctan profit = e Effoct on prafa

Change in CAD Fars i Clrargs in USD | Effectan profil Changs in GEP Change in AED. | Effect oo pealit before

raie () E" xio e (%) bedrm fmenme Lis rat= (%) mu:m rate (Y} e tai

e I — Hupaes — = HLpaes - = Rupoes —
Fuors '] EX ) '] §,880 503 =i 31,726,546 +10 105,506,058
& L] _ [h o 0] L1 ] 18,0810 503} A0 130, T8 S g 185, BOG, BE4)
204 A 7. T Y 117 T A S TR
-0 [ERLFRTL ] [BET1o2T £l 32,48 200 Ap 148 357 a0

[Equity price risk

Eepuiry pien Fak o e sk That e T walos of fuhes el Beaws of Ansncial anemens will fusisas Decass ol Snanges n ks prces (e than hoss @t Mom Serency e o sl rae b
Therainre. fhi Group's aivesimens in sares and cquity basod il limds e suscoptible o oguiy proc ek The Group managss o egu ity priog rsh through deonilicalion and plagng mgs oo ndividual
mii] Mt Fessmants Reporis on the insestmeats pofifclio sre suliminsd i the Gionn's senir mansgemisd on 8 g beass S ol e conalidaiad abatament of Bracisl posion des, e sapims o
[erwutmiits &1l vl Drough profll o luse was s, BI2.743, 748 (3024 Ry, BIZTREOTTL

Thes follrareg Spuress derceainags T senaviny of the Group's ohoftt Babore heome B fo o reosonobi possile chang m ot prices, wilh ol ofher warsies: beld torgiont
Irsonsmss |
P ﬂ'l'nﬂlm pmr: lefore
prine (%) ik
— Rigpoga —
wiE +10 FhIT1LITE
-0 153,205,475
e 0 M
Credit risk

Credil rigk is tha risk which arises with the possibilily that one parly o a financial ingtrument will a1 1o discharge 85 obligation and cause the oiher party
te incur a financial loss. Concentration of credit risk anse when a number of counterpariies are engaged in simiar business adivities or have simikar
economic features that would cause thew ability o mesl contractust oblgations to be simitarly sffected by changes m economic, poftical or othar
conditions. Corcentrations of credit risk indicate the relafive sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affecting a parfioular ndustry,

Management of credit risk

The Group's palicy is to enter into financial contracts in accordancs with the guidelines. set by the Board of Diectors and othar intemnal guidalines.
Credit risk is managed and controllad by the management of the Group in the folloming manner:

- Credit rafing and credd warthiness of the counferparty is taken info account slong with this financial background so as bo minimise the risk of defaull.

- The risk of colnterparty exposurs dus 1o failed agreements causing a lass 1o tha Group is mitigaled by a periodic review of thair cradil ratings, Tnancial
statements, credil worlhiness and markes information on 8 regular basis.

- Gash is hald wih reputabie banks only.
Az of tha reporting date, the Group s exposed bo credit risk on the following asseis

2026 024
Note e RUpEES
- Long term deposits i 32,220,826 31,767,351
- Trade debts 10 4,408,499,307 5,289,162 706
- Shor 8rm investmants 14 1,395,048,840 1.062 444 008
- Deposits - rent 12 1,359,500 1,364,504
- (ither receivables 41,692,369 68,111,332
- Bank balances 15 I,‘E;IﬂJ?IJB& 2,308,775.106
8,780,609,138 8,761,645 003
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Quality of financial assels

The crodit guality of financial assats can be essessed by reference to exdemal credit ratings or 1o historcal Information about counterparty default rales:

Bank balances

AlA

. B

AN

Ab-

A3

B+

A2

A1

st rartesd

Shaort term investments

Listed sacuries
A
Mutual funds

A
AL
Al
AL
AR+
Ab(f]
2 Star
3 Slar

Liguidity risk

Hote

15

2035 2024
srrmeeenee RUpEES
9,640,876 67 566,295
564,914,806 204 6an, 122
43,000,936 .
13,800,083 14,182,313
8,283,975 £
1,625,450,189 1,160,801 841
481,070,560 THG, 120 068
19,298,218 24,847 430
145,319,653 65,788,257
- 4 857 BHD
2,910,779,296 2,308 775,108
321,750,000 175,300,000
- 136,544 051
B44.E21 T74.520
22,110,463 951,026
206,206,848 185,978,600
524,984,004 556,803 403
106,180,156 6001978
92,601,129 -
118,362,619 -
1,073,208, 840 BAT 144 008
1.39%&!..34& 1 ,ME_MEMH

Liquidity msk is the nsk that the Group will nol be able 1o mesl ils financial obligations as they fall due The Group applies prudent risk management
potiches by maintaining sufficsent cash and Dank Dalances and Dy kesping conmmimad credit mes
The table below summarnises the matunty profile of the Group's financsal liabilities as at the following reporing dates:

Leasa Liakabthes

Long term fimancing
Trade and othar payables
Unelaemed dividend

2025

Lepsa Liabbites

Long term financing

Trade and othar payatles

Unclaimed dividand

Unipaed dividisnd
2024

Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Maore than 5 years Total
Rupees

47 548 342 199,033,035 110,098,784 356,680,181
5958779 - 5.858,773
2,020,643,254 2.020,643,254
0.807.368 - . G.B07. 368
2,080,957,743 198,033,035 110,098,784 2,300,080 562
42070250 161,045,577 152,752,344 285,898,171
35,058 458 1,488 288 : 36,546, Tdo
1,220,036.255 : 1.220,036,255
6,066,096 - - 6,066 806
T4D4T2 . TADATE
1,303,872 331 102.533 865 152 782 344 1,640 288 540

L —— ¥ -~ 3 -y = =]

Changes in liebilities from financing activities

Long term financing

Leasa iabilities

Long term financing

Laass ksbillties

N

28
"

i~ul-24 || Cashflows || Additions || Others [ 30-dun2s |
Rupees
96,546,746 33,260,295 g 2672328 5.058,778
166,382,292 {43,880.692) B.875 848 29,709,627 162,277,075
iJulzd || Cashfiows || Additions || Others |l 30-Jun-24 |
Rupees
125,293, 851 {105,127 101 - 16,370,888 36, 546 746
T T089BATS (33,235 632 57 525 Be 31.191 867 166, 382 207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

T4

re

Capital rigk

Thie Group finances s operations through equity, bomowings and management ol working capital with a view of maintaining an appropriaie mix between
vanous sources of finance lo minemise risk. The primary objective of tha Group's capital management is o enswere that it maintaing healthy capital ratios
in peder to support its business susiain future development and maximise shareholders' valug. The Group monitors capital using a debl equity ratio as
frlbonas:!

2025 2024
Nate eeeamre FUPEES e

Lease hahllities 17 162277075 166,382 202
Long lerm fnancing 18 5,958,779 36 546 746
Total debt 168,235 854 202,929 038
Share capital 16 1,134,000,000 1, 134,000,000
Lnappropmated profit 9,941,390,418 B, 705,651,051
Foreige currency Iransaton msare 575,690,310 555,708,516
Man-cantrmalling inieresl (88,749,522} (B 677 822)
Total equity 11,562,330 806 10,306 682 645
Total debt and equity 11,730,566,660 10,508.611,683
Gearing ratio 1.43% 1.93%
Falbr value measurement
Fair vafue is the price thal would be recefved o sell an assal of paid io ransfer a liability in on ordarly transaction babwean markel parficipants al tha
measurement dale,
The followeng Lable shows assels recognised al fair valus, analysed bedwaen ihosa whose falr vadue is based on:
Level 1. Quoled prices in active markets for denlical assets or liabdfhes,
Level 2 Those involving Inpute other than guated prices Included In Level 1 thal are abservable for the assel or [i@bility, either directly {as prices) ar
imdirectly (derved from proes); and
Level 3: Those whoss inputs for the assef or lishility that are not based on abservable markel dats (unobservable npuls),

Assets measured at fair [ Level 1 [ Level 2 [ Level 3 N Total ]

MNote Year
walue
(Rupees]
Short larm invasiments 14 2025 1@“!534{! = £ 1 aam £40
Shaort term investments 14 2024 1 %E.IMII:JDB 1,062 444,008
During the vear, (hera wore no trenglfers batween leve 1 and level 2 fair vaiue meassurements, and no ranefers into and oul of level 3 fair value
measurement, Fnancial instrumants which are tradable n an open market are revalued at the marke! proes prevading on the reportng date. The
camying values of all finencial assets and liabilties reflected n the consolidated financial statements appropriate their fair values,
OPERATING SEGMENTS

For maragement purposes. tho Sroup has doetermmed fofowing reporiabie opersting segmonis on the beses of areas of oporations Lo, cotenainment, news and spors. Entertairmant
mapmeant i engaped n adverisement. enberisrment and media manesteg, Mews segments b engaged n boadeasing of rews programs,

Erteriainmant Hews Othars Totsd
2028 024 1025 | 024 2025 2024 2025 | 2024

Fewetivue
Ay ertmemant s 4,567,204, 006 A GO, A03,112 1,238 472217 B3, 20 B 1.338,841,132 1 AR THY TATIT B T RO T B
Preshuclicr revernis 247, E35,632 500,100,303 250,000 L K] 1IRATE 408 B T 204 A%7F 556 041 BT o750
i ol movoousn 128,018,755 138 havasr 1573058 - 141,588, 109 128,867 pAT
Bulaeryin pRdsmie 2,517,581 416 2250 912 431 238517 1.228,563.120 +ATH, R 3.7T48,336,T1S 578,404,535
M hrirg oo - - - = 5,010, A% 101,910,308 5,030,859 0 510,258
Fbm disdriuition rewernin 59,621, T2 E& D8R 272 - 58047 55,05A,272
Sole of regannes - T47 253 = - = - = 747 3853

T, 576, 160, 622 T.513, 510455 1,243 680, 750 55,117 08T TR TE 3 A2, 570 S5T 11473 B34, 137 12,283,007 B9l
tSani of producion 14,100,240, 898) 11,201 95 GOE) [RIE.BAB 40|  (ROGAYMOGR]  [LVENOTEDSE) (INOOHIABTY  (RBEROTIART) (85042768001
Tramarimscn cost [326,021,571) (233, F11,088) (44, 164.653] (36,028,571 (114,748,050} {49.087.036) (489336773 [RTR T 483)
Qrass prafll 1,093, 767,153 487800 i 388,669 607 112 (168,211,358) ST, MO 234 3,319,045 362 BATASI 26
Onbewhon experoan JE24, BB, THEY [T 836 (118 G2 420) o0 S (B, P3| (115, T3 430) (T44_B10, 05| 01 1RG5 A58
Admimsiratr axpersan 11,283,075, D08) 125 Na T [268.138.023) (246 T HT) o6, T DR i, 130 038 {1LBYE D2 SE4i 1. WL A5 AP E)
Sogment resubis 1,188,761, 156 2 HNZ AE00E] 263104 [AHE SRS 61 28 T, 08T} G5, adh TH1 ELFE-TFIETL 3081,783, 181
[ 4 T
Olihsir incame TOEOSE AR 370, 165 RS
Citheiir wi s (271284 618) (191,496 837)
Finbitea coels [ELRFa ] {36, 245 Hos|

©Ox
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Profin bafors final tanss, minlmum ta

differential and ncome tax 1,345,074, 901 S.a313.506, 54 2
Final bares (14,803, 210) (B3 A5 124)
Il Lo oifferardiol {154,606, 51| {15, 230,583)
Profit before Incoms tax 176,105,370 334240, 730
Irgpme tax 50,561,588 (EDATDDaT)
Profil for the year 1 EIE.WIHT 74 870,04
‘Othor information
Arncrimatm 7, 0503,727) [7. 550, 480 (510,845 {190,347_553) S5 ATROT) {17081, 56) {51917 152)
Depeciation (136,570, 7R} {140:875 758) (35,634,070} 155 634,070} {1,537 TR} (1. E7RT5E) 194,151,633 {1ER 1RE 5811
Proviigiod for Impeamani (B2 531, 306} - = - (83,531, 396) -
S| TN sk Bln 3,845 375,713 4,284 TiG4%0 1,479,205 669 1,781 517,958 1,978 38, TER Z13Z Tr 308 7,353 519, 650 B 150,005, 714
Linndocmied fasnts 6,775, 176,941 4 550,515 3
Total Ascols 14 128 G546, 553 12 T T A2 D2
Seqmant ladiites 1641 &1 gm I.E A 5di5 58,850 800 55 %39\5 B35, 062714 1,365 530,065 2,550,558, 410 2400835 056
Lingliocatod Rabiltes 6,007,368 G.807 368
Tolsl Linbilitios 2 6B JES TAT T 10615407
Susgjrvierd cnilal wepenl MG SEF JER S-L}'Hl- Hhal 77,368 A4 A5 3918 7, IHEH 1 15,0 L0 331,870,022 13,000 DAz
Linpfiocntad comial exnendnin 100,265,531 14 382 625

431,084, 551 227 32 07

331

3811

38.1.2

f(z\

Reconciliation of segment agsats . liabilities and capital expanditure to the 1otal assets. liabillties and capital expendiure of the Group is

as foliows:

Segment assets

Allocated sagment assels

Long term deposits, advances and prepayments
Defarred tax asset - net

Invantories

Advances

Trade deposits and short term prepayments
Other recelvables

Taxalion - nat

Short term investments
Cas=h and bank balances

Total assets
Segment liabilities

Allocated segment liabiities
Unclakmed dividend

Lnpaid dividend

Total fabilities

Segment capital expenditura

Allocaled segment capital expenditure
Additions lo capital work in progress
Total capital axpenditurs

Geographical infarmation of nat sales to external customers

Agia

Middle East
Amernica
Canada

United Kingdom

D
0

|

11
12
13

14
15

5.6.1

2025 2024
Rupees

7,353,518,650 8,159,005 714
270,345,701 282,184,145
253,915,959 168,100,633
9,579,352 24 606 675
1,142 638,894 334,604 DB
163,715,656 a8.470,526
250,112,867 235,020, 869
372,888,127 37,569,905
1,385,048,840 1.062 442 D08
2,916,927 547 2313397 809
14,128,696,583 12.717.322 052
2,559,558 419 2.403,832.039
6,807,368 6.066. 856
- T40 472
2,566,365,787 2410638407
321,820,022 213.000,082
109,265,531 14,332 625
431,085,553 227332707
7.816,491,109 T.B36.025,820
968,554,819 1.915.823,002
2,346,895,986 2,247 408 857
12,513,037 18.452.678
334,309,171 274,185,252
11,478,854,122 12,203,007 690
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383 Man-current assets of the Group are located in the following counties (domicile country): 2025 2024
P— R\umﬁ JPo—
Asia 2,142 137,082 1,862,764, 701
Middie East 154,780,599 158,462 053
America 24,689,273 17,128,049
Linited Kingdom - 68,026,711
2,321,606,954 2.107,381.514

384 Revenue from three (2024; one] major cusiomers of the Group periaining fo entertainment segment constituled 39% (2024: 179) of the
total revenue during the year

33 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
The total number of employess and average number of employees at year end and during the year respectivaly are as follows:

2025 2024
Total number of employees B11 7B
Average number of employses during the year 788 775

40 GENMERAL

40.1 Corresponding figures have been reclassified | rearanged wherever necessary for better presentation. However, there are no material
reclassifications to report in these financial statements, except as disclosed below:

Reclassified Kk
From | To
Rupees -

Reclzssification of television program cost Television program costs Televicion program costs 668,959,141

(Mon current assels) (Current assels) b

Advances 545,899 087
Reclassificatlon of long term advance Trade debts Long term deposits, advances 39,686,300

Capital work In progress and prepaymeanis

{Praperty and Equipment) 165,220,730
Recizssification of cost of outsourced program Transmission cost Cost of outsourced programs 250,923,114

{Cost of production)

Reclassfication of commisson axpenses Adverheemeant and promotion  Adverkeement revenue

{Distribution expenses) {Revenue - net) 55,454,250

40.2 Figures have been roundad off 1o the nearest Rupea.

Eal DATE OF AUTHORISATION

Thesa financial stalements have been authorised for issus on Octobar 02, 2025 by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company.

K .

DURAID QURESHI MAZHAR-UL-HAQ SIDDIQUI MUHAMMAD ABBAS HUSSAIN
Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary,

HUM NETWORK LIMITED

219 Anriual GEMNERAL MEETING

Rarachi

I Sla. , holder of CNIC No. Resideni of , being member of HUM NETWORK
LIMITED, holding ordinary sharms as per Registered Follo | COS Account No. hemsby appoint i
resident of of failing him' ke MroMs,

ol (full addres=) who [Bfare also

membes(s) of the Company, as my / our proxy 1o atiend, acl and vote for mel us and on my  our behall at Annual | General Mesling (AGM) of  1he
Company. to be held on Monday, 27 day of Octotrer, 2025 at 3:00 pm &l Ground Floor BRR Tower, Hasan Ali Street off 1.1, Chundrigar Road Kerachi

and [ or any Adjournmesnt thesesol,

As witness my / our hand ( seal this day of 2025,
Sigred by in ihe presence of;
Witneas:
1. Mame:

Signatise

Address:

CNIC or Passpor Mo,
2, M

Elanature

Address:

CHIC or Passpor Mo,
Miode:

1, The proscy fam, duty complsted snd sgned, miust be reoshed at the Regstesd Ofics of the Company, HUM Network Limded, Plol No. 10011, Hassan 80 Stest, O, || Chandrgar
P, Wprmict.

2. Al members are entified o aitsnd and vole at the mestng.

3, A rembler slgrble o attend and vobe al i Maeling may appont anofhar member & Wsfer prony (o atiend, and vole instesd of himvher

4, An instrument of proxy applicable for the meating s baing provided with the nobee senl b membere. Funher coplea of ihe Instrument of proxy may be oblzined from the
regestzred office of ihe Company disng nonmal afice hmrs

B. An estrument of groay and the power of oltomsy o olhed suthorty (F any), under whick It is signed or 3 not aifly cerified copy of Buch power or aulhomity muat. io be valld, be
deposied al the reglsiared office nol kess than 48 houre befors the e of tha meeling

6, If o momber appoinls more than ong prosy end meee than ono nsrumaents of prasy ae deposted by 8 mamber with the company, all such instruments of proxy shal oo
rengsred imvalid

T MMHawmdmmmydﬂnngﬂpmiﬁmmM?.

B COC acoount holdars will futhers heres o foll ow the umder mentionod guidelings 2= (Sid down in Gmar 1, detod Januany 26 2000 eaded by e Soourites & Exchangs Comrmension
of Fekizian

For COC Accouint Holdors Carporate Endlties:

In addillon lo shove, ihe followdng regurements have o be met:

13 Tha presy fonm ahall be winessasd by two (2] persons whoos narnss, addrecses and CNIC mambens shall be mentonad on e form

W) Adtested coples of CNIC or pesspon of the benafloal owners and tho prosy shall be emished with the progy Som

i) The prosy shall produce his arginel CHIC or ongnal pessport al the time of meeting

i} Imv cane of corponma anbty. the Board of Direciors’ resoiution | power of attomey with upacimen sgraiure shall bo subrritted (Unlesa i has bean proviiad eadin ) Mong wey
oy formm b thes Comgany.
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